
 
 

 
Agenda 

College Station City Council 
Regular Meeting 

Thursday, April 12, 2007 at 7:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chamber, 1101 Texas Avenue 

College Station, Texas 
 
 
1. Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation, Consider absence requests, Big Event 

Presentation, NLC Award 
 

Hear Visitors:  Any citizen may address the City Council on any item which does 
not appear on the posted Agenda.  Registration forms are available in the lobby 
and at the desk of the City Secretary.  This form should be completed and 
delivered to the City Secretary by 6:45 p.m.  Please limit remarks to three 
minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal that you have 
thirty seconds remaining so that you may conclude your remarks.  The City 
Council will receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the 
issue on a future agenda.  Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the 
City Manager. 
 

Consent Agenda 
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on a consent or regular agenda item not 
posted as a public hearing shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s 
reading of the agenda item.  Registration forms are available in the lobby and at the desk 
of the City Secretary.  The Mayor will recognize individuals who wish to come forward 
to speak for or against the item.  The speaker will please state their name and address for 
the record and provided three minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to 
signal thirty seconds remaining so that the speaker may conclude your remarks.     
 

2. Presentation, possible action, and discussion of consent agenda items which consists of 
ministerial or “housekeeping” items required by law. Items may be removed from the 
consent agenda by majority vote of the Council. 

 
Vision Statement II – Parks and Leisure Services 

1



Professionals providing a wide range of leisure, recreational, educational, and cultural 
opportunities. 

 
a. Presentation, possible action, and discussion awarding a design contract 

(Contract No. 07-174) to Edwards and Kelcey, Inc., in an amount not to 
exceed $498,917.00, for the design of Phase I of the new Municipal 
Cemetery/Aggie Field of Honor; and a resolution declaring intention to 
reimburse certain expenditures with proceeds from debt. 

 
Vision Statement I - Core Services   

Professionals providing world-class customer focused services at a competitive cost 
through innovation and planning. 

 
b. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of the 

third and final reading of an ordinance approving a non-exclusive gas and 
oil gathering franchise agreement with Energy Transfer Corporation. 

 
c. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the approval of a 

contract with Chadwick Homeowners Association granting an amount not 
to exceed  $7,500 in matching funds for a gateway project.  

 
d. Presentation, possible action and discussion on a contract for Delinquent 

Account Collections for Utilities, Municipal Court Fines/Fees, Ambulance 
Services and other miscellaneous revenue for an estimated annual 
expenditure of $100,000.00 to McCreary, Veselka, Bragg & Allen, P.C. 

 
e. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding award of the 

consultant contract (Contract No. 07-164) with Black and Veatch 
Corporation in the amount not to exceed $108,300 for engineering service 
for a Transmission System Fault and Coordination Study of College 
Station’s Electric Transmission System. 

 
f. Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding ratification of an 

expenditure of $200,828 for construction services provided by JaCody, 
Inc., to repair storm damage and to prevent erosion and loss of City 
infrastructure in the Upper Trails of Wolf Pen Creek and approval of a 
construction contract for the work performed. 

 
g. Presentation, possible action, and discussion approving a real estate 

contract in the amount of $50,000 that will authorize the purchase of a 20' 
wide public utility easement needed for the Water Service Extension 
Project.  The property is owned by Texas Hotel Management, L. P. and is 
located on the west side of SH 6, at the corner of WD Fitch Parkway. 

 
h. Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding award of a Services 

contract for RFP 07-034 Outsourcing the Printing and Mailing of Utility 

2



Bills, late notices and inserts for an estimated annual expenditure of 
$55,000 to Sungard EXP-Mailing. 

 
i. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on appointment of election 

officials for the May 12, 2007 general and special elections. 
 

j. Presentation, possible action, and discussion to approve an interlocal 
agreement between the City of College Station, CSISD, and Brazos 
County for special statewide constitutional amendment election on May 
12, 2007. 

 
k. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of 

minutes for the City Council Workshop and Regular Meeting on March 
22, 2007, Special Council Meeting on February 1, 2007 and Council 
Retreat on February 27, 2007. 

 
 
Regular Agenda 
 
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on a regular agenda item not posted 
as a public hearing shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s reading of 
the agenda item.  The Mayor will recognize you to come forward to speak for or against 
the item.  The speaker will state their name and address for the record and allowed three 
minutes. A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty seconds remaining 
so that the speaker may conclude your remarks. 
  
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on an item posted as a public hearing 
shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s announcement to open the 
public hearing.   The Mayor will recognize individuals who wish to come forward to 
speak for or against the item.  The speaker will state their name and address for the record 
and allowed three minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty 
seconds remaining so that the speaker may conclude your remarks.    After a public 
hearing is closed, there shall be no additional public comments.  If Council needs 
additional information from the general public, some limited comments may be allowed 
at the discretion of the Mayor.    
 
If an individual does not wish to address the City Council, but still wishes to be recorded 
in the official minutes as being in support or opposition to an agenda item, the individual 
may complete the registration form provided in the lobby by providing the name, address, 
and comments about a city related subject.  These comments will be referred to the City 
Council and City Manager.   
 

Vision Statement III – Planning and Development 
Professionals who plan and develop a sustainable community balancing neighborhood 

and community interests. 
 

3



 
1. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 

amending Chapter 3, “Building Regulations”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City 
of College Station, Texas by adopting the 2006 International Building Code with 
related amendments and the 2005 National Electrical Code with related 
amendments.  

 
Vision Statement I - Core Services   

Professionals providing world-class customer focused services at a competitive cost 
through innovation and planning. 

 
 

2. Public Hearing, presentation, possible action and discussion on an ordinance 
amending Chapter 6, “Fire Protection”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
College Station, Texas by amending certain sections as set out, adopting the 2006 
International Fire Code with related amendments and the 2006 NFPA Life Safety 
Code.  

 
Vision Statement III – Planning and Development 

Professionals who plan and develop a sustainable community balancing neighborhood 
and community interests. 

 
3. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an update on the 

Comprehensive Planning process.   
 
4. The City Council may convene the executive session following the regular meeting 

to discuss matters posted on the executive session agenda for April 12, 2007. 
 
5. Final action on executive session, if necessary. 

 
6. Adjourn. 

 
If litigation issues arise to the posted subject matter of these Council Meetings an 
executive session will be held. 
 
APPROVED: 
 

_

E-Signed by Glenn Brown
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

_______________________________ 
City Manager  
 
Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of College 
Station, Texas will be held on the Thursday, April 12, 2007 at 7:00 p.m. at the City Hall 
Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas.  The following subjects 
will be discussed, to wit:  See Agenda. 

4



 
Posted this the 9th  day of April, 2007 at 2:45 p.m. 
 

E-Signed by Connie Hooks
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

________________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing 
Body of the City of College Station, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and 
that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 1101 
Texas Avenue, in College Station, Texas, and the City’s website, www.cstx.gov .  The 
Agenda and Notice are readily accessible to the general public at all times.  Said Notice 
and Agenda were posted on April 9, 2007 at 2:45 p.m. and remained so posted 
continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled time of said meeting. 
 
This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the College Station 
City Hall on the following date and time:  __________________________ by 
________________________. 
 
    Dated this _____day of ________________, 2007. 
    By______________________________________ 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the _____day of ________________, 2007. 
 
______________________________   
Notary Public – Brazos County, Texas  My commission expires: ___________ 
 
The building is wheelchair accessible.  Handicap parking spaces are available.  Any 
request for sign interpretive service must be made 48 hours before the meeting.  To make 
arrangements call (979) 764-3517 or (TDD) 1-800-735-2989.  Agendas may be viewed 
on www.cstx.gov .  Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Access Channel 19. 
 

5



 

April 12, 2007 
Consent Agenda  

Municipal Cemetery/Aggie Field of Honor Phase I 
Design Contract Award 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Steve Beachy, Director of Parks and Recreation                          
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion awarding a design contract 
(Contract No. 07-174) to Edwards and Kelcey, Inc., in an amount not to exceed 
$498,917.00, for the design of Phase I of the new Municipal Cemetery/Aggie Field of Honor; 
and a resolution declaring intention to reimburse certain expenditures with proceeds from 
debt. 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends approval of the contract and approval of the 
resolution declaring intention to reimburse certain expenditures with proceeds from debt. 
 
Summary:  Requests for Qualifications were solicited from July 3 through July 26, 2006, for 
the development and approval of a Master Plan for the 56 acre new Municipal 
Cemetery/Aggie Field of Honor project (Project Number GG9905).  In addition to the Master 
Plan, the design development and approval, preparation of construction and bidding 
documents, preparation and filing of plats, and construction management phases related to 
development of Phase I of the project were included.   
 
During negotiations with Edwards and Kelcey, Inc. it was determined that the best course of 
action would be to contract for the development and approval of the Master Plan 
independently of Phase I of the project.  Once the location and extent of Phase I was better 
understood, a separate contract would be entered into with Edwards and Kelcey to complete 
the Phase I design work.  This separate contract approach was utilized as it would 
potentially give better pricing on the Phase I design costs as several key components of 
Phase I would not be finalized until completion of the Master Plan process.  The Master Plan 
was developed By Edwards & Kelcey, Inc. with Contract #06-263, and was approved by City 
Council on 2/1/2007.   
 
Contract #07-174 is the intended second contract, and will provide for the design 
development and approval, preparation of construction and bidding documents, preparation 
and filing of plats, and the construction management phases related to development of 
Phase I of the project. 
  
Budget & Financial Summary:  Funds in the amount of $3,910,000 are currently 
budgeted for this project (GG9905) in the General Government Capital Improvement 
Projects Fund.  This funding level was established prior to the inclusion of the Aggie Field of 
Honor to this project.   
 
Funds in the amount of $1,674,326.23 have been expended or committed to date for land 
acquisition and development of the Master Plan.  This leaves a balance of $2,235,673.77 for 
design and construction. Revised estimates, however, indicate that the design, construction 
and initial marketing of Phase I will be approximately $6,225,000. Therefore, it is 
anticipated that the total budget for the project will be increased to $7,900,000 during the 
FY08 budget process. Additional Certificates of Obligation will need to be issued to fund this 
project.  
 

6

Consent Item 2a



 

The “Resolution Declaring Intention to Reimburse Certain Expenditures with Proceeds from 
Debt” is necessary for this item because the long term debt has not been issued for this 
portion of the project. This debt is scheduled to be issued later this fiscal year and in fiscal 
year 2008. 
 
Attachments: 
 

1) Resolution Approving a Design Contract with Edwards and Kelcey 
2) Resolution Declaring Intention To Reimburse Certain Expenditures with Proceeds 

from Debt 
3) Phase I Site Plan 
4) Phase I Design Elements 
5) Project Timeline 

7

Consent Item 2a



RESOLUTION NO.      
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, SELECTING A PROFESSIONAL CONTRACTOR, APPROVING A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT AND AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE 
OF FUNDS FOR THE PRELIMINARY AND FINAL DESIGN OF THE NEW 
MUNICIPAL CEMETERY AND AGGIE FIELD OF HONOR  PROJECT. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas, solicited proposals for the preliminary and final 
design of Phase I of the new municipal cemetery and Aggie Field of Honor project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the selection of Edwards and Kelcey, Inc., is being recommended as the most 
highly qualified provider of the Engineering and Architectural Design services; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby finds that Edwards and Kelcey, Inc., is the most highly 

qualified provider of the services for the preliminary and final design of Phase I of the 
new municipal cemetery and Aggie Field of Honor Project on the basis of 
demonstrated competence and qualifications. 

 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby approves the contract with Edwards and Kelcey, Inc., for 

an amount not to exceed $498,917.00 for the preliminary and final design services 
related to Phase I of the new municipal cemetery and Aggie Field of Honor Project. 

 
PART 3: That the funding for this Contract shall be as budgeted from the Cemetery Fund in the 

amount of $498,917.00. 
 
PART 4: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED this    day of      , A.D. 2007. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary   RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 
APPROVED: 

E-Signed by Angela M. DeLuca
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
      
City Attorney 

8

Consent Item 2a



9

Consent Item 2a



10

Consent Item 2a



11

Consent Item 2a



PHASE I

Columbarium wall with 
pillar end columns

Two Columns flanking each other 
at roadway entry into College 
Station Cemetery

Committal Shelter

Information Center with 
Reflection Pool.

Retention Pond, water 
feature with water spray.

Reflection pool on grass mound

“Spirit Gate” tall columns framing 
view to Kyle Field and A&M campus.

Cemetery Entrance

Low Wall, broken at pedestrian 
gate columns

Dense Tree plantings to 
provide screening for College 
Station Cemetery

AM
APPROX. 5 ACRES

CS
APPROX. 5 ACRES

12

Consent Item 2a



Parks and Recreation Staff Recommendations 
New municipal cemetery Phase I components 
February 15, 2007 
Page 1 of 2  

New Municipal Cemetery/Aggie Field of Honor 
 Phase I Design Elements 

February 27, 2007 
 
Assumptions: 
 
 1. Phase I design must be consistent with the intent of the approved Master Plan. 
 
 2. Design, demolition, and construction costs not to exceed $5.5 million. 
 
 3. Phase I must be a 'stand alone' facility for 10-15 years. 
 
 4. Phase I must serve both community and Aggie Field of Honor needs equally. 
 
 5. Phase I must have sufficient positive image & impact to produce demand for sales. 
 
 6. Space pricing must be reasonable within the local market. 
 
 
Essential Phase I elements: 
 
 1. Demolition/removal of all existing buildings, slabs, road beds, etc. 
 
 2. Relocation of existing access road for the Anadarko oil well site. 
   
 3. Main entryway, planters, sliding entry gate and fencing along entire road frontage. 
 
 4. Entry road, ring road, loop road to 'Spirit Gate', parking at central plaza area. 
 
 5. Central plaza with committal and information/restroom buildings, walkways, etc. 
 
 6. Twelve columns: including 'Spirit Gate', central plaza, and AFOH columbarium  
 
 7. "Spirit Gate" with plaza area, raised and tilted A&M seal, and name walls. 
 
 8. Lighting for central plaza, buildings, columns, entry, and roadway. 
 
 9. AFOH initial columbarium:  
 
10. COCS columbarium.  
 
11. Landscaping and irrigation for entryway, access road, central plaza, 'Spirit Gate' 
 

13

Consent Item 2a



Parks and Recreation Staff Recommendations 
New municipal cemetery Phase I components 
February 15, 2007 
Page 2 of 2  

12. Benches, walks, 4 flagpoles, trash receptacles, and signage. 
 
13.  Pond and water feature for the municipal section 
 
13. Fencing for west, north, and east property lines and screening for oil pad site. 
 
14. Utilities including water, waste water, electrical and communications 
   
15. Provide location, fencing, and signage for graves to be relocated from TAMU  
 
Additional Desired Phase I Elements: 
(If funding is available) 
 
 • Trees and irrigation systems for future phases 
 
 • Separation wall between municipal section and Aggie Field of Honor 
 
 • Loop road around initial COCS section  
 
 • Four additional columns for COCS section roadway entry 
 
 • AFOH west columbarium and plaza 
 
 
 
NOTE: 
 
These recommendations were develop by Staff and presented to the Cemetery Advisory 
Committee for discussion and consideration at a special meeting on February 27, 2007. At that 
meeting, the Committee supported these recommendations to proceed with the Phase I design. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14

Consent Item 2a



City of College Station 
Cemetery Project Timeline 

Project Number GG9905 
As of: March 20, 2007 

 
 April 2006 Kinman Tract purchase complete    
 
 May 24, 2006 Board of Regents approval of Real Estate Contract   
 
 June25, 2006 Prepare RFQ for design services   
 
 June 26, 2006 Develop proposed timeline for project implementation   
 
 June 27, 2006 Cemetery Committee Update   
 
 July 3, 2006 RFQ for design services issued   
 
 July 13, 2006 City Council Workshop discussion - confirm project scope, 
   management responsibilities, oversight roles and proposed  
  timeline   
   
 July 26, 2006 RFQ deadline 4:00PM   
 
 July 27, 2006 Sharp/Clark tract purchase complete   
 
 July 27, 2006 TAMU Tract purchase complete  
 
 August 2006  RFQ Evaluation & negotiation process 
   -Rankings completed: 8/9/2006     
   -Contract Negotiations complete:  
 
 Sept. 27, 2006 Site visit to State Veterans Cemetery @ Killeen  
   
 Oct. 12, 2006 City Council award Contract for Master Plan Design  

 1

15

Consent Item 2a



 Oct. 25, 2006 Site tour of new cemetery property  
  
 Nov. 1, 2006 Project Kickoff/Visioning Session/Goal Review led by design 

firm (9 a.m. to 3 p.m., The Exit Teen Center)  
 
 Nov. 2, 2006 Continuation of the Project Kickoff/Visioning Session/Goal 

Review led by design firm (9 a.m. to Noon, College Station 
Conference Center)  

 
 Nov. 14, 2006 Monthly status update by design firm with Cemetery 

Committee (Noon, College Station Conference Center)  
 
 Nov. 27, 2006 Public Hearing meeting led by design firm in Council 

Chambers (40 people in attendance)  
   - 
 
 Nov. 28, 2006 Design charrette led by design firm in College Station 

Conference Center (30 people in attendance)  
   -  
 
 Dec. 11, 2006 R.C. Slocum visits with Dr. Robert Gates and gains verbal 

approval of the master plan   
 
 Dec. 12, 2006 Conceptual Master Plan presented by design team to the 

Cemetery Committee in the Exit Teen Center   
 
 Jan. 9, 2007 Design Team delivers the 1st draft of the conceptual master 

plan book to City Council, Cemetery Committee, & staff   
 
 Jan. 9-16, 2007 City Council, Cemetery Committee, and city staff review of 

the 1st draft of the conceptual master plan book   
 
 Jan. 16, 2007 Cemetery Committee workshop meeting on the 1st draft of 

the conceptual master plan book   
 

 2

16

Consent Item 2a



 Jan. 23, 2007 Public Hearing on the 1st draft of the conceptual master plan 
book.  Cemetery Committee passes a motion to recommend 
adoption of the conceptual master plan by City Council.   

 
 Jan. 16-31, 2007 Design Team incorporate changes received on 1/16/07 into 

final draft of the conceptual master plan book   
 
 Feb. 1, 2007 Joint City Council/Cemetery Committee meeting for 

approval of the Master Plan   
    
 Feb. 27, 2007 Committee meeting to determine Phase I project scope    
   
 March 2007 Committee meetings: 

  -Initiate development of operational rules and procedures  
   for new cemetery site and set space sizes (3/6/2007)    

   -Review updated Pro Forma (3/20/2007)   
   -Finalize naming recommendation (3/27/2007) 
 
 April 2007 Development of the marketing RFP (Staff) 
   
 April 2007 Cemetery Endowment Fund resolution developed (Staff) 
  
 April 2007 Finalize option sale process and procedures 
 
 April 12, 2007 Approval of Phase I Design contract w/ Edwards & Kelcey 
    
 May 2007 Budget request for FY 2008 operations and maintenance   
 
 June 2007 Start Option sales process 
 
 June 2007 City Council approval of marketing contract, ordinance  
  with rules and regulations, and naming recommendations 
 

 3

17

Consent Item 2a



 June 2007 Finalize agreement on use of protected names, logos,   
  trademarks and other identifying marks with TAMU  
 
 Sept. 2007 City Council approval of Endowment Fund resolution 
    
 Oct. 2007 Phase I design process complete and project out to bid 
 
 Dec. 2007 Award contract for construction 
 
 Dec. 2007  End option sale sign up process 
 
 January 2008 Groundbreaking ceremony 
 
 April 2008 Start option sale space selection on site 
 
 Sept. 2008 Complete Phase I construction 
 
 Sept. 2008 Dedication ceremony 
 
  Indicates Completion of Specific Task  
 

 
TIMELINE SCHEDULE AND COMPONENTS SUBJECT TO CHANGE 

 4

18

Consent Item 2a



 

April 12, 2007 
Consent Agenda  

Energy Transfer Corporation Gas & Oil Gathering Franchise Agreement 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Olivia Burnside, Chief Information Officer                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of the 
third and final reading of an ordinance approving a non-exclusive gas and oil gathering 
franchise agreement with Energy Transfer Corporation. 
 
 
Recommendation(s):   Staff recommends approval of the franchise with Energy Transfer 
Corporation (ETC).  
 
 
Summary:   The City Council approved Ordinance 1923 on October 10, 1991, providing for 
an oil & gas pipeline franchise agreement with Ferguson Crossing Pipeline Company.  On 
September 13, 2001, Council approved Ordinance 2516 naming Mitchell Gas Services, L.P. 
as successor to the franchise and extending Ordinance 1923 for five years.  In September 
2003 the Mitchell Gas Services, L.P. altered its name and began doing business as Devon 
Gas Services, L.P.  On October 21, 2004, Council approved Ordinance 2762 naming Energy 
Transfer Corporation as successor to the franchise.  The franchise fee structure has not 
changed since the original franchise in 1991. 
 
While the franchise was completely rewritten two changes are significant.  The first is that 
the franchise fees are set within the ordinance and not by resolution.  The second is that 
franchise fees are applied only to pipeline in the City's right of ways and that fee was raised 
from $1.50 per linear foot to $2.50 per linear foot. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  Although the fee per linear foot of pipeline in the right of 
way was increased there is a decrease in the overall revenue from this franchise due to 
eliminating the franchise fee on pipeline not in the right of way.  Revenue from this 
franchise will decrease from approximately $78,000 to approximately $45,000 per year. 
 
 
Attachments: 
Franchise Ordinance 
 
 

 

19

Consent Item 2b



20

Consent Item 2b



21

Consent Item 2b



22

Consent Item 2b



23

Consent Item 2b



24

Consent Item 2b



25

Consent Item 2b



26

Consent Item 2b



27

Consent Item 2b



28

Consent Item 2b



29

Consent Item 2b



30

Consent Item 2b



31

Consent Item 2b



 

April 12, 2007 
Consent Agenda 

Gateway Grant Contract for Chadwick HOA 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Olivia Burnside, Chief Information Officer                       
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the approval of 
a contract with Chadwick Homeowners Association granting an amount not to exceed 
$7,500 in matching funds for a gateway project.  
 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends approval of the contract with Chadwick 
Homeowners Association granting matching funds for their gateway project up to but not 
exceeding $7,500.    
 
 
Summary: Chadwick Homeowners Association, an organization registered in the City's 
Neighborhood Partners Program, applied for a Gateway Grant in September 2006.  The 
City's current Gateway Policy, which was approved in 1999 by the City Council, requires 
approval of gateway design by a committee that no longer exists.  Since this project cannot 
technically meet the policy requirements this contract is being brought to the City Council 
for final approval. 
 
The Gateway Policy is being updated and the proposed revised version will be brought to 
Council in the next few months.  
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   As per the Gateway Policy the City will pay for one-half 
of the cost of the gateway up to $7,500.  Estimated cost of this project is $5,554 and the 
City's match is expected to be $2,777 which is within the current and future guidelines for 
the grant.  Gateway Grant funding is budgeted in the Neighborhood Services operating 
budget in FY07 at $15,000 and this is the first use of these funds in this fiscal year. 
 
Attachments:   
 
Chadwick HOA Gateway Grant Contract  
 
Photo of Gateway 
 
 
 
 

 

32

Consent Item 2c



GATEWAY GRANT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into this 12th day of April 2007 by and between the City of College
Station a Texas home rule municipal corporation the City and Chadwick Homeowner s

Association Inc a Non profit corporation non profit corporation unincorporated
association the Grantee acting by and through Darrell Bay as its agent

WHEREAS the City has established a Gateway Policy through which it has established a

grant program providing for a dollar for dollar matching grant ofup to 7 500 00 per application
for use by the qualified applicant in the development of their gateway

WHEREAS Grantee has applied for grant funding under this program and has qualified for

grant funding for specified improvements to establish a Neighborhood Gateway in the

Woodcreek Subdivision Section 10 A and lOB area and

WHEREAS the City has authorized payment of grant funding subject to the Grantee complying
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement the Gateway Policy grant program and all

applicable statutes ordinances regulations and other law now therefore

For and in consideration of grant funding in an amount not to exceed SEVEN THOUSAND

FIVE HUNDRED AND NO 100 DOLLARS 7 500 00 to be paid to the Grantee as set forth

herein the City and Grantee covenant and agree as follows

I
USE OF FUNDS

The word funds as used in this Agreement shall mean any and all grant money that is received

by Grantee from the City pursuant to this Agreement

Grantee shall only use the funds for the sole purpose of constructing and installing the

improvements specified in its application and approved by the Director of Information Services

or hislher delegate
This Agreement and payments made hereunder are contingent upon

1 the use ofthe funds as specified herein

2 the successful completion of the project in accordance with the plans and specifications
submitted to and approved by the Director of Information Services or hislher delegate
and the City Engineer

Page 1 of5

33

Consent Item 2c



II
PROJECT AMOUNT

The estimated total cost of the project is FIVE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED AND

FORTY FOUR DOLLARS AND NO lOO 5 544 The City shall pay fifty percent 50 of

the actual total project cost not to exceed 7 500 00 Payments shall be made in accordance with

Section IV herein

III
INDEMNIFICATION AND RELEASE

Grantee agrees to and shall indemnify hold harmless and defend the City and its officers

agents and employees from and against any and all claims losses damages causes of

action suits and liability of every kind including all expenses of litigation court costs and

attorney s fees for injury to or death of any person or for damage to any property or for

breach of contract arising out of or in connection with the work done by Grantee under

this grant Agreement regardless of whether such injuries death damages or breach are

caused in whole or in part by the negligence of the City any other party indemnified

hereunder or the Grantee

Grantee shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from any claims of suppliers or

subcontractors of Grantee for improvements constructed or caused to be constructed by
Grantee

Grantee shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from any and all injuries to or claims

of adjacent property owners resulting from or relating to their performance under this

Agreement
Grantee assumes full responsibility for the work to be performed hereunder and releases

relinquishes and discharges the City its officers agents and employees from all claims

demands and causes of action of every kind and character including the cost of defense

thereof for any injury to or death of any persons and any loss of or damage to any

property that is caused by alleged to be caused by arising out of or in connection with

Grantee s work to be performed hereunder This release shall apply whether or not said

claims demands and causes or action are covered in whole or in part by insurance and

regardless of whether or not said claims demands and causes of action were caused in

whole or in part by the negligence of the City any other party released hereunder or

Grantee

IV
GENERAL PROVISIONS

The City may inspect the improvements for compliance with the plans during construction In

the event that it is determined by the City that any of the work or materials furnished is not in

strict accordance with the approved plan the City may stop work on the project and withhold

funds until the work is brought into compliance with the approved plan

Page 2 of5

34

Consent Item 2c



Prior to the commencement of any construction on the project construction plans must be

approved and this Agreement signed and approved by the City The City will release funds to

the Grantee in an amount equal to one half 112 of the total estimated cost of the work that has

been approved by the Director of Information Services or hislher delegate The funds will be

released in two payments The first payment will be made within fifteen 15 days of the signing
of this Agreement and shall be equal to 75 of the estimated grant amount Final

reimbursement payment will be within fifteen 15 days of completion and the City s approval of

the improvements not to exceed the total amount of the grant or the balance ofone half 112 of

the total cost of the work completed on the basis of Grantee s application for payment

accompanied by invoices from its contractor s and a copy of its check or other means of

payment to the contractor s

No changes shall be made nor will bills for changes alterations modifications deviations and

extra work orders be recognized or paid by the City Grantee shall be solely responsible for

selecting supervising and paying the construction contractor s and for complying with all

applicable law including but not limited to all requirements concerning workers compensation
and construction retainage
Grantee shall be solely and exclusively responsible for compensating any of its contractors

employees subcontractors material men andor suppliers ofany type or nature whatsoever and

insuring that no claims or liens of any type will be filed against any property owned by the City
arising out of or incidental to the performance of any services performed pursuant to this Agree
ment In the event a statutory lien notice is sent to the City Grantee shall where no payment
bond covers the work upon written notice from the City immediately obtain a bond at its

expense and hold the City harmless from any losses that may result from the filing or

enforcement ofany said lien notice

The parties to this Agreement agree and understand that all and employees volunteers personnel
and materials furnished or used by Grantee in the installation ofthe specified improvements shall

be the responsibility ofGrantee and shall not be deemed employees or agents of the City for any

purpose

Prior to final acceptance of the project Grantee shall provide the City a notarized affidavit stat

ing that all bills for labor materials and incidentals incurred have been paid in full that any

claims from manufacturers material men and subcontractors have been released and that there

are no claims pending ofwhich the Grantee has been notified

Grantee shall secure and pay for all necessary permits and licenses governmental fees and

inspections necessary for the proper execution and completion ofthe work

If Grantee fails to commence construction of said improvements within thirty 30 days from the

date ofthe signing of this Agreement this Agreement shall automatically terminate and the grant

application shall be and this agreement shall be of no further force and effect Upon termination
the City may request that funds released to the Grantee be returned to the City

No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective and binding unless and until it is reduced to

writing and signed by duly authorized representatives ofboth parties

This Agreement has been made under and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas

Page 3 of5

35

Consent Item 2c



Performance and all matters related thereto shall be in Brazos County Texas United States of

America

Each party represents that it has the full power and authority to enter into and perform this

Agreement and the person signing this Agreement on behalf of each party has been properly

authorized and empowered to enter into this Agreement The person executing this Agreement

on behalf of Grantee represents that he or she is authorized to sign on behalf of Grantee and

agrees toprovide proof of such authorization to the City upon request

The parties acknowledge that they have read understand and intend to be bound by the terms

and conditions of this Agreement

This Agreement and the rights and obligations contained herein may not be assigned by Grantee

without the prior written approval of the City

In the event of a material breach of this Agreement by Grantee the City may exercise any and all

legal remedies available to it

GRANTEE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION

By
Printed ame Darrell Bay
Title President Chadwick Homeowners A

By
Glenn Brown City Manager

ociation Inc

APPROVED

m
@
4a

City Atto y

Date

Chief Financial Officer

Date

Page 4 of5

36

Consent Item 2c



COUNTY OF BRAZOS

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
THE STATE OF TEXAS

Before me the undersigned authority on this day personally appeared
as of

known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the

foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and

consideration therein expressed

Given under my hand and seal of office on this the day of 200

Notary Public in and for the

State ofTexas

COUNTY OF BRAZOS

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
THE STATE OF TEXAS

Before me the undersigned authority on this day personally appeared Glenn Brown as City
Manager of the City of College Station a Texas home rule municipal corporation known to me

to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me

that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed
Given under my hand and seal of office on this the day of 200

Notary Public in and for the

State ofTexas

Page 5 of5

37

Consent Item 2c



38

Consent Item 2c



 

April 12, 2007 
Consent Agenda 

Delinquent Account Collections 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on a contract for Delinquent 
Account Collections for Utilities, Municipal Court Fines/Fees, Ambulance Services and other 
miscellaneous revenue for an estimated annual expenditure of $100,000.00 to McCreary, 
Veselka, Bragg & Allen, P.C. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the collection contract with McCreary, 
Veselka, Bragg & Allen, P.C. for delinquent account collections for Utilities, Municipal court 
Fine/Fees, Ambulance Services and other miscellaneous revenue for an annual estimated 
expenditure of $100,000. 
 
Summary: This contract is for collection services on delinquent accounts where an 
individual or entity owes monies to the City for utility services, emergency ambulance 
services, court fines/fees, or other services provided by the City.  This agreement allows a 
third party service provider (collection agency) to collect these delinquent fees on behalf of 
the City.  The collection agency will receive 15% for delinquent ambulance services, utilities, 
and miscellaneous accounts collected; the collection agency will receive 30% for Municipal 
Court fines and fees imposed against unadjudicated offenses as provided by Article 
103.0031 of the Code of Criminal Procedure. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: On October 10, 2006 seven (7) proposals were received in 
response to our Request for Proposals.  The review team evaluated and ranked the 
proposals.  McCreary, Veselka, Bragg & Allen, P.C. was the top ranked firm.  In the 
proposed contract, the City is not responsible for paying the collection fee unless the 
collection agency is successful in collecting from the delinquent party.   
 
In FY 06 approximately $265,000 was collected and $45,000 was paid to the collection 
agency.  If $100,000 in collection fees are paid to the collection agency next year, then 
approximately $600,000 in revenues would be received through their collection efforts. 
 
Attachments: 
1.  Services Contract with McCreary, Veselka, Bragg & Allen, P.C. 
 
 

NEW COVERSHEET FORMAT EXAMPLE 1 

39

Consent Item 2d



40

Consent Item 2d



41

Consent Item 2d



42

Consent Item 2d



43

Consent Item 2d



44

Consent Item 2d



45

Consent Item 2d



46

Consent Item 2d



47

Consent Item 2d



48

Consent Item 2d



49

Consent Item 2d



50

Consent Item 2d



51

Consent Item 2d



52

Consent Item 2d



53

Consent Item 2d



54

Consent Item 2d



55

Consent Item 2d



56

Consent Item 2d



57

Consent Item 2d



58

Consent Item 2d



59

Consent Item 2d



60

Consent Item 2d



61

Consent Item 2d



62

Consent Item 2d



63

Consent Item 2d



64

Consent Item 2d



65

Consent Item 2d



66

Consent Item 2d



67

Consent Item 2d



68

Consent Item 2d



69

Consent Item 2d



70

Consent Item 2d



71

Consent Item 2d



72

Consent Item 2d



73

Consent Item 2d



74

Consent Item 2d



75

Consent Item 2d



76

Consent Item 2d



77

Consent Item 2d



78

Consent Item 2d



79

Consent Item 2d



80

Consent Item 2d



81

Consent Item 2d



82

Consent Item 2d



83

Consent Item 2d



84

Consent Item 2d



85

Consent Item 2d



 

April 12, 2007 
Consent Agenda 

Electric Transmission Fault and Coordination Study 
 

To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: David Massey, Director of Electric Utilities                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding award of the 
consultant contract (Contract No. 07-164) with Black and Veatch Corporation in the amount 
not to exceed $108,300 for engineering service for a Transmission System Fault and 
Coordination Study of College Station’s Electric Transmission System. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends award of the consultant contract for 
engineering service for a Transmission System Fault and Coordination Study of College 
Station’s Electric Transmission System to Black and Veatch Corporation as the most highly 
qualified provider of these services in the amount of $108,300.  
 
 
Summary:  During the past seven years there have been changes to College Station’s 
Transmission System, such as new additions as well as changes that occurred in adjoining 
electric transmission systems. Due to these changes a system coordination study needs to 
be performed. The last study was performed in the year 2000 and the Electric Reliability 
Council of Texas (ERCOT) requires transmission entities review or revise system 
coordination when changes are made.  Texas Municipal Power Agency (TMPA) is also 
undergoing a system study with Black and Veatch. By utilizing the same engineering firm as 
TMPA and performing the study simultaneously, successful coordination is possible. Brazos 
Electric Cooperative (BEC) and Bryan Texas Utilities (BTU) will contribute information for 
this study.  
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds in the amount of $108,300 are currently budgeted 
for this project in the College Station Electric Utility Capital Improvement Projects Fund.  
 
 
Attachments:  
1.  Contract 07-164 
 
 
 

 

86

Consent Item 2e



CONSULTANT CONTRACT

This Contract is by and between the City of College Station, a Texas Municipal Home-
Rule Corporation (the "City") and Black & Veatch Corporation, a Delaware Corporation (the
"Contractor"), whereby Contractor agrees to perform and the City agrees to pay for the work
described herein.

ARTICLE I

1.0I This Contract is for a Transmission System Fault and Coordination Study of
College Station's Electric Transmission System (the "Project"). The scope and details of the
work to be provided to the City by Contractor are set forth in Exhibit "A" to this Contract and
are incorporated as though fully set forth herein by reference. Contractor agrees to perform or
cause the performance of all the work described in Exhibit "A."

1.02 Contractor agrees to perform the work described in Exhibit" A" hereto and the
City agrees to pay Contractor a fee based on the rates set forth in Exhibit "B" to this Contract
for the services performed by Contractor. The invoices shall be submitted to the City following
the I5th day and the last day of each month. The payment terms are net payable within thirty
(30) calendar days of the City's receipt of the invoice. Upon termination of this Contract,
payments under this paragraph shall cease, provided, however, that Contractor shall be entitled
to payments for work performed in accordance with this Contract before the date of termination
and for which Contractor has not yet been paid.

1.03 The total amount of payment, including reimbursements, by the City to
Contractor for all services to be performed under this Contract may not, under any
circumstances, exceed One Hundred Eight Thousand, Three Hundred Dollars. ($ I08,300.00).

I .04 The City may from time to time request changes in the scope and focus of the
activities, investigations, and studies conducted or to be conducted by Contractor pursuant to this
Contract, provided, however, that any such change that in the opinion of Contractor. the City
Manager, or the City's Project Manager varies significantly from the scope of the work set out
herein and would entail an increase in cost or expense to the City shall be mutually agreed upon
in advance in writing by Contractor and the City's Project Manager.

1.05 Written change orders may be approved by the City Manager or his delegate
provided that the change order does not increase the amount set forth in paragraph 1.03 of this
Contract by more than five percent (5%). Changes in excess of this amount must be approved
by the City Council prior to commencement of the services or work. Any request by the
Contractor for an increase in the Scope of Services and an increase in the amount listed in
paragraph two of this Contract shall be made and approved by the City prior to the
Contractor providing such services or the right to payment for such additional services
shall be waived. If there is a dispute between the Contractor and the City respecting any service
provided or to be provided hereunder by the Contractor, including a dispute as to whether such
service is additional to the Scope of Services included in this Contract, the Contractor agrees to

Page 1
Contract No.
CRC 02/20/07

07-164

-- 87

Consent Item 2e



continue providing on a timely basis all services to be provided by the Contractor hereunder,
including any service as to which there is a dispute.

1.06 Except as provided in Article VI herein below, the term of this Contract shall be
for one (1) year ITomthe effective date of this Contract. Thereafter, upon the mutual consent of
both parties, including budget approval by the City, this Contract may be renewed on an annual
basis, under the same terms and conditions, for up to two (2) additional years (three (3) years
total). If, for any reason, funds are not appropriated to continue the contract, the contract shall
become null and void and shall terminate.

1.07 Time is of the essence of this Contract. The Contractor shall be prepared to
provide the professional services in the most expedient and efficient manner possible in order to
complete the work by the times specified.

1.08 At any time, the City may terminate the Project for convenience, in writing. At
such time, the City shall notify Contractor, in writing, who shall cease work immediately.
Contractor shall be compensated for the services performed. In the event that the City terminates
this Contract for convenience, the City shall pay Contractor for the services performed and
expenses incurred prior to the date of termination.

1.09 Contractor promises to work closely with the City Manager or his designee (the
"Project Manager") or other appropriate City officials. Contractor agrees to perform any and all
Project-related tasks reasonably required of it by the City in order to fulfill the purposes of the
work to be performed. The work of Contractor under this Contract may be authorized by the
Project Manager in various phases as set forth in Exhibit "A."

1.10 In all activities or services performed hereunder, the Contractor is an independent
contractor and not an agent or employee of the City. The Contractor, as an independent
contractor, shall be responsible for the final product contemplated under this Agreement. Except
for materials furnished by the City, the Contractor shall supply all materials, equipment and
labor required for the execution of the work on the Project. The Contractor shall have ultimate
control over the execution of the work under this Contract. The Contractor shall have the sole

obligation to employ, direct, control, supervise, manage, discharge, and compensate all of its
employees and subcontractors, and the City shall have no control of or supervision over the
employees of the Contractor or any of the Contractor's subcontractors except to the limited
extent provided for in this Contract. Contractor shall be liable for any misrepresentations. Any
negotiations by the Contractor on the City's behalf are binding on the City only when within the
scope of work contained herein and approved by the City.

ARTICLE II

2.01 The City shall direct Contractor to commence work on the Project by sending
Contractor a "letter of authorization" to begin work on the Project.

Page 2
Contract No.
CRC 02/20/07

07-]64

88

Consent Item 2e



2.02 Upon receipt of the letter of authorization to begin work on the implementation of
the Project, Contractor shall meet with the City for the purpose of determining the nature of the
Project, including but not limited to the following: meeting with the City's staff to coordinate
Project goals, schedules, and deadlines; coordinating data collection; briefing the City's
management staff; documenting study assumptions and methodologies; devising the format for
any interim reports and the final report to the City.

2.03 Contractor shall consult with the City and may, in some limited circumstances,
act as the City's representative, but it is understood and agreed by the parties that for all
purposes related to this Contract, Contractor shall be an independent contractor at all times and
is not to be considered either an agent or an employee of the City.

ARTICLE III

3.0] Contractor warrants that it has the proper knowledge, skills, training and education
required to perform the work under this Agreement and will utilize its best skill and judgment in
performing said work. As an experienced and qualified professional, Contractor warrants that the
work will be to Company's reasonable satisfaction and of professional quality consistent with
the standard of care set forth herein, and that the information provided by Contractor reflects the
professional and industry standards, procedures, and performances consistent with that degree of
care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under
similar circumstances. Contractor further agrees to perform the work in accordance with this
Agreement, and in conformance with that degree of skill and judgment normally exercised by
recognized engineering firms performing engineering services of a similar nature. Contractor
warrants the design, preparation of drawings, the designation or selection of materials and
equipment, the selection and supervision of personnel, the fitness and operation of its
recommendations, and the performance of other services under this Contract, pursuant to the
customary standard of performance in the profession as set forth herein. Contractor warrants that
it will exercise diligence and due care and perform in a good and workmanlike manner all of the
services pursuant to this Contract. Approval or acceptance by the City of any of Contractor's
work product under this Contract shall not constitute, or be deemed, a release of the
responsibility and liability of Contractor, its employees, agents, or associates for the exercise of
skill and diligence necessary to fulfill Contractor's responsibilities under this Contract. Nor
shall the City's approval or acceptance be deemed to be the assumption of responsibility by the
City for any defect or error in the Project's work products prepared by Contractor, its employees,
associates, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor warrants that it will exercise diligence and due care and perform in a good and
workmanlike manner all of the services pursuant to this Contract. Approval or acceptance by the
City of any of Contractor's work product under this Contract shall not constitute, or be deemed,
a release of the responsibility and liability of Contractor, its employees, agents, or associates for
the exercise of skill and diligence necessary to fulfill Contractor's responsibilities under this
Contract. Nor shall the City's approval or acceptance be deemed to be the assumption of
responsibility by the City for any defect or error in the Project's work products prepared by
Contractor, its employees, associates, agents, or subcontractors.

Page 3
Contract No.
CRC 02/20/07

07-164

89

Consent Item 2e



3.02 Contractor shall keep the City informed of the progress of the work and shall
guard against any defects or deficiencies in its work.

3.03 Contractor shall be responsible for using due diligence to correct errors,
deficiencies or unacceptable work product. Contractor shall, at no cost to the City, remedy any
errors, deficiencies or any work product found unacceptable, in the City's sole discretion, as
soon as possible, but no longer than fifteen (15) calendar days after receiving written notice of
said errors, deficiencies or unacceptable work product. The obligations and representations
contained in this Article 3 are Contractor's sole warranty and guarantee obligations and City's
exclusive remedy in respect of quality of the Services. City's failure to (a) properly operate and
maintain the Facilities or (b) allow Contractor to promptly make such tests and perform such
remedial services as Contractor may deem appropriate, shall relieve Contractor of its guarantee
relative to such improper operation and maintenance or the subject of such test or service.
EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN THIS ARTICLE, CONTRACTOR MAKES NO OTHER
WARRANTIES OR GUARANTEES RELATING TO CONTRACTOR'S SERVICES. This
Article governs, modifies, and supersedes any other terms in this Agreement which may be
construed to address warranties or guarantees or the quality of the Services.

3.04 Contractor's work product shall be the exclusive property of the City. Upon
completion or termination of this Contract, Contractor shall promptly deliver to the City all
records, notes, data, memorandum, models, and equipment of any nature that are within
Contractor's possession or control and that are the City's property or relate to the City or its
business.

ARTICLE IV

4.01 Indemnity. The Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless
the City, its officers, employees, and agents (separately and collectively referred to in this
paragraph as "Indemnitee"), from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, causes
of action, suits, judgments, settlements made by Indemnitee, and liability of every kind,
including all expenses of litigation, court costs, attorney's fees, and other reasonable costs
for damage to or loss of use of any property, for injuries to, or sickness or death of any
person, including but not limited to Contractor, any of its subcontractors of any tier, or of
any employee or invitee of Contractor or of any such subcontractors, that is caused by,
arises out of, related to, or in connection with, the negligence of and/or negligent
performance of this Contract by Contractor or by any such subcontractors of any tier,
under this Contract.

4.02 It is agreed with respect to any legal limitations now or hereafter in effect
and affecting the validity or enforceability of the indemnification obligation under
Paragraph 4.01, such legal limitations are made a part of the indemnification obligation
and shall operate to amend the indemnification obligation to the minimum extent necessary
to bring the provision into conformity with the requirements of such limitations, and as so
modified, the indemnification obligation shall continue in full force and effect.

Page 4
Contract No.
CRC 02/20/07

07-164

90

Consent Item 2e



4.03 Release. The Contractor releases, relinquishes, and discharges the City, its
officers, agents, and employees from all claims, demands, and causes of action of every
kind and character, including the cost of defense thereof, for any injury to, sickness or
death of the Contractor or its employees and any loss of or damage to any property of the
Contractor or its employees that is caused by or alleged to be caused by, arises out of, or is
in connection with the Contractor's work to be performed hereunder. Both the City and
the Contractor expressly intend that this release shall apply regardless of whether said
claims, demands, and causes of action are covered, in whole or in part, by insurance and in
the event of injury, sickness, death, loss, or damage suffered by the Contractor or its
employees, but not otherwise, this release shall apply regardless of whether such loss,
damage, injury, or death was caused in whole or in part by the City, any other party
released hereunder, the Contractor, or any third party.

ARTICLE V

5.01 Insurance. The Contractor shall procure and maintain at its sole cost and expense
for the duration of this Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to
property that may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the
Contractor, its agents, representatives, volunteers, employees or subcontractors. The policies,
limits and endorsements required are as set forth on Exhibit "C".

ARTICLE VI

6.0 I At any time, the City may terminate the Project for convenience, in writing. At
such time, the City shall notify Contractor, in writing, who shall cease work immediately.
Contractor shall be compensated for the services performed. In the event that the City terminates
this Contract for convenience, the City shall pay Contractor for the services performed and
expenses incurred prior to the date of termination.

6.02 In no event shall Contractor (or any of Contractor's related companies) be liable
to The City for loss of profits or revenue; loss of use; loss of opportunity; loss of goodwill; cost
of substitute facilities, goods or services; cost of capital; cost of replacement power;
governmental and regulatory sanctions; and claims of customers for such damages; or for any
special, consequential, incidental, indirect, punitive, or exemplary damages in any way arising
ITomor related to the performance of this Agreement. The City may withhold payments to the
Contractor for the purpose of setoff until the exact amount of damages due the City ITom the
Contractor is determined and paid. The total cumulative liability of Contractor and any of
Contractor's related companies to The City for all claims, losses, damages, and expenses in any
way arising ITomor related to the performance of this Agreement shall not be greater than the
compensation received by Contractor under this Agreement.

Page 5
Contract No.
CRC 02/20/07

07-164

91

Consent Item 2e



ARTICLE VII

7.0] This Contract has been made under and shall be governed by the laws of the State
of Texas. The parties agree that performance and all matters related thereto shall be in Brazos
County, Texas.

7.02 Notices shall be mailed to the addresses designated herein or as may be
designated in writing by the parties from time to time and shall be deemed received when sent
postage prepaid U.S. Mail to the following addresses:

City:
City of College Station
Attn:David Massey
P.O. Box 9960

College Station, Texas 77842

Contractor:
B]ack & Veatch Corporation
Attn:
] ]40] Lamar Avenue
Overland Park. KS 662] ]

7.03. Contractor, its employees, associates or subcontractors shall perform all the work
hereunder. Contractor agrees that all of its associates, employees, or subcontractors who work
on this Project shall be fully qualified and competent to do the work described hereunder.
Contractor shall undertake the work and complete it in a timely manner.

7.04 The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes,
regulations, ordinances, and other laws, including but not limited to the Immigration Reform and
Control Act (IRCA). The Contractor may not knowingly obtain the labor or services of an
unauthorized alien. The Contractor, not the City, must verify eligibility for employment as
required by IRCA.

7.05 No waiver by either party hereto of any term or condition of this Contract shall be
deemed or construed to be a waiver of any other term or condition or subsequent waiver of the
same term or condition.

7.06 This Contract and all rights and obligations contained herein may not be assigned
by Contractor without the prior written approval of the City.

7.07 If any provision of this Contract shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for
any reason, the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and enforceable. If a court of
competent jurisdiction finds that any provision of this Contract is invalid or unenforceable, but

Page 6
Contract No.
CRC 02/20/07

07-164

92

Consent Item 2e



that by limiting such provision it may become valid and enforceable, then such provision shall be
deemed to be written, construed, and enforced as so limited.

7.08 This Contract represents the entire and integrated agreement between the City and
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or
oral. This Contract may only be amended by written instrument approved and executed by the
parties.

7.09 The parties acknowledge that they have read, understood, and intend to be bound
by the terms and conditions of this Contract.

7.10 This Contract will be effective when signed by the last party whose signing makes
the Contract fully executed.

7.] ] The warranties, obligations, liabilities and remedies of the Parties, as provided
herein, are exclusive and in lieu of any others available at law or in equity. To the fullest extent
allowed by law, releases ITom,waivers of, and limitations of liability shall apply notwithstanding
the breach of contract, tort, including negligence, strict liability, or other theory of legal liability
of the Party released or whose liability is limited.

BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION

n~ CITY OF COLLEGE STATION

(\' '\ By:
Ron Silvia, Mayor

Date:

ATTEST:

Connie Hooks, City Secretary Date

Page 7
Contract No.
CRC 02/20/07

07-164

93

Consent Item 2e



Contract No.
CRC 02/20/07

T

APPROVED:

City Manager

City Attorney

Chief Financial Officer

Page 8
07-164

Date

Date

Date

94

Consent Item 2e



Exhibit "A"

Scope of Services

The project will be perfonned in conjunction with the Texas Municipal Power Agency (TMPA)
engineering analysis and coordination study. The project will include setting review and
coordination of associated transmission line relays, breaker failure relays, transfonner relays and
bus relays for the 138 kV CSU owned equipment and relay systems in the College Station area.
Relays will be coordinated with neighboring utility interconnections.
The project will follow the approach as defined below.

Data Collection
Model of the System
Breaker Rating Study
Short Circuit Study
Reconductor Study
Import to Relay Data Base
Relay coordination. Brazos Keith
Relay coordination. Brazos Tabor
Relay coordination. Spring Creek
Relay coordination. Greens Prairie
Relay coordination. College Station Switch Station
Relay coordination. Post Oak
Relay coordination. Southwood
Export to Relay Database
Draft one line
Final Report

Page 9
Contract No.
CRC 02/20/07

07-164

95

Consent Item 2e



Exhibit "B"

Payment Terms

Compensation is based on actual hours of work/time devoted to providing the described
professional services. The Contractor will be paid at the rates per service as shown below.
Unless amended by a duly authorized written change order, the total payment for all invoices on
this job, including both salary and non-salary expenses, shall not exceed the amount set forth in
paragraph ] .03 of this Contract $] 08,300.00 The Contractor must submit monthly invoices to the
City, accompanied by an explanation of charges, professional fees, services, and expenses. The
City will pay such invoices according to its normal payment procedures.

Page ]0
Contract No.
CRC 02/20/07

07-164

96

Consent Item 2e



!lUCK S. \'.-\1<11
SI1lt:J)I!!.t: 0.1101111.)' ollu:n SALAln n>STS

1I0\1UWFlCf, I'FRSO.'i!\,:I. 2('''7

e<lf)}Ti~ht I\bd: .~ Veatch 1007
All Rjgl~. Rc"",,,d I uf 3

Page ] ]
Contract No.
CRC 02/20/07

07-164

Salary I'lau B& V Hourly R.(
-Tkk Gradl' ($IHo",)

IADM -- Admuuitr.bv"'JJ,,,,n... 01" 5.:8

IAdmini'tn\liVt buoinc.. fun.li,'ns for (he lirm 02" b.7,!

IncludillA peDOflnel. public rlb(\nJ;; 0.\ 74.64

)l.lbbalJi.Jf1f. VUf\...tl1lajng.uKJ "till.'" flJndl. 01 8656
05 102.<>5
Oi' 112.8.\
07 152.55
08 I86A8
09 215.29

"lJS -. A<IInllufft1lUVCUPP<'" 01- 35.9:

Oflii..'ttJUPIJ()r1indu(litlg droi.--aJuud !Ii.-cTctiul,ll 02- 40.\9
0'- 1.
01- (;0.15
05" 72.10

"Rl" -- ANIuI"ctUl\1 02 66,38

Arclllctumi des-ifl,n..artAl)"", and IURrmC"}t'11 0.' 69.:;0

of UK:'archilt'dunU fWIi.1JoJt 04 85.44
liS 120.50
(II' 109.00
O' 115.11

CNS Ct"IU'lioh 'f'\l"" 02 6295
CJI'frucUOJl $""1V4: fUnctl\"\JU. tnludln 03 89.51

l.:ooiltrutiiJI1 ntOJnfl@:tInl, Ci.)rWlnk.'ti11t ':llJ'1)..'U 04 95.63

Ir<:"d,-n,cngicnn andvroJ'" 1\'\1,'''- 05 112.<)')
Ct6 }2..90
O' 140A8
OS 150.21
09 170.80
10 lb'9.J9
" 199.76

c:n-("'I.$t'''"1[! (}I- -6..\4

}Jro\1dcRihisory BCrv1m to chC11lt1l't'aJ\bJlf 02- 96,()
ti\mt11mw ndmlhii\'l.;" r.m..:bQfU 0.1 121>.48

04 IH60
o ZO').6
r., 29956
O' 0922
08 .106.7t)

ENOu .EntU1«.'t'Ul{t 01 '.54

EJl1.1ljt dc1i$n. ana1}'$j,. wid mafmJlCl"\ur 02 81.\>3

Include", h.-tmf11ut..'tI121WI(I pwjt."" uss.i,luntc'1"IL: 0.\ 91>.45

ndudir"8- ctlginCt'r1.ng: (k-,mttnJl..'Jl1 UlaJlU$"'nlnd 04 IU.56

0'< 129.92

(){, 144.17

o. 16..\.61
08 20:<6..\
09 208.80

97

Consent Item 2e



IliAC" & YEATnl

SClIEI)I<I,~; OF 1101 JHI.\' I>IRlrr SAfAI!\' ('05TS
'10M I: OF nn; I'I(RSONNI:I,. 2007

('of>},"~hl Brad V<:II'" 2"'"

All Ri~bt.. Rt~<('{'

Page 12
Contract No.
CRC 02/20/07

07-164

!Sabry I'la. 11&\' Hour y Rate
.. TI1k {;rDdt- 'S/liollr'

EN'r u Eutt'itwl'nng Tt"l-hIl.i"an 01" 6,25

(:"hnicul d\....JII,.""and draftcli 0:;:- 8.8J
03' 63.79
04" ,,\>.33
0," 76.10
oc." 92.82
07 " 117.11
08 1J4.22
0') IS (.4'
10 )1!>.<>
<)' H.81

EST.. E>tlm.hng O} 79.03
Pr..,tftl(ott2b wh." :"Ul"A tJH c\'\u re-JidM It 04 Q:.7'7

K......)i."t..'j.;t.) "nu:t With tin>pn.'p'.Jf'.ttioo0;)1 0< 10398

prop....o1.. 06 133.10
01 I 54.5J

FIN.. FiulIl1\.'l' 02" 56.10

rr\"j«t ;h:fJUJlhnp., tllUlk:"l:d rep..'Vt1.IIp.,planlunJt .x OJ" h$.39

analp"u. iI<.'\:'vunlul];"I"-'TUhl'flli.mKi bu. 04 78.06
O 96.37
06 }21.1
O' 1.'4.7'1
08 188..N

ITS .. In"'rmaJii"J't $.;,-"J)C( 0: 45.51

In{"..rmAti......nKicncc fU1lth'»l$ IndnmJt$ tt)"#C'm! \13 7066

:1'h1 J:f>ttvo'arexnAly,,"" and 04 9076

m."twt)rL",Hn",UJU;lliOTI "lbllllin1Z 05 !JUt>
06 150.87
0" 1.5.'89
OS 15' '4

nFT .. Otl'i« Stn'h':'f1< 0'" .11.18

\\\"fd pr",,,,..._illjit. d\'CuUlull:\lllwl. .:1\"""01' 05" 42.91

8CCN.U1Ung$('f\'K'i.'1f...and t\'lart'd J,Tt)111 oc." 49.38

;;IJpervlJ()fS 07" ,<8.44

OS. o2.4b

PCR .. Pt,lIrclUc"1 OJ'' 52.90

Pt.'(NI'j'1ofJ<I'!I wh' n"ur ...nt ...lmimjtlfl1li, 02 6.44

)nrcll \'( t\('Ids. comm\\1hth:iJ. 81h'l il.'C!i OJ 77 33

04 115.3.\

05 10J.(>3
06 121.6-'1

01 158.%

OS 17204

PJf'... I:)HjtC"tC()tdr\. 01" 68.50

PJ\.-.,ffllli..l\,1o"ah.Wh\1 lrn:lltw- CVtl(o"Sia!e-d Wit! o:r. SUO

a ptt.'Iject Blld pcrronn ph1:nnmg and p:d".lIlinR 03 91.09

nuu.'ti()lt re}at",d to ph"Je,,"1, OJ 107.06

05 II'UJ

()(, I HAS
07 IN.N

98

Consent Item 2e



III.\CII: 8< VI'.A lUI

S(1IFJ)I!I.~: OF IIOURI.\' UIKt:er SA I.A KY (.X>STS

110M F:OF1'IC'f, Pf.KSO!'jNU. ' 20tr

. u .>pecuulZCd 5 fa

Lt:tt~I, A:;entif1(, ~~OfIU"lic. :'11(1related !leM"~

fM fX'OJC« 8i~&nmcnU_ Includes ,ci~nrim~

ju~'~\lop.iJ:b;,~nvin~uuentSlhJU, ()C'taJl~rapht'rJ

iB~'Y""". ~\lJk.TJnito:li, ...b.:

02
03
(U
OS
06
O~
08

U&V JI(,url)"lhtt"
(S/IIOUTI
Jt>3Ot-
]SO.O.,
]..1.1'
2H.F
2(~\,'1
288 08
64.'16
692(\
so 31
9' "
1205;'>
])6.51
16'-21
rn 9t)

GTOM
II
12
D
I.
15
16

. Nou-exempt

#'/'"$~1e'\.-ted J'k)ti'Jtit'flilate n'~I~Xd'Qpt

link' afC lIu\~('('t '0 v'nJtuul a(~JlI8'tmcnl ..~nJaoUJiry 1

vn r \ball pa}' 10 [blZinerr for tb~ pt'rfM'.HHU~t 01 tfit S~n'iC"e1. th~ '\um o( the foIJts'-."2 amuunh. onlt'\'" the

'omp",n...tiod h ()thr i~ U:dt:'d in tb", ~p«m(; thJJJ( a~sJW'b1.nt. _ _

J..u~"J ~(%<'twill be htnoo/;U:ocrunl h,1ttU \.-n»rJl~11(1 !bi'l>fi)jed 1»' Ellf'!:irnxr';: p~:N\.JmJd nmt It I iJCt..'\'nmlh.'r \IOllbthe r.de
00"''''

U"Je» U"'l$-.aJ ref)UCJ.t~ ar~ m;}~ by the OW11ef~9.11('Ifti~ e.,,{pcll'~ ((:DUipurer!<. U1.()m.~ts\)u h;.cJIIM~k.l!t)'$UI)f'kl.f1~lfl)u['

."4T1putt:rt:)'ihnn? 1\"~1'-~U".1~\"tti111t~ C\lpymg.. untl f3Q\imile) wilt br bitlal <011J 2.0 ('flh~ ka\-'lf.

r_W""'" I,'f 1f1I"cla..J "~illjl will b"billed at...'1w] C\>t'I.Th,..." ""P'~"''''' ",<Iud" Wit "",II o. au.I..", 1"""'"111I
t"lr vt'hid~ renfl1L 1de-rnli."t

C, "I'3rdpany ,el\;""" willbe bilkd al actualeO$!plus10'. __ __
F1CM 2M~nlll<CflU \"Iflt."f)JH.1"thau 60 .:Ahmdar day.: will ~ billed:.u Ok:tm\1th~U''' dlM~at It'l thtt 1"(.)«1 by SuPVhet'1

willi rlw rale ;th,,~ll)hu: 15~. Expt.tlU~ f\lr (lefd ~1ii'ignm~tlti' ~:'Irll~ I't:r di~n). admtl eXJld}~A."JI,\~
-,....

(heI1nn~ apJ:Ji~# \m.ly h,,11l(JO-k.'xU'mpiV~uld we-delim,d by 8th: l';S f'cdcrnJ W:qu." :md H~'lu 1.:"1\\onul..,.. id~IIHfi~1 \'n

rllk )!hl~l. Ovlrtm..- w,1J be bilkJ ~ »(:tual b.>uf\i cfmrp.(;d to ihi. prtlj...\.. lry Ut~,,'l. & V"",".:1. J",-1'to'\'lmd Ut ...,,\:\In.hOII,;(.'
,,~o

BtUmg,ndt'twill b(;8uh.'af1,.til..'1tUy_d.Jwh.'tJtutti ioI..-ft'1un;db). IW("Illy-li : Vl,t" ,.. (2~.;,.) r~\fl..uturK ('b3J~(.'1; dw.TI1)
. , , the ore_on of and dctivm'of<xpa1 I_moo,',

C('If~TiQhtHlxl .~ Vc.."h 100-::

All Right~ R(~'Cd 3 of .1

Page 13
Contract No.
CRC 02/20/07

07-164

99

Consent Item 2e



Contract No.
CRC 02/20/07

07-164

Exhibit "C"

Insurance Requirements and
Certificate(s) of Insurance

Page 14

100

Consent Item 2e



PJ THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES N<:rT-e-ONS'fI'lUfEAC()NTRACTBETWEEN THE ISSUING

ACORD...CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I

DATE (MM/DD/VY)

1110112007 03/26/2007

PRODUCER LOCKTONCOMPANIES,LLC-1KANSASCITY
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION
ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE

444W.47thStreet,Suite900
HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES N0:::BcTo<WKansasCityMo64112-1906 AL Y I IE EL

(816) 960-9000 INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURED
BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION

INSURER A: ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY
1058332

8400 WARD PARKWAY INSURERB :

KANSAS CITY MO64114 INSURERC :

Hueste,Chris INSURER D :

INSURER E :

-----..-- - lI'hi;llUnl;.n _u,r-'V"'lI&.'" n""'TIIO;, I"'_'I.I;. r w.., n _.'1.... 1111;. I;. ""-, _'1811 ........n.

THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING
ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR
MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH
POLICIES. AGGREGATE LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

I,NR
POLICY EFFECTIVE POLICY EXPIRATION

TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER LIMITS

NERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1 000 000

A

3MERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

GLO 4641367 11/01/2006 11/01/2007 FIREDAMAGE(Anvone fire) $ 300000

- CLAIMSMADE W OCCUR MED EXP fAnvone oersonl $ 10 000

CONTRAcruAL PERSONAL &ADVINJURY $ I 000 000

BFPD & C/O & XCU GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2 000 000

'L AGGREn LIMITAPnIPER:

PRODUCTS -COMP/OP AGG $ 1 000 000
PRO-

POLICY JECT LOC

.M!]'OMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINEDSINGLE LIMIT $ 1,000,000A ANY AUTO BAP 4641355 (AOS) 11/01/2006 11/01/2007 (Ea accident)

ALLOWNEDAUTOS
BODILYINJURY $ XXXXXXX

SCHEDULEDAUTOS (per person)-
HIREDAUTOS

BODILYINJURY $ XXXXXXX
NON-QWNEDAUTOS (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE $ XXXXXXX
(Per accident)

AGE LIABILITY AUTOONLY-EAACCIDENT $ XXXXXXX

ANYAUTO NOT APPLICABLE OTHER THAN EA ACC $ XXXXXXX
AUTOONLY:

AGG $ XXXXXXX

EXCESS LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ XXXXXXX

:::rOCCUR D CLAIMSMADE NOT APPLICABLE AGGREGATE $ XXXXXXX

=i D UMBRELLA

$ XXXXXXX

DEDUCTIBLE FORM s XXXXXXX
RETENTION $ $ XXXXXXX

A WORKERS COMPENSATIONAND WC 4641353 (AOS) 11/01/2006 11/0 1/2007 X IWC STATU- . I II?JH-

A EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
WC 4641354 (WI & MA) E.L. EACHACCIDENT $ 1000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 1 000 000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICYLIMIT $ I 000 000
OTHER

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONSlLOCATIONSlVEHICLESlEXCLUSIONSADDEDBY ENDORSEMENTISPECIALPROVISIONS

B&V Proj #146919 CSU Relay Coordination Study Upon award of contract, the City of College Station, TX, its officials, employees, & volunteers will
be included as Additional Insureds on the General Liability & Auto Liability Policies as required by contract. Upon award of contract, waiver of subrogation
in favor of the City of College Station, TX will be applicable to Workers'ComplEmployer'sLiability & General Liability Policies as required by contract.
All policies provide Primary coverage.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER I IADDmONAL INSURED' INSURERLETTER: CANCELLATION

SHOULDANY OFTHE ABOVE DESCRIBEDPOLICIESBE CANCELLEDBEFORETHE EXPIRATION
City of College Station DATETHEREOF,THEISSUINGINSURERWILL ENDEAVORTOMAIL 30 DAYSWRmEN
P. O. Box 9960

College Station, TX 77842 NOTICETOTHECERTIFICATEHOLDERNAMEDTOTHELEFT,BUTFAILURETODO so SHALL

IMPOSENO OBLIGATIONOR LIABILITYOF ANYKINDUPONTHEINSURER,ITS AGENTSOR
REPRESENTATIVES.

AUTHORIZEDREPRESENTATIVEJI'O -.A.4L. ..oIt..

101

Consent Item 2e



Insurance Requirements

I. The Contractor agrees to maintain the types and amounts of insurance required in this
Contract throughout the term of the Contract. The following insurance policies shaIl be
required:

(a) Commercial General Liability
(b) Business Automobile Liability
(c) Workers' Compensation
(d) Professional Liability

2. For each of these policies, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance
with respect to the City, its officials, employees and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance
maintained by the City, its officials, employees or volunteers, shall be considered in excess of
the Contractor's insurance and shall not contribute to it. Certificates of insurance and
endorsements shaIl be furnished to and approved by the City's Risk Manager before any letter of
authorization to commence planning will issue or any work on the Project commences. No term
or provision of the indemnification provided by the Contractor to the City pursuant to this
Contract shall be construed or interpreted as limiting or otherwise affecting the terms of the
insurance coverage. All Certificates of Insurance and endorsements shall be furnished to the
City's Representative at the time of execution of this Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
"D", and approved by the City before work commences.

3. AIl coverages provided by subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements
stated herein.

4. General Requirements Applicable to All Policies.

(a) Only insurance carriers licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Texas
will be accepted.

(b)
(c) "Claims made" policies will not be accepted, except for Professional Liability

Insurance.

(d) Each insurance policy shall be endorsed to state that coverage shaIl not be
suspended, voided, or canceled, except after thirty (30) calendar days prior
written notice has been given to the City of College Station.

(e) Upon request, copies of all insurance policies shall be made available to the City
for inspection at Contractor's offices located in Overland Park, Kansas.

(t) The certificates of insurance shall be prepared and executed by the insurance
company or its authorized agent. Each certificate shall contain the following
provisions and warranties: (a) that the insurance company is licensed and
admitted to do business in the State of Texas; (b) that the insurance policy is
underwritten on forms provided by the Texas State Board ofInsurance or ISO; (c)
all endorsements and coverages according to the requirements of this Contract;
(d) the form of notice of cancellation, termination, or change in coverage

Page 15
Contract No.

CRC02/20/07
07-164

102

Consent Item 2e



provisions; and (e) original endorsements affecting coverage required by this
Contract.

(g) The City of College Station, its officials, employees, and volunteers are to be
added as "Additional Insureds" to the Commercial General Liability and Business
Automobile Liability Policies. The coverage shall contain no special limitations
on the scope of protection afforded to the City, its officials, employees, and
volunteers.

5. Commercial (General) Liability requirements:

(a) Coverage shall be written by a carrier with an "B+:VIl" or better rating in
accordance with the current Best Key Rating Guide.

(b) Limit of $],000,000 per occurrence per project for bodily injury and property
damage with a $2,000,000 annual aggregate limit.

(c) Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Service's Office Number CG 00
01.

(d) No coverage shall be deleted from the standard policy without notification of
individual exclusions being attached for review and acceptance.

(e) The coverage shall include but not be limited to: premises/operations;
independent contracts, products/completed operations, contractual liability
(insuring the indemnity provided herein), and where exposures exist, "Explosion
Collapse and Underground" coverage.

(f) The City shall be named as an additional insured and the policy shall be endorsed
to waive subrogation and to be primary and non contributory.

6. Business Automobile Liability requirements:

(a) Coverage shall be written by a carrier with an "B+:VII" or better rating in
accordance with the current Best Key Rating Guide.

(b) Combined Single Limit of $],000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and
property damage.

(c) The Business Auto Policy must show Symbol 1 in the Covered Autos portion of
the liability section in Item 2 of the declarations page.

(d) The coverage shall include owned, leased or rented autos, non-owned autos, any
autos and hired autos.

7. Workers' Compensation Insurance requirements:

(a) Pursuant to the requirements set forth in Title 28, Section 110.110 of the
Texas Administrative Code, all employees of the Contractor, the Contractor,
all employees of any and all subcontractors, and all other persons providing
services on the Project must be covered by a workers' compensation
insurance policy: either directly through their employer's policy (the
Contractor's, or subcontractor's policy) or through an executed coverage
agreement on an approved TWCC form. Accordingly, if a subcontractor
does not have his or her own policy and a coverage agreement is used,

Page ]6
Contract No.
CRC 02/20/07

07-164

103

Consent Item 2e



Contractors and subcontractors must use that portion of the form whereby
the hiring contractor agrees to provide coverage to the employees of the
subcontractor. The portion of the form that would otherwise allow them not
to provide coverage for the employees of an independent contractor may not
be used.

(b) The worker's compensation insurance shall include the following terms:

(i) Employer's Liability limits of $] ,000,000 for each accident is required.
(ii) "Texas Waiver of Our Right to Recover From Others Endorsement, WC

420304" shall be included in this policy.
(iii) Texas must appear in Item 3A of the Worker's Compensation coverage or

Item 3C must contain the following: All States except those listed in Item
3A and the States ofNV, ND, OH, WA, WV, and WY.

(c) Pursuant to the explicit terms of Title 28, Section ]] 0.] ]O(c)(7) of the Texas
Administrative Code, this Agreement, the bid specifications, this Agreement, and
all subcontracts on this Project must include the terms and conditions set forth
below, without any additional words or changes, except those required to
accommodate the specific document in which they are contained or to impose
stricter standards of documentation:

A. Definitions:

Certificate of coverage ("certificate") - A copy of a certificate of insurance, a
certificate of authority to self-insure issued by the Texas Workers' Compensation
Commission, or a coverage agreement (TWCC-8J, TWCC-83, or TWCC-84),
showing statutory workers' compensation insurance coverage for the person's or
entity's employees providing services on a project, for the duration of the project.

Duration of the /Jro;ect - includes the time from the beginning of the work on the

project until the Contractor'slperson's work on the project has been completed
and accepted by the governmental entity.

Persons rovidin services on the ro 'ect "subcontractors" in 406.096 0 the

Texas Labor Code 1) - includes all persons or entities peiforming all or part of the
services the Contractor has undertaken to perform on the project, regardless of
whether that person contracted directly with the Contractor and regardless of
whether that person has employees. This includes, without limitation,
independent Contractors, subcontractors, leasing companies, motor carriers,
owner-operators, employees of any such entity, or employees of any entity which
furnishes persons to provide services on the project. "Services" include, without
limitation, providing, hauling, or delivering equipment or materials, or providing
labor, transportation, or other service related to a project. "Services" does not
include activities unrelated to the project, such as food/beverage vendors, office
supply deliveries, and delivery of portable toilets.

Page ]7
Contract No.
CRC 02/20/07

07-164

104

Consent Item 2e



Contract No.
CRC 02120107

B. The Contractor shall provide coverage, based on proper reporting of
classification codes and payroll amounts and filing of any coverage agreements,
that meets the statutory requirements of Texas Labor Code, Section 401.011 (44)
for all employees of the Contractor providing services on the project, for the
duration of the project.

C. The Contractor must provide a certificate of coverage to the governmental
entity prior to being awarded the contract.

D. if the coverage period shown on the Contractor's current certificate of
coverage ends during the duration of the project, the Contractor must, prior to
the end of the coverage period, file a new certificate of coverage with the
governmental entity showing that coverage has been extended.

E. The Contractor shall obtain from each person providing services on a project,
and provide to the governmental entity:

(1) a certificate of coverage, prior to that person beginning work on
the project, so the governmental entity will have on file certificates of
coverage showing coverage for all persons providing services on the
project; and

(2) no later than seven calendar days after receipt by the Contractor,
a new certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage, if the
coverage period shown on the current certificate of coverage ends during
the duration of the project.

F. The Contractor shall retain all required certificates of coverage for the
duration of the project and for one year thereafter.

G. The Contractor shall notifY the governmental entity in writing by certified
mail or personal delivery, within 10 calendar days after the Contractor knew or
should have known, or any change that materially affects the provision of
coverage of any person providing services on the project.

H. The Contractor shall post on each project site a notice, in the text, form and
manner prescribed by the Texas Workers' Compensation Commission, informing
all persons providing services on the project that they are required to be covered,
and stating how a person may verifY coverage and report lack of coverage.

I The Contractor shall contractually require each person with whom it contracts

to provide services on a project, to:

(1) provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification
codes and payroll amounts and filing of any coverage agreements, that

Page 18
07-164

105

Consent Item 2e



Contract No.
CRC 02/20/07

meets the statutory requirements of Texas Labor Code, Section
401.011 (44) for all of its employees providing services on the project, for
the duration of the project;

(2) provide to the Contractor, prior to that person beginning work on
the project, a certificate of coverage showing that coverage is being
provided for all employees of the person providing services on the project,
for the duration of the project;

(3) provide the Contractor, prior to the end of the coverage period, a
new certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage, if the coverage
period shown on the current certificate of coverage ends during the
duration of the project;

(4) obtain from each other person with whom it contracts, and provide
to the Contractor:

(a) a certificate of coverage, prior to the other person
beginning work on the project; and

(b) a new certificate of coverage showing extension of
coverage, prior to the end of the coverage period, if the coverage
period shown on the current certificate of coverage ends during
the duration of the project;

(5) retain all required certificates of coverage on file for the duration
of the project and for one year thereafter;

(6) notifY the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or
personal delivery, within 10 calendar days after the person knew or
should have known, of any change that materially affects the provision of
coverage of any person providing services on the project; and

(7) contractually require each person with whom it contracts, to
perform as required by paragraphs (a) - (g), with the certificates of
coverage to be provided to the person for whom they are providing
services.

J. By signing this contract, or providing, or causing to be provided a
certificate of coverage, the Contractor is representing to the governmental
entity that all employees of the Contractor who will provide services on the
project will be covered by workers' compensation coverage for the duration
of the project, that the coverage will be based on proper reporting of
classification codes and payroll amounts, and that all coverage agreements
will befiled with the appropriate insurance carrier or, in the case of a self-

Page 19
07-164

106

Consent Item 2e



insured, with the Commission's Division of Self-Insurance Regulation.
Providing false or misleading information may subject the Contractor to
administrative penalties, criminal penalties, civil penalties, or other civil
actions.

K. The Contractor's failure to comply with any of these provisions is a
breach of contract by the Contractor that entitles the governmental entity to
declare the contract void if the Contractor does not remedy the breach
within ten calendar days after receipt of notice of breach from the
governmental entity.

8. Professional Liability requirements:

(a) Coverage shall be written by a carrier with a "B+:VII" or better rating in
accordance with the current Best Key Rating Guide.

(b) $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate,
(c) Coverage must have an Extended Reporting Period Endorsement to be

maintained for two (2) years after the expiration of the term or termination
of this Contract.

Page20
Contract No.
CRC 02/20/07

07-164

-- -
107

Consent Item 2e



April 12, 2007 
Consent Agenda  

Wolf Pen Creek Drainage Restoration 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works 
 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding ratification of an 
expenditure of $200,828 for construction services provided by JaCody, Inc., to repair storm 
damage and to prevent erosion and loss of City infrastructure in the Upper Trails of Wolf 
Pen Creek and approval of a construction contract for the work performed. 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends that Council approve the construction contract 
with JaCody, Inc. and ratify the expenditure made to repair storm damage and prevent 
further erosion and loss of City sidewalks and utilities in the Upper Trails of Wolf Pen Creek. 
 
Summary:  A section of the creek bed along the Upper Trails of Wolf Pen Creek has 
collapsed and eroded as a result of January rain storms, exposing sidewalks and utilities to 
possible loss. Restoration and restructuring of the creek bank is necessary to protect the 
public health and safety of the City’s residents and because of unforeseen damage to public 
property.  The Engineering Division designed a rock gabion support system for the creek 
banks to prevent further erosion.  Because of concern that spring rains were approaching 
that might cause additional damage, staff determined that speed in completing the project 
warranted an exception to competitive bidding under LGC 252.022(a)(2) and (a)(3) which 
provide an exception for "a procurement necessary to preserve or protect the public 
health or safety of the municipality’s residents” and “a procurement necessary 
because of unforeseen damage to public machinery, equipment, or other 
property”. 
 
Technical specifications, plans and bid documents were prepared on February 28.  Because 
of their knowledge and experience in construction of infrastructure and installation of gabion 
basket support systems in the Upper Trails of Wolf Pen Creek, the project was forwarded to 
JaCody, Inc. They responded on March 8 with a proposal to complete the work for 
$200,828.   
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  The $200,828 is provided in Fund 912 – Drainage, Project 
SD0704. 
 
 
Attachments:  
1. Resolution 
2. Location Map 
 
 
 

108

Consent Item 2f



RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AND RATIFYING THE 
EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS FOR THE WOLF PEN CREEK DRAINAGE 
RESTORATION – SD0704 (“PROJECT”). 
 
WHEREAS, a section of the Wolf Pen Creek bank along the Upper Trails has collapsed and 
eroded during rain storms, exposing sidewalk and utilities to possible loss; and 
 
WHEREAS, restoration and restructuring the creek bank is necessary to protect the public health 
and safety of the City’s residents and because of unforeseen damage to public property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station made an expenditure of funds for the Project; now, 
therefore,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby finds that the Project is exempt from competitive 

bidding under Sections 252.022(a)(2) and 252.022(a)(3) of the TEXAS LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT CODE. 

 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby ratifies the expenditure of funds for the Project as being 

necessary to protect the health and safety of the City and repair unforeseen damage to 
the City’s property. 

 
PART 3: That the City Council hereby approves the construction contract with JaCody, Inc., 

for $200,828.00 for the labor, materials and equipment required for the improvements 
related the Project. 

 
PART 4: That the funding for this Contract shall be as budgeted from the Fund 912 – Drainage, 

Project SD0704, in the amount of $200,828.00. 
 
PART 5: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED this 12th day of April, A.D. 2007. 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary   RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 

109

Consent Item 2f



 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

      
City Attorney 
 

110

Consent Item 2f



Wolf Pen Creek Upper Trails¹

0 250 500125
Feet

HARVEY RD

HOLLEMAN DR E

DA
RT

MO
UT

H 
ST

GE
OR

GE
 B

US
H 

DR
 E

LASSIE LN

Project Locations

111

Consent Item 2f



 

April 12, 2007 
Consent Agenda 

Real Estate Contract for the Purchase of a Public Utility Easement 
Water Service Extension Project 

 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion approving a real 
estate contract in the amount of $50,000 that will authorize the purchase of a 20' 
wide public utility easement needed for the Water Service Extension Project.  The 
property is owned by Texas Hotel Management, L. P. and is located on the west side 
of SH 6, at the corner of WD Fitch Parkway. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff is recommending that the contract be approved, 
which will authorize the purchase of an easement. 
 
Summary:   City Council authorized a Needs Resolution in December, 2005, 
enabling staff to negotiate for the purchase of easements.  This, the last easement 
needed for the project, is a 20' wide strip located on the west side of State Highway 
6, at the corner of W.D. Fitch Parkway.  Upon purchase, the easement will be used 
for the installation of the Water Service Extension Project to provide water service to 
area annexed in 2002.   
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   The purchase price for the property is $50,000.00 
(Fifty Thousand and 00/100 Dollars).  In addition, closing costs and associated 
expenses (surveying, etc) have been estimated to be an amount not to exceed 
$3,000 (Three Thousand Dollars).  Funds for this purchase are available from Utility 
Revenue Bonds. 
 
Attachments: 

1. City Map 
2. Project Map 
3. Real Estate Contract 

 

112

Consent Item 2g



0 4,500 9,000 13,500 18,0002,250 Feet

Water Service Extension ProjectWater Service Extension Project

±

Water Service Extension ProjectWater Service Extension Project

113

Consent Item 2g



GRADY

COCS

BIRCH

Texas Hotel

Crown Castle
Griffin

Vigna

Hwy 6 

RV Station

SUBJECT PROPERTY

Lakeway Dr

Old Arrington Rd
Park

vie
w Dr

Frontage 6  Rd E

Frontage 6  Rd W

South Oaks Dr

Agat
e D

r

Pro Ct

Caddie Ct

114

Consent Item 2g



REAL ESTATE CONTRACT 

THIS CONTRACT OF SALE is made by and between TEXAS HOTEL 
MANAGEMENT, L.P., ("SELLER"), and the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, a 
Texas Home Rule Municipal Corporation, situated in Brazos County, Texas ("BUYER), upon 
the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

ARTICLE I 
PURCHASE AND SALE 

1.1 SELLER agrees to sell and convey a public utility easement and BUYER agrees to 
purchase and pay for a 0.407 acre tract conveyed to Texas Hotel Management, L.P., in Volume 
6997, Page 37 of the Official Records of Brazos County, Texas, more particularly described by 
metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes 
("PROPERTY"), together with all and singular the rights and appurtenances pertaining to the 
PROPERTY, including all right, title and interest of SELLER in and to adjacent roads, streets, 
alleys or rights-of-way (all of such real property, rights, and appurtenances being herein referred 
to as the "PROPERTY"), together with SELLER'S interest in any improvements and fixtures 
situated on and attached to the PROPERTY, for the consideration and subject to the terms, 
provisions, and conditions set forth herein. This Contract by BUYER to purchase the 
PROPERTY is subject to approval by the City Manager of the City of College Station, Texas; 
such approval indicated by signature of BUYER'S representatives to this CONTRACT OF 
SALE. 

1.2 BUYER has requested Brazos County Abstract Company furnish a Commitment for Title 
Insurance (the "Title Commitment") to insure title to the BUYER for BUYER'S review together 
with legible copies of all instruments referred to in the Title Commitment. The BUYER shall 
request the title company to furnish these items to BUYER within fifteen (15) calendar days of 
the date of this Contract. BUYER shall have a period of five (5) business days (the "Title 
Review Period") after receipt of the Title Commitment and the copies of the instruments referred 
to in Schedule B as exceptions within which to notify SELLER of BUYER'S objection to any 
item shown on or referenced by those documents (the "Reviewable Matters"). Any Reviewable 
Matter to which BUYER does not object within the Title Review Period shall be deemed to be 
accepted by BUYER. If BUYER objects to any such Reviewable Matter and gives notice to 
SELLER as provided herein, SELLER may at SELLER'S election, on or before closing, attempt 
to cure same. If SELLER fails to cure same by the closing date, or is unwilling to cure same, the 
closing date shall be extended for five (5) business days for BUYER to either (a) waive such 
objections and accept such title as SELLER is able to convey or (b) terminate this Contract by 
written notice to the Title Company and to SELLER, in which case the earnest money shall be 

Page 1 
Contract No. 07-1 14 
/~/gr~~p/legnl/projecfs~orms/renlesfnfeconfrnclforrn.doc 
Rev. 06/19/03 

115

Consent Item 2g



refunded to BUYER, and neither SELLER nor BUYER shall have any further rights or 
obligations under this Contract. 

1.3 (a) The City of College Station, Texas, at its expense, will provide a survey of the 
PROPERTY, showing, without limitation, all adjacent property lines, record ownership 
of adjoining properties, encroachments, easements, rights-of-way and other encumbrances 
of record. The survey will reflect any encroachments onto or by the PROPERTY onto 
adjoining properties. BUYER shall have a period of five (5) business days (the "Survey 
Review Period") after receipt of the Survey within which to notify SELLER of BUYER'S 
objection to any item shown on or referenced on the Survey. Any Reviewable Matter to 
which BUYER does not object within the Survey Review Period shall be deemed to be 
accepted by BUYER. If BUYER objects to any such Reviewable Matter and gives notice 
to SELLER as provided herein, SELLER may at SELLER'S election, on or before 
closing, attempt to cure same. If SELLER fails to cure same by the closing date, or is 
unwilling to cure same, the closing date shall be extended for five (5) business days for 
BUYER to either (a) waive such objections and accept such title as SELLER is able to 
convey or (b) terminate this Contract by written notice to the Title Company and to 
SELLER, in which case any earnest money shall be refunded to BUYER, and neither 
SELLER nor BUYER shall have any fhrther rights or obligations under this Contract. 

(b) The survey drawing shall be addressed to and certified in favor of the BUYER and 
the Title Company. The field notes description, as prepared by the surveyor, shall be 
substituted for the description attached to this Contract and shall be used in the General 
Warranty Deed. 

1.4 BUYER may at its cost order a Level 1 Environmental Site Assessment. BUYER shall 
have a period of ten (10) business days after receipt of the Environmental Site Assessment to 
review the assessment and notify SELLER of BUYER'S rejection of the PROPERTY. BUYER 
at its option may elect to provide SELLER with an opportunity to cure the environmental 
problem. If BUYER elects not to provide SELLER with an opportunity to cure or if SELLER 
fails to cure once BUYER provides that opportunity, this Contract shall be terminated and neither 
party will have any further liability. 

1.5 The parties agree that general real estate taxes on the PROPERTY for the then current 
year, interest on any existing indebtedness, and rents, if any, shall be prorated as of the closing 
date and shall be adjusted in cash at the closing. SELLER alone shall be liable for any taxes 
assessed and levied for prior years resulting from any change in use subsequent to the 
conveyance to BUYER. If the closing shall occur before the tax rate is fixed for the current year, 
the apportionment of taxes shall be upon the basis of the tax rate for the next preceding year 
applied to the latest assessed valuation. All installments that have matured prior to the closing 
date on any special taxes or assessments shall be paid by SELLER; and any installments that are 
provided in the special assessment to mature after closing shall be assumed by BUYER. 

Page 2 
Contract No. 07- 1 14 
/ o / g r o u p / l e g a l / p r o j e c t s / f o r m s / r e a l e s ~ c  
Rev. 06/19/03 

116

Consent Item 2g



1.6 The sale of the PROPERTY shall be made by a Public Utility Easement from SELLER to 
BUYER in the form prepared by BUYER attached hereto as Exhibit "B". 

ARTICLE II 
PURCHASE PRICE 

2.1 The purchase price for said PROPERTY shall be the sum of FIFTY THOUSAND AND 
NO1100 DOLLARS ($50,000.00). The purchase price shall be payable in full at closing. 

ARTICLE rn 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER 

3.1 SELLER hereby represents and warrants to BUYER as follows: 

(a) SELLER has the full right, power, and authority to enter into and perform 
SELLER'S obligations under this Contract. 

(b) SELLER has no actual knowledge of any parties in possession of any portion of 
the PROPERTY, either as lessees, tenants at sufferance, trespassers, or other persons in 
possession. Additionally, SELLER has no actual knowledge of any action by adjacent 
landowners, or any natural or artificial conditions upon the PROPERTY, or any significant 
adverse fact or condition relating to the PROPERTY, which has not been disclosed in writing to 
BUYER by SELLER, which would prevent, limit, impede or render more costly BUYER'S 
contemplated use of the PROPERTY. 

(c) SELLER has no actual knowledge of any pending or threatened condemnation or 
similar proceedings or assessment affecting the PROPERTY or any part thereof. SELLER has 
no actual knowledge of any such proceedings or assessments contemplated by any governmental 
entity. 

(d) SELLER has no actual knowledge that the PROPERTY does not have full and 
free access to and from public highways, streets, or roads. SELLER has no actual knowledge 
that there are pending or threatened governmental proceedings that would impair or result in the 
termination of such access. If SELLER obtains actual knowledge of any such matter subsequent 
to the date of this Contract that would make any of the representations or warranties untrue if 
made as of closing, SELLER shall notify BUYER, and BUYER shall have the election of 
terminating the Contract and receiving back its earnest money, in which case neither party shall 
have any further obligation to the other. 

(e) The PROPERTY has not been illegally subdivided or otherwise held, managed, or 
maintained in violation of any federal, state, or local law. 

Page 3 
Contract No. 07- 1 14 
/o/groupNegnl/projects~orms/renlestntecontrnc~orm.doc 
Rev. 06/19/03 

117

Consent Item 2g



(f) SELLER has no actual knowledge that SELLER has not complied with all 
applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, statutes, rules and restrictions relating to the 
PROPERTY or any part thereof. 

(g) If SELLER obtains actual knowledge of any such matter subsequent to the date of 
this Contract that would make any of the representations or warranties untrue if made as of 
closing, SELLER shall notify BUYER, and BUYER shall have the election of terminating the 
Contract and receiving back its earnest money, in which case neither party shall have any further 
obligation to the other. 

(h) SELLER has no knowledge that the PROPERTY contains any environmental 
hazard not shown on the environmental assessment provided by SELLER to BUYER. 

(i) SELLER is not a "foreign person" within the meaning of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended, Sections 1445 and 7701 (i.e., SELLER is not a non-resident alien, a 
foreign corporation, foreign partnership, foreign trust or foreign estate as those terms are defined 
in the Code and regulations promulgated thereunder). 

(j) To the best of SELLER'S knowledge there are no unpaid charges, debts, 
liabilities, claims or obligations arising from any construction, occupancy, ownership, use or 
operation of the PROPERTY, or the business operated thereon, if any, which could give rise to 
any mechanic's or materialmen's or other statutory lien against the PROPERTY, or any part 
thereof, or for which BUYER will be responsible. 

ARTICLE IV 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BUYER 

4.1 BUYER represents and warrants to SELLER as of the effective date and as of the closing 
date that: 

(a) BUYER has the full right, power, and authority to purchase the PROPERTY from 
SELLER as provided in this Contract and to cany out BUYER'S obligations under this Contract, 
and all requisite action necessary to authorize BUYER to enter into this Contract and to carry out 
BUYER'S obligations hereunder has been obtained or on or before closing will have been taken. 

ARTICLE V 
CLOSING 

5.1 The closing shall be held at Brazos County Abstract Company, within forty-five (45) 
calendar days from the execution and tender of this Contract by BUYER, at such time and date as 
SELLER and BUYER may agree upon (the "closing date"). City Attorney is authorized to 
extend the time for closing. 

Page 4 
Contract No. 07-1 14 
/o/group/legal/projects/forms/renlestnteconfrac~orm,doc 
Rev. 06/19/03 

118

Consent Item 2g



5.2 At the closing, SELLER shall: 

(a) Deliver to BUYER the duly executed and acknowledged Public Utility Easement 
prepared by BUYER conveying good and marketable title in the easement, free and clear of any 
and all liens, encumbrances, except for the Reviewable Matters and subject to the BUYER's 
election to terminate this Contract in the event BUYER disapproves of any Reviewable Matter, 
which objection is to be cured by SELLER on or prior to the closing as provided by Article I of 
this Contract. 

(b) Deliver possession of the PROPERTY to BUYER. 

(c) Deliver to BUYER, at BUYER's expense, a Title Policy insuring indefeasible title 
issued by Brazos County Abstract Company, in BUYER's favor in the fill amount of the 
purchase price, insuring BUYER's easement interest in the PROPERTY subject only to such 
exceptions as shown on the Title Commitment and not objected to by BUYER prior to closing. 

(e) Pay any and all required property taxes for the year 2006 and all prior years. 

( f )  Pay any and all homeowner's or maintenance fees for prior years and for the 
current year prorated up to the date of closing. 

(g) Pay the SELLER'S expenses and attorney fees. 

5.3 Upon such performance by SELLER at closing, BUYER shall: 

(a) Pay the balance of the purchase price. 

(b) Pay the escrow fees. 

(c) Prepare, at its cost, the Public Utility Easement. 

(d) Pay the title insurance. 

(e) Pay the costs to obtain, deliver and record all documents other than those to be 
recorded at SELLER'S expense. 

( f )  Pay the BUYER's expenses or attorney fees. 

(g) Pay the additional premium for the surveyhoundary deletion in the title policy, if 
the deletion is requested by BUYER. 

Page 5 
Contract No. 07- 1 14 
/ o / g r o u p / l e g a l / p r o j e c f s ~ o r m s / r e a l e s t ~ c  
Rev. 06/19/03 

119

Consent Item 2g



(h) Pay the costs of work required by BUYER to have the survey reflect matters other 
than those required under this contract. 

ARTICLE VI 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

NONE 

ARTICLE VII 
BREACH BY SELLER 

7.1 In the event SELLER fails to hlly and timely perform any of SELLER'S obligations 
under this Contract or fails to consummate the sale of the PROPERTY for any reason except 
BUYER'S default, BUYER may: 

(a) Enforce specific performance of this agreement; 

(b) Bring suit for damages against SELLER; andlor 

(c) Terminate this contract and initiate condemnation proceedings. 

ARTICLE vm 
BREACH BY BUYER 

8.1 In the event BUYER fails to consummate the purchase of the PROPERTY (BUYER 
being in default and SELLER not being in default hereunder), SELLER shall have the right to 
bring suit against BUYER only for expectancy and incidental damages, if any. 

Contract No. 07-1 14 
/o/group/legal/projec~s/forms/reales~econ~r.aclform.doc 
Rev. 06/19/03 

Page 6 

120

Consent Item 2g



ARTICLE IX 
MISCELLANEOUS 

9.1 Survival of Covenants: Any of the representations, warranties, covenants, and 
agreements of the parties, as well as any rights and benefits of the parties, pertaining to the period 
of time following the closing date, shall survive the closing and shall not be merged by deed or 
otherwise be extinguished. 

9.2 Notice: Any notice required or permitted to be delivered by this Contract shall be 
deemed received when sent by United States mail, postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt 
requested, addressed to SELLER or BUYER, as the case may be, at the addresses set forth 
below: 

SELLER: Salim Ismail, President 
Salim Ismail, L.L.C., General Partner 
Texas Hotel Management, L.P. 
1601 South Texas Avenue 
Bryan, TX 77802 

Phone: 979-694-2100 
979-764-6808 (Parviz Vessali, Agent for Owner) 

BUYER: City of College Station 
Legal Department 
1 10 1 Texas Avenue 
College Station, Texas 77840 

9.3 Texas Law to Apply: This Contract shall be construed under and in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Texas, and all obligations of the parties created by this Contract are to be 
performed in Brazos County, Texas. 

9.4 Parties Bound: This Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and 
assigns. The persons executing this Contract do so in their capacities as set forth below and in no 
other capacity whatsoever, and such persons shall have no personal liability for executing this 
Contract in a representative capacity. All such liability is limited to the principal for which they 
execute this document as a representative. 

9.5 Invalid Provision: In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Contract 
shall for any reason be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, 
illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of this Contract, and this 
Contract shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been 
contained in the Contract. In lieu of such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision, there shall 

Page 7 
Contract No. 07-1 14 
/o/group/legnl/projecf~~~rms/renle~fafe~~nfrn~~~rm.doc 
Rev. 06/19/03 

121

Consent Item 2g



be added automatically as part of this Contract a provision as similar in terms to such illegal, 
invalid or unenforceable provision as may be possible and be legal, valid and enforceable. 

9.6 Construction: The parties acknowledge that each party and its counsel have reviewed and 
revised this Contract and that the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities 
are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not be employed in the interpretation of this 
Contract or any amendments or exhibits hereto. 

9.7 Prior Agreements Superseded: This Contract embodies the entire agreement of the 
parties and supersedes any and all prior understandings or written or oral agreements between the 
parties respecting subject matter within and may only be amended or supplemented by an 
instrument in writing executed by the party against whom enforcement is sought. 

9.8 Time of Essence: Time is of the essence to this Contract. 

9.9 Gender: Words of any gender used in this Contract shall be held and construed to 
include any other gender, and words in the singular number shall be held to include the plural, 
and vice versa, unless the context requires otherwise. 

9.10 Multiple Counterparts: This Contract may be executed in a number of identical 
counterparts. If so executed, each of the counterparts shall, collectively, constitute but one 
agreement. In making proof of this Contract, it shall not be necessary to produce or account for 
more than one counterpart. 

9.11 Memorandum of Contract: Upon request of either party, both parties shall promptly 
execute a memorandum of this agreement suitable for filing of record. 

EXECUTED on this the day of ,2007. 

SELLER: BUYER: 
TEXAS HOTEL MANAGEMENT, L.P., CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
By Salim Ismail, L.L.C., + 
Its General Parher n 

RON SILVIA, Mayor 

SALIM ISMAIL President 
Date: 3-m-o3. ATTEST: 

CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary 
Date: 

Page 8 
Contract No. 07-1 14 
/ o / g r o u p / l e g a l / p r o j e c f s ~ o r m s / r e n l e s ~ c  
Rev. 06/19/03 

122

Consent Item 2g



APPROVED: 

City Manager 
Date: 

Chief Financial Officer 
Date: 

Citv Attorney 

THE STATE OF TEXAS $ 
0 ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS $ 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of 
2007, by RON SILVIA, as Mayor of the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, a Texas Home ~ u l d  
~unicipal  Corporation, on behalf of said municipality. 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for 
the STATE OF TEXAS 

THE STATE OF TEXAS $ 
9 ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS $ 

This instrument was acknowledge before me on the @ day of b h  7 

2007, bv SALIM ISMAIL as President of Salim Ismail, L.L.C., General Partner of TEXAS 
H O T E ~  MANAGEMENT, L.P., a Texas limited on behalf of said partnership. 

,,\l~~~ll,,,,, 
, LAUREN L. HARGIS a J a J l L  

My Commission Exp~res N T m Y  P U B L I M  and' for' 
e STATE OF TEXAS 

Page 9 
Contract No. 07- 1 14 
/ o / g r o ~ p / l e g n l / p r ~ j e c ~ s ~ o r m s / r e n l e s ~ c  
Rev. 06/19/03 

123

Consent Item 2g



EXHIBIT "A" 
0.407 OF ONE ACRE 

PROPOSED 20 FOOT WIDE PUBLIC UTII-IN EASEMENT 
OUT OF 'THE 

TEXAS HOTEL MANAGEMENT, L.P. 
CALLED 5.53 ACRE TRACT 

S. W. ROBERTSON SURVEY, A-202 
VOLUME 5655, PAGE 227 
BRAZOS COLINN, TEXAS 
SURVEYED: AUGUST, 2004 
REVISED: JANUARY 4,2007 

Being all of that lot, tract, or parcel of land containing 0.407 of one acre of land situated in the S. 
W. ROBERTSON SURVEY, Abstract 202, and being a strip of land twenty (20) feet in width out of 
and a part of that certain called 5.53 acre tract of land as described in deed to Texas Hotel 
Management, L.P. recorded in Volume 6997, Page 37 of the OfficialIDeed Records of Brazos 
County, Texas (0.lD.R.B.C.T.); said 0.407 of one acre of land being more particularly described by 
metes and bounds as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point in the southwest right-of-way line of State Highway No. 6 for the most 
easterly corner, same being the calculated most easterly corner of said Texas Hotel Management, 
L.P. called 5.53 acre tract of land and the calculated most northerly corner of the Grady N. Arnold, 
Jr. remainder of the called 4.00 acre tract as described in deed recorded in Volume 3714, Page 57 
(O./D.R.B.C.T.), from which point a 112" lron Rod found bears S 36'04'42" W a distance of 0.38 
feet, and from which point a 112" lron Rod found at an interior ell corner of said Arnold called 4.00 
acre tract and at an exterior ell corner of said Texas Hotel Management, L.P. called 5.53 acre tract 
bears S 36'04'42" W a distance of 46.51 feet and S 29' 40' 05" W a distance of 42.17 feet; 

THENCE, S 36 ' 04 ' 42 " W, along the line common to said Arnold called 4.00 acre tract and said 
Texas Hotel Management, L.P. called 5.53 acre tract of land, a distance of 20.00 feet to a point for 
the most easterly southeast corner, same being a point in a southwest line of the herein described 
20 foot wide strip of land and being a line 20 feet southwest of, measured at right angles to, and 
parallel to said southwest right-of-way line of State Highway No. 6 and the northeast line of said 
Texas Hotel Management, L.P. called 5.53 acre tract of land; 

THENCE, N 54 " 24 ' 27 " W, across and through said Texas Hotel Management, L.P. called 5.53 
acre tract, along said line 20 feet southwest of, measured at right angles to, and parallel to said 
southwest right-of-way line of State Highway No. 6 and said northeast line of the Texas Hotel 
Management, L.P. called 5.53 acre tract of land, a distance of 768.22 feet to a point for an interior 
ell corner, same being a point in a line 20 feet southeast of, measured at right angles to, and 
parallel to the southwest cutback line of said southwest right-of-way line of State Highway No. 6 
and the southeast right-of-way line of Greens Prairie Road and of a northwest line of said Texas 
Hotel Management, L.P. called 5.53 acre tract of land; 

124

Consent Item 2g



THENCE, S 66 " 35 ' 27 " W, continuing across and through said Texas Hotel Management, L.P. 
called 5.53 acre tract, along said line 20 feet southeast of, measured at right angles to, and 
parallel to said southwest cutback line of the southwest right-of-way line of State Highway No. 6 
with the southeast right-of-way line of Greens Prairie Road and of a northwest line of said Texas 
Hotel Management, L.P. called 5.53 acre tract of land, a distance of 110.38 feet to a point in the 
west line of said Texas Hotel Management, L.P. called 5.53 acre tract of land; 

THENCE, N 02 " 37 ' 30 " W, along said west line of the Texas Hotel Management, L.P. called 
5.53 acre tract and the east right-of-way line of Arrington Road and its northwesterly projection, a 
distance of 21.39 feet to a point for the northwest corner at the most westerly northwest corner of 
said Texas Hotel Management, L.P. called 5.53 acre tract of land and being a point in the 
aforesaid southwest cutback line of the southwest right-of-way line of State Highway No. 6 with the 
southeast right-of-way line of Greens Prairie Road; 

THENCE, N 66 " 35 ' 27 " E, along said southwest cutback line of the southwest right-of-way line 
of State Highway No. 6 with the southeast right-of-way line of Greens Prairie Road and with a 
northwest line of said Texas Hotel Management, L.P. called 5.53 acre tract of land, a distance of 
114.10 feet to a point for the northeast corner at the most northerly northeast corner of said Texas 
Hotel Management, L.P. called 5.53 acre tract of land, same being the southeast cutback corner of 
said southwest cutback line of the southwest right-of-way line of State Highway No. 6 with the 
southeast right-of-way line of Greens Prairie Road; 

THENCE, S 54 " 24 ' 27 " El along said southwest right-of-way line of State Highway No. 6 and the 
northeast line of the Texas Hotel Management, L.P. called 5.53 acre tract of land, a distance of 
779.70 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING, and containing 17,724 square feet or 0.407 of one 
acre of land, more or less, according to a survey performed on the ground in August, 2004, under 
the supervision of Horace Curtis Strong, Texas Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 4961. 
For north orientation and other information, see accompanying plat. 

125

Consent Item 2g



TEXAS HOTEL MANAGEMENT. L.P. 
Colled 5.53 ACS. 

Vo lume 6 9 9 7 .  Poge  3 7  

S T A T E  HIGHWAY 6 P.O.E. Colc. Corner 
I/? Iron Rod brr. 

S 54'24'27" E 779.70' S 36'04'42' W 0.38' 

0.407 Ac. 20 .00 '  - - -1-s 36e04'42" W 
N 5W24'27" W 768.22' icoll S36e04'41"W 46.10'-To1011 

66'35'27' W 110.38' -S 29'40'05- W 42.17' 
IColl S 29'48'45 W 42.17') 

N 02'37'30" W 21.39' Grody N. Arnold. Jr. 
Rem. 0 1  Colled 4.00 Ac.  

3714 /57  
R e f .  1622/178 

MY K N O W L E D G E .  

H.  CURTIS  STRONG.  R P L S  NO. 4961 

E X H I B I T B B  

PROPOSED 20' WIDE 
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 

~ ~ h n  B. (Sonny) Ellen. 111 
Colled 5.00 Acs. 

0.407 OF ONE ACRE 
Volume 433. Poge 20 OUT OF THE 

TEXAS HOTEL MANAGEMENT, LP. 
CALLED 5.53 ACRE TRACT 

1722 Broadmoor, Suite 105 
Bryan, Texas 77802 

VOLUME 6997, PAGE 37 
Phone: (979) 776-9836 

REVISION NOTE: 

Fax (979) 731-0096 

126

Consent Item 2g



EXHIBIT "B" 

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE 
A NATURAL PERSON, YOU MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE 
ANY OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM THIS 
INSTRUMENT BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR RECORD IN 
THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY 
NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER. 

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 

DATE: 

GRANTOR: 

GRANTOR'S MAILING ADDRESS: 
County 

GRANTEE: CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 

GRANTEE'S MAILING ADDRESS: 1 10 1 Texas Avenue 
Brazos County 
College Station, Texas 77842 

CONSIDERATION: Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration. 

PROPERTY: INSERT PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

This conveyance shall grant the rights herein specified only as to that portion of the above- 
described Property more particularly described on the attached Exhibit "A" known as the 
"easement area," and any additional area outside the easement area necessary 

to 
erect, construct, install, and thereafter use, operate, inspect, repair, maintain, reconstruct, modify 
and remove the following: 

Electric transmission and distribution lines; 
Water lines and sanitary sewer lines, connecting lines, 

access facilities, and related equipment; 
Storm sewers and collection facilities; 
Television, telephone, and communications lines; 
Drainage ditches, drainage pipes and all other drainage 

structures, surface and subsurface; 

upon, over, and across the said Property as described and any ways, streets, roads, or alleys 
abutting same; and to cut, trim, and control the growth of trees and other vegetation on and in the , 

127

Consent Item 2g



easement area or on adjoining property of Grantor, which might interfere with or threaten the 
operation and maintenance of any public utility equipment, accessories, or operations. It being 
understood and agreed that any and all equipment and facilities placed upon said property shall 
remain the property of Grantee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Grantee agrees that after the 
construction, installation or repair of any equipment in the Easement Area, any damage 
done to the property of Grantor outside of the Easement Area will be returned to its 
original condition at the cost of Grantee. 

Grantor expressly subordinates all rights of surface use incident to the mineral estate to the 
above-described uses of said surface by Grantee, and agrees to lender's subordinations on behalf 
of Grantee. Grantor will provide Grantee with the names and addresses of all lenders. 

RESERVATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS: INSERT APPLICABLE MATTERS 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, the rights and interests herein described unto the CITY OF 
COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, and its successors and assigns, forever, and Grantor does hereby 
bind itself, its successors and assigns, to warrant and forever defend, all and singular, these rights 
and interests unto the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, and its successors and assigns, 
against every person whomsoever l a f i l l y  claiming, or to claim same, or any part thereof. 

Printed Name 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this day of ,2005, 
by 

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

PREPARED IN THE OFFICE OF: 
City of College Station 
Legal Department 
P.O. Box 9960 
College Station, TX 77842-9960 

AFTER RECORDING, RETURN TO: 
City of College Station 
Legal Department 
P.O. Box 9960 
College Station, TX 77842-9960 

128

Consent Item 2g



 

April 12, 2007 
Consent Agenda 

Outsource Bill Print 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding award of a 
Services contract for RFP 07-034 Outsourcing the Printing and Mailing of Utility Bills, late 
notices and inserts for an estimated annual expenditure of $55,000 to Sungard EXP-Mailing. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the contract with Sungard EXP-
Mailing for Outsourcing the Printing and Mailing of Utility bills, late notices and inserts for an 
estimated annual expenditure of $55,000 
 
Summary:   RFP’s were sent to vendors that specialize in the printing and mailing of utility 
bills, notices and inserts.  Fifteen responses were received and evaluated with Sungard 
EXP–Mailing chosen as the vendor that best meets the needs of the City of College Station.  
For this project, Sungard EXP-Mailing will use the base bill product from Sungard HTE to 
produce and send the bills and notices.  They will assist in the design of a new utility bill 
statement that can include bar charts or graphs of utility consumption.  This will make the 
utility bills more customer friendly for the utility customer.  This vendor also gives us the 
capability to edit bill messages daily if desired.  In addition, Sungard EXP-Mailing has the 
ability to make images of an exact duplicate of the bill available to city staff and customers. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds are budgeted and available in the Utility Customer 
Service budget for this service.   
 
The City currently sends out approximately 400,000 utility bills and 60,000 late notices 
annually.  This service is estimated to cost approximately $55,000 annually.  Currently 
approximately $25,000 annually is spent on supplies (paper, envelopes, etc) and $7,000 on 
maintenance of our folder/ inserter.  A reduction in postage of $5,000 is estimated.  Direct 
costs of $37,000 will be avoided.  This will result in a net increase in annual expense of 
approximately $18,000 for direct costs associated with outsourcing this function.  However, 
there will also be staff time savings realized.  The staff currently doing this function will be 
used to handle the increase in workload as the number of utility accounts continues to 
increase, delaying the need to add additional staff due to growth.  There will also be one 
time savings in the technology area of approximately $10,000 because of in house 
programming that will not need to be done.  Outsourcing this function will also eliminate the 
need to replace the folder/inserter machine used to fold and stuff the utility bills resulting in 
additional cost savings.   
 
Staff believes that outsourcing this function will result in a higher level of service to the 
College Station Utility customers at close to the same overall cost.   
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Services Contract with Sungard EXP-Mailing 
 

 
 
 

NEW COVERSHEET FORMAT EXAMPLE 1 

129

Consent Item 2h



130

Consent Item 2h



131

Consent Item 2h



132

Consent Item 2h



133

Consent Item 2h



134

Consent Item 2h



135

Consent Item 2h



136

Consent Item 2h



137

Consent Item 2h



138

Consent Item 2h



139

Consent Item 2h



140

Consent Item 2h



141

Consent Item 2h



142

Consent Item 2h



143

Consent Item 2h



144

Consent Item 2h



145

Consent Item 2h



146

Consent Item 2h



147

Consent Item 2h



148

Consent Item 2h



149

Consent Item 2h



150

Consent Item 2h



151

Consent Item 2h



152

Consent Item 2h



153

Consent Item 2h



154

Consent Item 2h



155

Consent Item 2h



156

Consent Item 2h



157

Consent Item 2h



158

Consent Item 2h



159

Consent Item 2h



160

Consent Item 2h



161

Consent Item 2h



162

Consent Item 2h



163

Consent Item 2h



164

Consent Item 2h



165

Consent Item 2h



166

Consent Item 2h



167

Consent Item 2h



168

Consent Item 2h



169

Consent Item 2h



170

Consent Item 2h



171

Consent Item 2h



172

Consent Item 2h



173

Consent Item 2h



174

Consent Item 2h



175

Consent Item 2h



176

Consent Item 2h



177

Consent Item 2h



Thursday, April 12, 2007 
Consent Agenda 

Appoint Election Judges 
 
 
 

To:   Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Connie Hooks, City Secretary 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion of resolution appointing 
election officials to serve in the May 12, 2007 City of College Station general and special 
election, CSISD general and special election, and Brazos County statewide constitutional 
amendment election. 
 
 
Recommendation: Approve as presented. 
 
 
Summary: The City Council is the appointing authority to designate election 
officers. The attached resolution contains the names of personnel who have committed to 
serve on Election Day, Saturday, May 12, 2007. 
 
 
Budget Summary: Funds available in City Secretary budget.   
 
 
Attachments: 
Resolution 
 

178

Consent Item 2i



 
RESOLUTION NO.  ___________________________ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION,  
TEXAS, BRAZOS COUNTY, STATE OF TEXAS, APPOINTING THE ELECTION 
OFFICIALS FOR THE MAY 12, 2007, GENERAL AND SPECIAL ELECTIONS, SETTING 
THE RATE OF PAY AND THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF CLERKS FOR EACH POLLING 
PLACE. 
 
WHEREAS, on February 8, 2007, the City Council of the City of College Station ordered a 
general election for the purpose of electing a Mayor and a special election for the purpose of 
filling an unexpired term for City Council Place 1, now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the following registered voters of College Station, Texas, shall be and are hereby 

appointed to serve in said elections: 
 

City/School  
Precincts 

CSISD 
Precincts  
 

Polling Place Locations Presiding and Alternate Judges 

 1, 2A, 82 Wellborn Community Center  
4119 Greens Prairie Road  

Presiding Judge:  Laura Holmes 
Alternate Judge:  Verda Beasley  

    
8 8 South Knoll Elementary School 

1220 Boswell 
Presiding Judge:Karen Tohkubbi  
Alternate Judge:  Sylveria DeLeon  

    
9 9 College Station Conference Center  

1300 George Bush Drive 
Presiding Judge:  Mary Schmidt 
Alternate Judge:  Connie Dodd  

    
10A, 10B, 34 10A, 10B, 34 College Station City Hall   

1101 Texas Avenue 
Presiding Judge:  Charlotte Bergstad  
Alternate Judge:   Evelyn Wells  

20 20 Memorial Student Center  
Joe Routt Blvd.  TAMU Campus 

Presiding Judge:  Bill Vance  
Alternate Judge:  Olga Perez 

21 21 Saint Mary’s Catholic Church  
603 Church Street 

Presiding Judge:  Robert Bruce 
Alternate Judge:  Charles Frazer  

24 24 College Hills Elementary School 
1101 Williams 

Presiding Judge:  Linda Isakeit  
Alternate Judge:  Vicente Gonzales  

68 28B, 68 Peach Creek Community Center 
Peach Creek Road 

Presiding Judge:  Mary Ann Crenshaw  
Alternate Judge:  Carol Williams  

31 31 A&M Consolidated High School 
1801 Harvey Mitchell Parkway So. 

Presiding Judge:  Jean McDermott  
Alternate Judge:  Sally Coble  

32 32 College Station Public Library 
1818 Harvey Mitchell Parkway 
South 

Presiding Judge:  Steve Milam  
Alternate Judge:  Jean Cangelose  

179

Consent Item 2i



Resolution No. ____________________                 Page 2 
Election Judges 
 
 
 

33, 72, 74 29, 33, 62, 
64, 72, 74 

Lincoln Center 
1000 Eleanor 

Presiding Judge:  Andre Mae Steen 
Alternate Judge:  Cathy Banks Watson  

    
2C, 35A, 35B 2C, 35A, 35B College Station ISD Adm. Bldg. 

1812 Welsh 
Presiding Judge:  Dixie Tracy  
Alternate Judge:   Mike Sustaita  

2B, 39 2B, 39 Rock Prairie Elementary School 
3400 Welsh 

Presiding Judge:  Don Scherr  
Alternate Judge:  Gene Charlton  

40 40 Aldersgate Methodist church 
2201 Earl Rudder Freeway South 

Presiding Judge:  Jean Hall  
Alternate Judge:  Bill Donaldson  

41 41, 28A, 42 Christ United Methodist Church 
4201 State Highway 6 South  

Presiding Judge:  Ralph Postelwait 
Alternate Judge:  Carol Postelwait 

80 80 Cypress Grove Intermediate School 
900 Graham Road 

Presiding Judge:  Terri Miller   
Alternate Judge:  Nancy Valdez-Vivas  

 
PART 2: That the Presiding Judge of the Early Voting Ballot Board shall be Kay Parker.  She 

shall appoint two clerks or more to count the early ballots and perform other duties as 
assigned by the Election Code. 

 
PART 3: That the City Council hereby authorizes the City Secretary to appoint substitute 

elections judges in the event individuals appointed herein are unable to fulfill their 
duties. 

 
PART 4: That the Council Chambers in the College Station City Hall is hereby established as 

the Central Counting Station to receive ballots for said election.  The ballots shall be 
tabulated and returned to the office of the City Secretary for the required retention 
period.  The following persons are hereby authorized and appointed as persons 
employed and designated to handle the ballots, operate the tabulating equipment, 
count the ballots, and be present in the Central Counting Station. 

 
Central Counting Station Presiding Judge:  Kay Parker 
Central Counting Station Manager:  City Secretary Connie Hooks  
Tabulation Supervisor:  Tracy Price 
Tabulation Assistant:  Tim Clark  
Clerks:  to be named by Presiding Judge  
Consultant for Texas Voting Systems, Inc., and Hart Intercivic  
Executive Assistant to CSISD Superintendent:  Beth French  
Brazos County Clerk Karen McQueen or designee  

 
PART 5: That, in accordance with Section 32.091 of the TEXAS ELECTION CODE, the judges 

and clerks shall be paid $8.00 per hour and the presiding judge shall receive an 
additional $25.00 for delivery of returns to Central Counting Station. There shall be a 
minimum of three and no more than four officials at each polling place.   

180

Consent Item 2i



Resolution No. ____________________                 Page 3 
Election Judges 
 
 
 
PART 6: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED this the 12th day of April, 2007. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Mayor Ron Silvia 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
City Secretary Connie Hooks 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Harvey Cargill
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
________________________________ 
City Attorney 

181

Consent Item 2i



 

Thursday, April 12, 2007  
Consent Agenda  

Interlocal Agreement Election  
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Connie Hooks, City Secretary                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the approval of 
an Interlocal agreement between the City of College Station, CSISD, and Brazos County for 
the City's management of special statewide constitutional amendment election to be held on 
May 12, 2007.   
 
 
Recommendation(s): Approve as presented.   
 
 
Summary:   Governor ordered special statewide election for the purpose of submitting a 
proposition on the May 12, 2007 election.  The amendment states: "The constitutional 
amendment authorizing the legislature to provide for a reduction of the limitation on the 
total amount of ad valorem taxes that may be imposed for public school purposes on the 
residence homesteads of the elderly or disabled to reflect any reduction in the rate of those 
taxes for the 2006 and 2007 tax years."   
 
The proposition will be on the joint ballot with slate of City of College Station and CSISD 
candidates, and CSISD bond proposition.   
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   City of College Station will pay for 1/3 of the cost of the 
May 12, 2007 general and special election for precincts within the City of College Station.      
 
 
Attachments: 
Interlocal agreement  
 
 
 

 

182

Consent Item 2j



INTERLOCAL GOVERNMENT AGREEMENT  
Joint Election 

 
AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF COLLEGE STATION 
INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT AND BRAZOS COUNTY ORDERING A SPECIAL 
ELECTION TO BE HELD IN SAID CITY AND SCHOOL DISTRICT ON MAY 12, 2007; 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF A STATE-WIDE CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT ELECTION, 
AND PROVIDING PROCEDURES RELATING TO THE CONDUCT OF SAID ELECTIONS.   
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station will conduct a general municipal election and a special 
municipal election on Saturday, May 12, 2007, and shall also administer the College Station 
Independent School District general and special election on May 12, 2007, through interlocal 
agreement; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Texas Legislature has ordered that a state-wide Constitutional amendment 
election be held on May 12, 2007; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Section 271.002(c) of the Texas Election Code authorizes more than one political 
subdivision to hold joint elections; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, College Station Independent School District and Brazos 
County will hold elections on the same day; to-wit:  May 12, 2007; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the parties to this agreement desire that a joint election be held that is cost effective 
and convenient for the voters of the entities; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT JOINTLY RESOLVED that a joint election will be held by the City, School District, and 
Brazos County under the following terms and conditions, and the parties hereto agree with said 
conditions:  
 
PART 1: That there shall be one ballot that contains all appropriate races and propositions 

available for qualified voters of the three entities.   
 

PART 2: That there shall be one set of voting equipment to be used at the common polling 
places.   

 
PART 3: That election forms to be used and records to be maintained be combined in a 

manner convenient and adequate to record and report the results of the election 
for the City, School and County.       

 
PART 4:  That the joint tabulation of the precinct results shall be in a manner to facilitate 

the independent canvass of returns by the three entities.   
 
PART 5: That each entity shall be responsible for the preparation, publication and Spanish 

translation of its own Notice of Election and order of Election.   

C:\DOCUME~1\DCODY~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\ILA Election .doc 

183

Consent Item 2j



ILA City of College Station/CSISD/County        Page 2 
May 12. 2007   
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\DCODY~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\ILA Election .doc 

 
PART 6:   That Brazos County will be responsible for the Spanish translation of the ballot 

relative to the Constitutional amendment.  
 
PART 7: That the implementation, conduct, and management of said election shall be by 

the City Secretary, City of College Station.  The City Secretary, City of College 
Station, is hereby designated as the Chief Election Official and Joint Early Voting 
Clerk for the three entities for the election to be held on May 12, 2007.  The 
implementation, conduct and management of the election shall include, but not be 
limited to:  

 
A.  The securing of qualified individuals to serve as election judges for each 

 polling place, except for those polling locations outside the city limits.  
 
B. The securing of election materials and supplies requisite to the proper 

administration of the elections, and the programming and preparation of 
Direct Recording voting equipment to be used in the election. 

 
C. The securing of a contract with Texas Voting Systems, Inc. for election 

services and supplies. 
 
D. City shall be responsible for conducting joint early voting by personal 

appearance and by mail, with the College Station Municipal building 
serving and the main location for early voting by personal appearance.   

 
E. City shall serve as general custodian of election records in the joint 

election.  
  

PART 8: Election expenses incurred as the result of the services rendered by the City in the 
May 12, 2007 election shall be apportioned as follows: 

 
A. The City will first fund all costs in full, other than the publication of each 

entity's Notice of Election. 
 
B. Brazos County will reimburse the City of College Station for certain costs 

as follows:   
 

For all costs incurred for polling places, election workers, and other 
expenses associated with polling locations outside the city limits of 
College Station.  Brazos County and CSISD shall each fund one-half (1/2) 
of the costs associated with those rural precincts.      

 

184

Consent Item 2j



ILA City of College Station/CSISD/County        Page 3 
May 12. 2007   
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\DCODY~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\ILA Election .doc 

Each entity shall fund its share of the expenses of polling places within the 
City limits, when that entity has items appearing on the ballot for that 
precinct (one-third) (1/3) each where the City, the County and CSISD all 
have items appearing on the ballot in that precinct; one-half (1/2) each 
where only the City and County have items appearing on the ballot.      

  
One-third (1/3) of the cost of publication of all jointly required notices.   
 
One-third (1/3) of the cost of rental of the usual and customary amount of 
DRE voting equipment typically used in a regular City/School District 
election, election supplies, election worker training session, Early Ballot 
Board, Central Counting Station, and the tabulation supervisor and data 
processing manager.   
 
In addition, Brazos County agrees to provide free of charge additional 
DRE voting equipment, above the usual and customary amount typically 
used in a regular City/School District election, that will be needed in 
anticipation of a higher than usual voter turnout due to the Constitutional 
amendment to be added to the May ballot.  
 

PART 9: Said elections shall be held in the following election precincts, and voting shall be 
conducted at the polling places shown below:  

 
BRAZOS COUNTY PRECINCTS 

 
City Precincts CSISD 

Precincts
Polling Places

   
 1, 2A, 82 Wellborn Community Center 

4119 Greens Prairie Road 
8 8 South Knoll Elementary School 

1220 Boswell 
9 9 College Station Conference Center  

1300 George Bush Drive 
10A, 10B, 34 10A, 10B, 34 College Station City Hall   

1101 Texas Avenue 
20 20 Memorial Student Center  

Joe Routt Blvd.  TAMU Campus 
21 21 Saint Mary’s Catholic Church  

603 Church Street 

185

Consent Item 2j



ILA City of College Station/CSISD/County        Page 4 
May 12. 2007   
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\DCODY~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\ILA Election .doc 

 
24 24 College Hills Elementary School 

1101 Williams 
68 28B, 68 Peach Creek Community Center 

Peach Creek Road 
31 31 A&M Consolidated High School 

1801 Harvey Mitchell Parkway South 
32 32 College Station Public Library 

1818 Harvey Mitchell Parkway South 
33, 72, 74 29, 33, 62, 64, 

72, 74 
Lincoln Center 
1000 Eleanor 

2C, 35A, 35B 2C, 35A, 35B College Station ISD Adm. Bldg. 
1812 Welsh 

2B, 39 2B, 39 Rock Prairie Elementary School 
3400 Welsh 

40 40 Aldersgate Methodist church 
2201 Earl Rudder Freeway South 

41 41, 28A, 42 Christ United Methodist Church 
4201 State Highway 6 South  

80 80 Cypress Grove Intermediate School 
900 Graham Road 

 
PART 10: Joint early voting shall be conducted by personal appearance and by mail.  The 

period for early voting by personal appearance for the general and special 
elections shall be April 30, 2007 through May 8, 2007.   Optical scan ballots shall 
be used for early voting by mail and direct recording electronic voting machines 
shall be used for early voting by personal appearance.   The Joint Early Voting 
Clerk for said elections shall be the City Secretary.  She shall determine the 
number of election workers to hire and arrange for training of all election workers 
and assign to three early voting locations.  The Election Coordinator for the 
College Station Independent School District shall serve as Regular Early Voting 
Clerk in said elections.  The main early voting polling place by personal 
appearance shall be in City Hall, 1101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas.  
Two branch early voting locations shall be designated for these elections.   

 
  Main Early Voting Location:  College Station City Hall  
  1101 Texas Avenue  
  College Station, Texas 
  8:00 am to 5:00 pm April 30 – May 4, 2007 
  12:00 pm to 8:00 pm May 5 - 6, 2007  
  7:00 am to 7:00 pm   May 7 - May 8, 2007 
 

186

Consent Item 2j



ILA City of College Station/CSISD/County        Page 5 
May 12. 2007   
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\DCODY~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\ILA Election .doc 

  Branch Location:  College Station School District Administration Bldg.  
  1812 Welsh  
  College Station, Texas  
  8:00 am to 5:00 pm April 30 – May 4, 2007   
  7:00 am to 7:00 pm May 7 - May 8, 2007 
   
  Branch Location:  Post Oak Mall 
  1500 Harvey Road 
  College Station TX  
  12:00 pm to 8:00 pm April 30 – May 8, 2007   
 
PART 11: Each entity shall be responsible for any necessary submissions to the U.S. 

Department of Justice for preclearance under the Federal Voting Rights Act and 
giving notice of their election in a newspaper of general circulation. 

 
PART 12:  The City Manager or his designee is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute 

an election services contract with Texas Voting Systems for services in 
connection with the joint election with the City of College Station, College 
Station Independent School District, and Brazos County.     

 
PART 13: Elections called by this interlocal agreement shall be held in accordance with the 

requirements for bilingual elections as set forth in the Voting Rights Act 
amendments for 1975 (42USC 1973aa-1a) and in Section 272.001 of the Election 
Code.  All election forms and materials shall be printed in both English and 
Spanish, and bilingual oral assistance shall be made available within the 
requirements of the law.   

 
PART 14: This interlocal agreement shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.    
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 12th day of April, 2007.  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
City Secretary Connie Hooks    Mayor Ron Silvia  
 
APPROVED: 

E-Signed by Harvey Cargill
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
_______________________________ 
City Attorney 

187

Consent Item 2j



ILA City of College Station/CSISD/County        Page 6 
May 12. 2007   
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\DCODY~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\ILA Election .doc 

 
 
ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the College Station Independent School District 
this_________ day of April, 2007.   
 
COLLEGE STATION INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT:  
 
 
__________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Tim Jones, Board President    Randall Pitcock,  Board Secretary  
 
 
BRAZOS COUNTY:  
 
 
________________________________ 
Karen McQueen, County Clerk   

188

Consent Item 2j



 

 
 

Draft Minutes 
City Council Workshop Meeting 

Thursday, March 22, 2007 at 3:00 pm  
City Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue 

College Station, Texas 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Silvia, Mayor Pro Tem White, Council members, Happ, 
McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER ABSENT:  Gay 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  City Manager Brown, City Attorney Cargill Jr., City Secretary Hooks, Assistant City 
Secretary Casares, Management Team  
 
Mayor Silvia called the meeting to order at 3:00 pm 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 1 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion on items listed on the 
consent agenda. 
 
Consent Agenda Item No. 2a – Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution supporting 
the construction of the I-69 and the East West Corridor (I-14) and requesting the expansion of the corridors’ 
study areas to include Brazos County. 
 
Council member Happ recommended the language about the east west corridor I-14 be deleted from the 
resolution.  This area has not been discussed at the Transportation Committee meetings.   
 
Consent Agenda Item No. 2g – Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the racial profile report 
required annually by Senate Bill 1074, of the Texas 77th legislative session. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem White commended Police Chief Clancey on the report and suggested placing the information 
on the City of College Station Website. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 2 -- Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding Tourism and 
Security. 
 
Chief of Police Michael Clancey introduced this item and Dr. Peter Tarlow.  Dr. Tarlow presented an overview 
of his consulting work related to the Tourism and Security Industry.  He consults various levels of governmental 
entities.  He described the importance of these ongoing efforts by local officials: 

189

Consent Item 2k



Council Meeting 3/22/07   Page 2 

 
 Roll Call Training for officers - observance on latest trends. 
 Designate a department liaison with the Convention and Visitors Bureau – observance on upcoming 

events.   
 Emphasizing the need to be familiar with Hotel/Motel management staff within their assigned beats. 

 
No formal action was taken. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 3 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an update on a 
proposed Red Light Camera program for the City of College Station.
 
Assistant Director of Fiscal Services Cheryl Turney described the Red Light Photo Enforcement goals and 
objectives, team evaluation of five vendors, survey sites, timeline, public awareness campaign, and Legislation.  
She presented a video clip of various intersections within the City of College Station depicting red light 
violations. 
 
Ms. Turney noted that an ordinance, contract and TxDOT amended maintenance agreement would be presented 
to the City Council for approval in May 2007. 
 
No formal action was taken. 
 
Council recessed for a short break at 4:20 p.m. and reconvened the workshop meeting at 4:35 p.m. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 4 – Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding public 
skateboard park facilities.
 
Director of Parks and Recreation Steve Beachy summarized the history of this topic.  He presented photos 
illustrating various types of skateboard facilities, requirements, design, construction and equipment.  Mr. 
Beachy pointed out the maintenance requirements, liability and risk.  He noted that there is a demand for such a 
facility of this type within the City of College Station. 
 
After a brief discussion, Council directed staff to solicit input from the Parks and Recreation Board, determine a 
suitable location, consider maintenance cost, etc. and bring this item back to Council at a future meeting. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 5 – Council Calendars 
 
Mar 24  KEOS Community Radio Ribbon Cutting and Open House – Noon – 1:30 p.m. 202 Carson Street – 

Bryan 
Mar 24 Persian New Year Celebration – Blinn College E Building Banquet Room 8:00 p.m. – 9:30 p.m. – 

proclamation 
Mar 26 Reception for Director of Planning & Development Services Candidates – Council Chambers – 5:00 

p.m. – 7:00 p.m. 
Mar 28 10 Annual M.B. Zale Visionary Merchant Lecture and Awards Mays Business School – Ray 

Auditorium – 11:30 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. 
Mar 29 TML Region X March Meeting – City of Kyle City Hall 100 W. Center Street 7:30 p.m. – 9:00 p.m. 
Apr 3 Annual CSPD Awards Banquet – Pebble Creek Country Club – 6:30 p.m. – 9:00 p.m. 

190

Consent Item 2k



Council Meeting 3/22/07   Page 3 

Apr 4 Be a Good Neighbor Block Party – Gabbard Park – 5:00 p.m. 
Apr 6 Holiday – Offices Closed 
Apr 11 Steeplechase Park Open House 5:30 p.m. 
Apr 12 City Council Workshop and Regular Meeting 3:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. 
Apr 13 Brazos Valley Troupe presents a Dual Duck Roast for Mayor Silvia and Mayor Wentrcek – Hilton – 

6:30 p.m. – 9:00 p.m. 
Apr 16 Intergovernmental Committee Meeting – Bryan ISD – Noon 
Apr 17 Council Transportation Committee Meeting – Administrative Conference Room – 4:30 p.m. – 6:00 

p.m. 
Apr 18 Oaks Park Open House – 5:30 p.m. 
Apr 19 Wolf Pen Creek Building Dedication – 3:00 p.m. - 5:00 p.m. 
Apr 26 18th Annual Local Govt. Seminar – Austin, Texas – 8:00 a.m. 
Apr 26 City Council Workshop and Regular Meeting – 3:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. 
Apr 27 Arbor Day Celebration and Veterans Park Phase II (American Mile) – Noon – 2:00 p.m. 
 
Council reviewed their upcoming events. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 6 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion on future agenda items: A 
Council Member may inquire about a subject for which notice has not been given.  A statement of 
specific factual information or the recitation of existing policy may be given.  Any deliberation shall be 
limited to a proposal to place the subject on an agenda for a subsequent meeting 
 
Council member Happ requested a workshop agenda item to discuss the feasibility of public improvement 
districts.  Council member Ruesink seconded the motion, which carried unanimously, 6-0. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, White, Happ, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  Gay 
 
Council member Happ requested a workshop agenda item for information about the historic home projects.  
Council member Ruesink seconded the motion, which carried unanimously, 6-0. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, White, Happ, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  Gay 
 
Council member Ruesink requested a workshop agenda item for an overview of public improvement projects. 
Mayor Pro Tem White seconded the motion, which carried unanimously, 6-0. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, White, Happ, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  Gay 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 7 -- Discussion, review and possible action regarding the following meetings:  
Brazos County Health Dept., Brazos Valley Council of Governments, Cemetery Committee, City Center, 
CSISD/City Joint Meeting, Design Review Board, Fraternal Partnership, Historic Preservation 

191

Consent Item 2k



Council Meeting 3/22/07   Page 4 

Committee, Interfaith Dialogue Association, Intergovernmental Committee and School District, Joint 
Relief Funding Review Committee, Library Committee, Making Cities Livable Conference,  
Metropolitan Planning Organization, Outside Agency Funding Review, Parks and Recreation Board, 
Planning and Zoning Commission, Sister City Association, TAMU Student Senate,  Research Valley 
Partnership, Regional Transportation Committee for Council of Governments, Transportation 
Committee, Wolf Pen Creek Oversight Committee, Wolf Pen Creek TIF Board, Zoning Board of 
Adjustments. 
 
Councilmember Happ reported on the recent meeting of the College Station Transportation Committee.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem White provided an update from the Intergovernmental Committee Meeting. 
 
Council member Scotti provided information discussed at the Research Valley Partnership meeting. 
 
Mayor Silvia made comments from his attendance of the Metropolitan Planning Organization special meeting. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 8 -- Executive Session will immediately follow the workshop meeting in the 
Administrative Conference Room. 
 
At 5:45 p.m., Mayor Silvia announced in open session that the City Council would convene into executive 
session pursuant to Sections 551.071 and 551.087 of the Open Meetings Act to seek the advice of our attorney 
and to consider economic development negotiations. 
 
Consultation with Attorney {Gov’t Code Section 551.071}; The City Council may seek advice from its attorney 
regarding a pending and contemplated litigation subject or settlement offer or attorney-client privileged 
information.  Litigation is an ongoing process and questions may arise as to a litigation tactic or settlement 
offer, which needs to be discussed with the City Council.  Upon occasion the City Council may need 
information from its attorney as to the status of a pending or contemplated litigation subject or settlement offer 
or attorney-client privileged information.  After executive session discussion, any final action or vote taken will 
be in public.  The following subject(s) may be discussed: 
 
TCEQ Docket No. 2002-1147-UCR, Applications of Brushy Water Supply and College Station (Westside/Highway 60) 
TCEQ Docket No. 2003-0544MWD, Application of Nantucket, Ltd. 
TXU Lone Star Gas Rate Request. 
Cause No. 03-002098-CV-85, Brazos County, College Station v. Wellborn Special Utility District 
Civil Action No. H-04-4558, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston Division, 
College Station v. U.S. Dept. of Agriculture, etc., and Wellborn Special Utility District 
Civil Action No. H-04-3876, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston Division, 
JK Development v. College Station 
GUD No. 9530 – Gas Cost Prudence Review, Atmos Energy Corporation 
GUD No. 9560 – Gas Reliability Infrastructure Program (GRIP) rate increases, Atmos Energy  
Cause No. GN-502012, Travis County, TMPA v. PUC (College Station filed Intervention 7/6/05) 
Cause No. 06-000703-CV-85, Patricia Moore, et al. v. Ross Stores, Inc., City of College Station, et al. 
Sewer CCN request. 
Legal aspects of Lease Agreements for No. 4 Water Well and possible purchase of or lease of another water site from City 
of Bryan 
Civil Action No. H-04-3876, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston Division, JK Development v. 
College Station 

192

Consent Item 2k



Council Meeting 3/22/07   Page 5 

Cause No. 06-002318-CV-272, 272nd Judicial District Court, Brazos County, Texas, Taylor Kingsley v. City of 
College Station, Texas, and Does 1 through 10, inclusive. 
Cause No. 484-CC, County Court at Law No. 2, Brazos County, Texas, City of College Station v. Canyon Creek 
Partners, Ltd. and First Ag Credit, FLCA. 
Cause No. 485-CC, County Court at Law No. 1, Brazos County, Texas, City of College Station v. David Allen 
Weber, et al. 
Discussion of legal rights and obligations of contract with Arts Council. 
Bed and Banks applications for College Station and Bryan 
 
Economic Incentive Negotiations {Gov’t Code Section 551.087} 
The City Council may deliberate on commercial or financial information that the City Council has received 
from a business prospect that the City Council seeks to have locate, stay or expand in or near the city with 
which the City Council in conducting economic development negotiations may deliberate on an offer of 
financial or other incentives for a business prospect.  After executive session discussion, any final action or vote 
taken will be in public.  The following subject(s) may be discussed: 

 
Spring Creek Business Park 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 9 -- Final Action on executive session, if necessary. 
 
At 6:55 pm,  Council returned from executive session.  No action was taken. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 10 -- Adjourn. 
 
Hearing no objections, the meeting adjourned at 6:56 pm on Thursday, March 22, 2007. 
 
PASSED and APPROVED on 12th day of April, 2007. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
      _______________________ 
      Mayor Ron Silvia 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
City Secretary Connie Hooks 
 

193

Consent Item 2k



 

 
Draft Minutes 

City Council Regular Meeting 
Thursday, March 22, 2007 at 7:00 pm 

City Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue 
College Station, Texas 

 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Silvia, Mayor Pro Tem White, Council members, Happ, McIlhaney, 
Scotti, Ruesink 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER ABSENT:  Gay 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  City Manager Brown, City Attorney Cargill Jr., City Secretary Hooks, Assistant City 
Secretary Casares, Management Team  
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 1 -- Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation, Consider absence requests. 
 
Mayor Silvia called the meeting to order at 7:03 pm.   He led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. Council 
member Happ moved to approve Council member Gay’s absence request.  Mayor Pro Tem White seconded the 
motion, which carried unanimously, 6-0. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, White, Happ, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
 
Hear Visitors   Jessica Guidry invited the public to attend the Northgate Music Festival. 
 
Consent Agenda    
 
Council member Happ moved to approve consent agenda items 2a – 2i, deleting the reference to Consent Item 2a, 
east /west corridor I-14.  Council member McIlhaney seconded the motion, which carried unanimously, 6-0. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, White, Happ, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  Gay 
 
2a.  Approved by common consent Resolution No. 3-22-2007-2a supporting the construction of the I-69 and the 
East West Corridor (I-14) and requesting the expansion of the corridors’ study areas to include Brazos County. 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, REQUESTING 
THAT: (1) THE STUDY AREA FOR THE TTC-69 BE EXPANDED TO INCLUDE BRAZOS COUNTY; (2) 

194

Consent Item 2k



Council Regular Meeting 3/22/07   Page 2 

THE PROPOSED TTC 69 ROUTE ENTER BRAZOS COUNTY; AND (3) THE PROPOSED EAST WEST 
CORRIDOR INCLUDE BRAZOS COUNTY. 
 
2b.  Approved by common consent Ordinance No. 2966 amending Chapter 10, “Traffic Code,” to restrict parking 
on both sides of Victoria Avenue between Rock Prairie Road and SH 40 (William D. Fitch Parkway), so bike lanes 
can be added. 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 10, “TRAFFIC CODE”, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY AMENDING CERTAIN SECTIONS AS SET OUT 
BELOW; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; DECLARING A PENALTY. 
 
2c.  Approved by common consent the renewal of an annual price agreement for Janitorial Supplies, bid #06-44, in 
the amount of $54,498.31. 
 
2d.  Approved by common consent Resolution No. 3-22-2007-2d determining the public necessity to acquire 
right-of-way and easement interests for the Rock Prairie Road Widening Design and ROW Project. 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, RELATING TO: 
(1) THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY TO INITIATE, COMPLETE, AND ACQUIRE, BY PURCHASE OR 
CONDEMNATION, RIGHT-OF-WAY AND EASEMENT INTEREST IN CERTAIN PROPERTY FOR THE 
ROCK PRAIRIE ROAD WIDENING PROJECT; (2) A DECLARATION THAT PUBLIC NECESSITY EXISTS 
FOR THE CITY TO ACQUIRE SUCH INTEREST, THROUGH PURCHASE OR CONDEMNATION; AND (3) 
ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES FOR THE ACQUISITION OF SUCH INTEREST IN THE PROPERTY. 
 
2e.  Approved by common consent a contract with Information Station Specialists for the purchase and 
construction of a secondary low power AM emergency advisory radio transmitter and flashing beacons and 
associated radio and solar power units for advisory signs in an amount not to exceed $82,980. 
 
2f.  Approved by common consent the second reading of an ordinance approving a non-exclusive gas and oil 
gathering franchise agreement with Energy Transfer Corporation. 
 
2g.  Approved by common consent racial profile report required annually by Senate Bill 1074, of the Texas 77th 
legislative session. 
 
2h. Approved by common consent a bid award for the purchase of various padmount transformers maintained in 
inventory to HD Supply for $43,050.00 and KBS Electrical for $16,875.00 for total expenditures of $59,925.00.  
Bid #07-57 
 
2i.  Approved by common consent minutes for the College Station City Council Workshop and Regular Meeting of 
March 8, 2007. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 1 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 
amending the Comprehensive Land Use Plan for one 5-acre lot from Single Family Residential Medium 
Density to Planned Development, located at 1850 William D. Fitch Parkway. 
 
Council members considered Regular Agenda Item No. 1 and Regular Agenda Item No. 2 collectively. 

195

Consent Item 2k



Council Regular Meeting 3/22/07   Page 3 

Staff Planner Crissy Hartl noted that the Planning and Development Services received a letter from the applicant 
requesting that the current application remain active and this item be remanded back to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission for further discussion of both the comprehensive plan amendment the rezoning request including site 
details. 
 
Council member Happ moved to refer Regular Agenda Item No. 1 and Regular Agenda Item No. 2 back to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission for further discussion of both the comprehensive plan amendment and the 
rezoning request including site details.  Mayor Pro Tem White seconded the motion, which carried unanimously, 
6-0. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, White, Happ, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  Gay 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 2 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 
rezoning one 5-acre lot from A-O (Agricultural Open) to PDD (Planned Development District), located at 
1850 William D. Fitch Parkway. 
 
Refer to Regular Agenda Item No. 1. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 3 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 
amending the Comprehensive Land Use Plan from Single Family Residential, High Density to a mix of 
Neighborhood Retail, Residential Attached, and Planned Development for 110 lots on 89.563 acres of the 
property generally surrounded by FM 2818, Holleman Drive West, Jones Butler Road, and Luther West. 
 
Staff Planner Lindsay Boyer presented a staff report regarding the rezoning application.  The Planning and Zoning 
Commission and staff recommenced approval of the proposed ordinance.   
Mayor Silvia opened the public hearing. 
 
Michael Wild, 601 Luther West, spoke in favor of the proposed ordinance amending the Comprehensive Land Use 
Plan. 
 
Mayor Silvia closed the public hearing. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem White moved to approve Ordinance No. 2967 amending the Comprehensive Land Use Plan from 
Single-Family Residential High Density to a mix of Neighborhood Retail, Residential attached, and Planned 
Development for 110 lots on 89.563 acres located on FM 2818, Holleman Drive West, Jones Butler Road, and 
Luther West. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, White, Happ, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  Gay 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, BY AMENDING THE COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN, FOR THE AREA GENERALLY 
SURROUNDED BY FM 2818, HOLLEMAN DRIVE WEST, JONES BULTER ROAD, AND LUTHER WEST, 

196

Consent Item 2k



Council Regular Meeting 3/22/07   Page 4 

PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.  The 89.563 acres generally surrounded by FM 2818, Holleman Drive West, Jones Butler Road, and Luther 
West is amended from Single Family Residential - High Density to Residential Attached, Planned Development 
and Retail Neighborhood.   
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 4 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 
rezoning .52 acres from R-1 (Single-Family Residential) to R-4 (Multi-Family Residential), located at 701 
Luther Street West.  
 
Staff Planner Lindsay Boyer provided an overview of the proposed ordinance.  The Planning and Zoning 
Commission and staff recommended approval of the rezoning request.  Ms. Boyer noted that the Planning and 
Zoning Commission request that the proposed rezoning and the neighboring property share one access. 
 
Mayor Silvia opened the public hearing. 
 
The following citizens addressed the City Council regarding the proposed rezoning. 
 
Michael Wild, 601 Luther West  
Sandra Novosad, property owner  
 
Mayor Silvia closed the public hearing. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem White moved to approve Ordinance No. 2968 rezoning .52 acres from R-1 Single-Family 
Residential to R-4 Multi-Family Residential, located at 701 Luther Street West.  Council member Happ seconded 
the motion, which carried unanimously, 6-0. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, White, Happ, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  Gay 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12, “UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE,” SECTION 4.2, 
“OFFICIAL ZONING MAP” OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, BY CHANGING THE ZONING DISTRICT BOUNDARIES AFFECTING CERTAIN PROPERTIES; 
DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 5 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 
rezoning 3.13 acres from C-1 (General Commercial) to R-4 (Multi-Family) and A-O (Agricultural Open) 
located at 1505 University Drive, just north of Home Depot. 
 
Planning Administrator Molly Hitchcock described this item.  The Planning and Zoning Commission heard this 
item on March 1, 2007.  At that meeting, a motion to recommend denial of the rezoning request failed by a vote of 
3-4.  Staff recommended approval of the proposed rezoning. 
 
Mayor Silvia opened the public hearing. 
 
The following citizen addressed the City Council regarding the proposed rezoning. 

197

Consent Item 2k



Council Regular Meeting 3/22/07   Page 5 

Robert Todd, 2902 Burning Tree, Bryan  
 
Mayor Silvia closed the public hearing. 
 
Council member Happ moved to approve Ordinance No. 2969 rezoning 3.13 acres from C-1 General Commercial 
to R-4 Multi-Family and A-O Agricultural Open located at 1505 University Drive.  Council member Scotti 
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously, 6-0. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, White, Happ, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  Gay 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12, “UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE,” SECTION 4.2, 
“OFFICIAL ZONING MAP,” OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, BY CHANGING THE ZONING DISTRICT BOUDARIES AFFECTING CERTAIN PROPERTIES; 
DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 6 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 
rezoning 1.996 acres from  A-O (Agricultural Open) to A-OR (Rural Residential), located at 3105 Freneau 
Drive. 
 
Acting Director of Planning and Development Services Lance Simms described the proposed ordinance rezoning 
1.996 acres from A-O Agricultural Open to A-OR Rural Residential, located at 3105 Freneau Drive.  The Planning 
and Zoning Commission and staff recommended approval of the proposed rezoning. 
 
Mayor Silvia opened the public hearing. 
 
The following citizen addressed the City Council regarding the proposed rezoning. 
 
Chris Galindo, 3107 Rolling Glen, Bryan 
 
Mayor Silvia closed the public hearing. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem White moved to approve Ordinance No. 2970 rezoning 1.996 acres from A-O Agricultural Open 
to A-OR Rural Residential, located at 3105 Freneau Drive.  Council member Happ seconded the motion, which 
carried unanimously 6-0. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, White, Happ, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  Gay 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12, “UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE,” SECTION 4.2, 
“OFFICIAL ZONING MAP,” OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, BY CHANGING THE ZONING DISTRICT BOUNDARIES AFFECTING CERTAIN PROPERTIES; 
DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

198

Consent Item 2k



Council Regular Meeting 3/22/07   Page 6 

Regular Agenda Item No. 7 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a 
memorandum of understanding to sell the Spring Creek Business Park tract. 
 
Deputy City Manager Terry L. Childers noted that the City of College Station has been approached to consider 
selling the Spring Creek Business Park tract to St. Joseph Health System to develop the tract as a medical district 
related development.  Staff produced a Memorandum of Understanding for Council consideration regarding the 
potential sale of Spring Creek Business Park tract.  Mr. Childers recommended the language "title commitment" be 
added to Item 2b in the Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
Council member Happ moved to approve the Memorandum of Understanding with the proposed changes to Item 
2b, Memorandum of Understanding.  Council member Scotti seconded the motion, which carried by a vote of 5-0-
1. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, Happ, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  Gay 
ABSTAINED:  White 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 8 -- The City Council may convene the executive session following the regular 
meeting to discuss matters posted on the executive session agenda for March 22, 2007. 
 
At 8:06 pm, Mayor Silvia announced in open session that the City Council would reconvene into exertive session 
pursuant to Sections 551.071 and 551.087 of the Open Meetings Act, to seek the advice of our city attorney and 
economic development negotiations. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 9 -- Final action on executive session, if necessary. 
 
Council concluded executive session at 9:10 pm.  No action was taken.   
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 10 --Adjourn. 
 
Councilmember Scotti made the motion to adjourn at 9:10 pm, Thursday March 22, 2007.  Councilmember Happ 
seconded the motion which carried unanimously, 6-0, Councilmember Gay absent.  
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 12th day of April, 2007. 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED: 
 
___________________________    _______________________ 
City Secretary Connie Hooks     Mayor Ron Silvia 

199

Consent Item 2k



 
MINUTES  

COLLEGE STATION CITY COUNCIL  
AND CEMETERY COMMITTEE 

JOINT MEETING  
Thursday, February 1, 2007, 11:30 AM 

Council Chambers 
1101 Texas Avenue 

 
 

Council Present: Ron Silvia, Mayor; Ben White, Mayor Pro-tem, Council Member Place 1; John 
Happ, Council Member Place 2; Ron Gay, Council Member Place 3; Lynn 
McIlhaney, Council Member Place 4;  Chris Scotti, Council Member Place 5; 
David Ruesink, Council Member Place 6 

 
Members Present: Sarah Adams, Chairperson; Randy Matson; David Chester; Joe Wallace; Don 

Braune; Kevin Myers; James Batenhorst; R.C Slocum; Weldon Kruger 
 
Members Absent: Virginia Reese 
 
Staff Present: Ross Albrecht, Forestry Superintendent; Steve Beachy, Director;  
 Ric Ploeger, Assistant Parks & Recreation Director; Glenn Brown, City 

Manager; Terry Childers, Deputy City Manager; Kathy Merrill, Assistant City 
Manager;  Courtney Kennedy, Budget & Management Analyst; Becky Nugent, 
City Communications Director; Phillip Guillen, Assistant Director, Fiscal 
Service; 

  Connie Hooks, City Secretary; Vonn Casares, Assistant City Secretary;  
Amanda Putz, Parks Secretary; Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer; Harvey 
Cargill, City Attorney 

  
Visitors Present: Michael Martin, Project Manager - Edwards & Kelcey 
 Suzette Stoler - Edwards & Kelcey 
 Dick Birdwell, 3 Forest Dr., College Station, TX 
 
1. Call to order:  The meeting was called to order at 11:40 a.m. 
   
2.  Presentation, possible action, and discussion on the proposed Master Plan and Phase I concepts for 
  the new municipal cemetery.   
 
 Cemetery Committee Chairman Sarah Adams gave a brief status report of  the project to date.  
 Michael Martin and Suzette Stoler from Edwards and Kelcey presented a display of power point 
 slides depicting the conceptual Master Plan.    
 
 Numerous questions were raised by Councilmembers about the conceptual plan. Concerns related to 
 sufficient parking, maintenance, security, financial assistance from TAMU.     

200

Consent Item 2k



Joint Meeting Council and Cemetery Committee   Page 2 
Thursday February 1, 2007  
 
 
Councilmember McIlhaney made a motion to approve the conceptual master plan as presented and direct the 
Cemetery Committee and staff to begin working on the schematics design and report back to the Council 
regarding the proforma.  Councilmember Gay seconded the motion which carried unanimously, 7-0.   
 
Hearing no objection, the meeting adjourned at 1:15 pm.   
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 12th day of April, 2007.   
 
 
        APPROVED:  
 
        _________________________ 
        Mayor Ron Silvia  
ATTEST:  
 
__________________________ 
City Secretary Connie Hooks  
 

201

Consent Item 2k



 
MINUTES 

COLLEGE STATION CITY COUNCIL 
Mini Retreat Session 

Tuesday, February 27, 2007 
Carter Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant 

College Station, Texas 
 

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Silvia, Mayor Pro Tem White, 
Councilmembers Happ, Scotti, Gay, Ruesink, McIlhaney, Scotti  
 
STAFF PRESENT:  City Manager Brown, Deputy City Manager Childers, Assistant City 
Manager Merrill, Chief Financial Officer Kersten, Executive Assistant Miguel, City Attorney 
Cargill, Jr., City Secretary Hooks, First Assistant City Attorney Robinson   
 
Mayor opened the meeting at 8:39 am.  City Manager Brown made introductory remarks about 
the retreat agenda.  His goal was for the City Council to have this time to focus on items that 
related to operations as well as strategic and capital projects.  
 
Deputy City Manager Childers discussed the concept of the management planning system.   
City Council reviewed the key Strategic Issues.  They identifed changes, modifications, and 
additions.   
.  

 Sustainable growth and quality development in College Station:  Council consented to 
adding the word "manageable" to the Strategic Issue Sustainable Growth 

 Transportation and Mobility:  Comments about multi modal center, and public and 
private transportation options. 

 Economic Development and Fiscal Vitality:  Council made coments to add a goal to 
explore allowing more uses certain parameters, sign requirements, metal or fabricated 
buildings in city.   Establish a Small Business Council to meet with staff, David Gwin  
and give Council feedback.    

 Public Safety:  Interoperability to city wide radio system goals and future Fire and Police 
locations/staffing.   

 Quality of Life:   Council pointed out that this term is very broad  
 Communications:  Increase Channel 19 programming  

       Partner with RVP  
       Better communications with homeowner associations, neighborhood  
       meetings 
       Citizens have access to website  

202

Consent Item 2k



City Council Mini Retreat  Page 2 
Tuesday, February 27, 2007  

        Utilize Channel 19 to promote Strategic plan, city projects, educate  
        public, state of the City, create new shows  
        Central spokesperson  
        Find ways to survey citizens/businesses re: customer service  

 Operational       Evaluation critical to success.  Feedback from citizens.   
 
 

Staff was directed to publish the Strategic Plan in an Executive summary for citizens and 
employees.   

 
At 11:45 am,  Council recessed for lunch break.  They returned at 12:00 pm to continue the 
session.   
 
Hayden Migl, Assistant to the City Manager, made a presentation related to the Quality of Life 
Strategic Issue.  He presented a paper illustrating the Quality of Life Index.  That included 
indicators that define and measure Quality of Life in College Station.  It focused on factors 
primarily under the control of City government, but also included Qulity of life factors 
influenced by other community partners.   
 
Chief Financial Officer Jeff Kersten presented current budget policies such as the revenue 
management policy, debt management policy, and financial conditions, reserves and stability 
ratios.   He discussed the FY 08 budget parameters.   Council concurred with the policy 
statements.   
 
Councilmembers acknowledged that a transportation user fee may be an option to consider 
during the budget process to assist in the payment of at least $37 million worth of transportation 
projects.   
 
Mr. Kersten explained that the sales tax revenues had not met the projections in this year's 
budget and the staff is currently considering alternatives to address the possible shortfall of 
$400,000.   
 
Following concluding statements by City Manager Brown, Councilmember Happ made a motion 
to adjourn the session at 2:33 pm.  Motion seconded by Councilmember Gay which carried 
unanimously, 7-0.  
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 12th day of April, 2007.  
 
       APPROVED:  
 
       ______________________ 
       Mayor Ron Silvia  
ATTEST:  
 
_________________________ 
City Secretary Connie Hooks  

203

Consent Item 2k



12 April 2007 
Regular Agenda  

 2006 International Building Code / 2005 National Electrical Code Adoption 
 
 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning & Development services 
 
Agenda Caption: Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an 
ordinance amending Chapter 3, “Building Regulations”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City 
of College Station, Texas by adopting the 2006 International Building Code with related 
amendments and the 2005 National Electrical Code with related amendments.  
 
Recommendation: The Construction Board of Adjustments and Appeals unanimously 
recommends adoption of the codes and local amendments as presented.  Staff also 
recommends approval.  
 
Summary: The City of College Station currently uses the 2003 edition of the International 
family of building codes (I-Codes) and the 2002 edition of the National Electrical Code 
(NEC).  The International Code Council and National Fire Protection Association issue 
updated code editions every three years. The 2006 edition of the I-Codes and the 2005 
edition of the NEC have been published and are available for adoption by municipalities 
nationwide. The changes included in the 2006 I-Codes and the 2005 NEC help clarify intent 
and strengthen requirements designed to safeguard the public health, safety and general 
welfare. 
 
The 2006 I-Code review process incorporated several public meetings.  The Construction 
Board review process consisted of three separate meetings – each meeting included a public 
hearing.  Staff also presented an overview of the changes contained in the 2006 
International Residential Code to representatives of the local Homebuilders Association and 
involved local design professionals in the review of the 2006 International Building Code.   
 
The adoption of the 2006 I-Codes and the 2005 NEC is also a key component of Planning 
and Development Services’ Management Plan and supports the Strategic Issue of 
“Sustainable Growth and Development”.   
 
   
Attachments: 
 

1. Summary of Significant Changes 
2.  Ordinance  

204

Regular Item 1



 
 
 

2006 INTERNATIONAL CODES 
2005 NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
 

 
 
2006 International Fuel Gas Code Section 505.1.1 – Commercial Cooking Appliances 
Vented By Exhaust Hoods (A new exception was added to address new technology that 
will automatically start the hood system whenever cooking occurs, thereby making an 
interlock unnecessary.  Text was added to specifically prohibit bypass piping for solenoid 
valves used in appliance/hood interlock arrangements.) 

 
2006 International Plumbing Code Section 310.5 – Urinal Partitions (Provisions added 
to require partitions between urinals.  Exceptions exempt single occupant or unisex toilet 
rooms with a lockable door and exempt a single urinal in a daycare or child care facilities 
with two or more urinals.) 

 
2006 International Plumbing Code Section 421.5 – Access To Pump (A new section is 
added to address the access requirements for whirlpool tub circulation pumps.  A 12-inch 
by 12-inch minimum sized opening shall be installed to provide access to the circulation 
pump, and where pumps are located more than 2 feet from the access opening, an 18-
inch by 18-inch minimum sized opening shall be installed.) 

 
2006 International Building Code Section 903.2.1.2 – Group A-2 (Lowered the 
threshold for sprinklers for A-2 occupancies (Bars and Restaurants) from 300 occupants 
to 100 occupants.) 

 
2006 International Residential Code Section R613.2 – Window Sills (Added the 
requirement that the lowest part of clear openings of the window shall be 24” above the 
finish floor when located more than 72” above the finished grade or surface below.) 

 
2006 International Residential Code Section R702.4.2 – Cement, fiber-cement, and 
glass mat gypsum backers (This new section requires cement, fiber-cement, or glass mat 
gypsum as the backer for ceramic tile in tub and shower areas.) 

 
2006 International Residential Code Section N1101.8 – Certificate (Requires the 
posting of an energy-efficiency certification on the inside of the electrical panel and 
signed by the builder or a design professional.) 
 
2006 International Energy Conservation Code Chapter 3 – Climate Zones (The whole 
chapter has changed and will need to be amended to comply with the State of Texas 
energy requirements.) 
 
2005 National Electrical Code Section 410.4 (D) - Bathtub and Shower Areas (This 
revision clarifies the types of luminaries (fixtures) and ceiling suspended fans not 
permitted within a zone measured 3 ft. horizontally and 8 ft. vertically from the top of the 
bathtub rim or shower stall threshold.  A new sentence has been added to clarify that 
luminaries installed in this zone shall be listed for damp locations or wet locations where 
subject to shower spray.) 
 
 

 
 

205

Regular Item 1



206

Regular Item 1



207

Regular Item 1



208

Regular Item 1



209

Regular Item 1



210

Regular Item 1



211

Regular Item 1



212

Regular Item 1



213

Regular Item 1



214

Regular Item 1



215

Regular Item 1



216

Regular Item 1



217

Regular Item 1



218

Regular Item 1



219

Regular Item 1



220

Regular Item 1



221

Regular Item 1



222

Regular Item 1



223

Regular Item 1



224

Regular Item 1



225

Regular Item 1



226

Regular Item 1



227

Regular Item 1



228

Regular Item 1



229

Regular Item 1



230

Regular Item 1



231

Regular Item 1



232

Regular Item 1



233



April 12, 2007 
Regular Agenda Item #  

                                 Ordinance change for Fire and Life Safety Codes       
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:   Eric Hurt, Fire Marshal 
 
Agenda Caption: Public Hearing, Presentation, possible action and discussion on an 
ordinance amending Chapter 6, “Fire Protection”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
College Station, Texas by amending certain sections as set out, adopting the 2006 
International Fire Code with related amendments and the 2006 NFPA Life Safety Code.  
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the 2006 International Fire Code and the 
NFPA Life Safety Code. 
 
Summary: The City of College Station currently uses the 2003 edition of the International 
Fire Code and the 2003 NFPA Life Safety Code.  The International Code Council and NFPA 
issue updated code editions every three years. The changes included in the 2006 edition of 
the International Fire Code will help clarify intent and provide for the use of the latest fire 
protection systems and provide updated life safety protection requirements. The adoption of 
the 2006 International Fire Code and the NFPA Life Safety Code is also a key component of 
the Planning and Development Vision Statement, and the Core Values to promote the 
health, safety and general well being of the community as outlined in the City’s Strategic 
Plan.   
 
   
Attachments: 
 

1. Summary of Fire Code and Life Safety changes  
2. Ordinance Chapter six (Fire Protection) 

234

Regular Item 2



Significant Changes in the 2006 International Fire Code  
 

Many of the changes between the 2003 IFC and the 2006 IFC were merely housekeeping 
changes to provide better clarification of the codes.  A few of the local amendments in 
chapter 6 of the Code of Ordinances required section numbers to be changed to match the 
2006 IFC. 
 
Significant Changes: 
 

1) Section 903.2.1.2 Group A-2 lowers the occupant load from 300 to 100 before a 
automatic fire sprinkler system is required.  
 
Result: Group A-2 occupancies include Night Clubs, Banquet Halls, Restaurants, 

 Taverns and Bars to be sprinklered if they have a rated occupancy of 100 or more.  
 

2) Section 903.1 Group R  requires that all residential occupancies be equipped with 
an automatic fire sprinkler system including one and two family homes.  
 
Result:  This section is deleted due to the great number of concerned local 
developers and builders over the cost associated with this type of ordinance. 
 

3) Section 2209 received numerous changes and additions to the requirements for 
Hydrogen Motor Fuel Dispensing and Generation Facilities. 

 
Result:  The changes to the section are the result of the International Code 
Council keeping up with the safety concerns for new emerging motor fuels. 
 

Significant Changes to the National Fire Protection Association’s Life Safety Code 
101:
 

1) Section 24.3.5.1 Requires that all new one and two family dwellings be protected 
 throughout by an approved automatic fire sprinkler system. 

 
 Result: This section is deleted due to the great number of concerned local 

 developers and builders over the cost associated with this type of ordinance. 
 
2) Section 43.6.4.1 required an automatic fire sprinkler system be installed in a multi 

 story building on a floor and all floors below that is being rehabilitated by over 
 50%. 

 
Result: This section was deleted and amended by the following:  

 
In a building with rehabilitation work areas involving over 50% of the aggregate 
building area an automatic fire sprinkler system shall be installed to the code 
applicable to new construction for this type of occupancy. 
 

 

235

Regular Item 2



3) Section 43.6.4.2 required if a single story in a structure is rehabilitated by over 
50% that single story shall be equipped with an approved automatic sprinkler 
system. 

 
 Result: The amendment to section 43.6.4.1 replaces this section. 
 
 
 

236

Regular Item 2



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ________________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 6, “FIRE PROTECTION”, OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY AMENDING 
CERTAIN SECTIONS AS SET OUT BELOW; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That Chapter 6, “Fire Protection”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

College Station, Texas, be amended as set out in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and 
made a part of this ordinance for all purposes. 

 
PART 2: That if any provisions of any section of this ordinance shall be held to be void or 

unconstitutional, such holding shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining 
provisions or sections of this ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
PART 3: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this chapter 

shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be 
punishable by a fine of not less than Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) nor more than 
Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00).  Each day such violation shall continue or be 
permitted to continue, shall be deemed a separate offense.  Said Ordinance, being a 
penal ordinance, becomes effective ten (10) days after its date of passage by the 
City Council, as provided by Section 35 of the Charter of the City of College 
Station. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this _______ day of _______________________, 2007. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 

    ____________________________________ 
    RON SILVIA, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Connie Hooks, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 

E-Signed by Angela M. DeLuca
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
 
_______________________________ 
City Attorney 

C:\DOCUME~1\DCODY~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Chapter 6 Ordinance Amendments 2006 to L.DOC 

237

Regular Item 2



ORDINANCE NO. ______________  Page 2 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\DCODY~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Chapter 6 Ordinance Amendments 2006 to L.DOC 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

  
 

That Chapter 6, “Fire Protection”, Section 1, “Fire Prevention Code”, of the Code of Ordinances 
of the City of College Station, Texas, is hereby replaced in its entirety, as set out hereafter to read 
as follows: 
 
SECTION 1:    FIRE PREVENTION CODE 
 
A. INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE ADOPTED 
 
 (1) The 2006 edition of the International Fire Code, including Appendix Chapters B, C, D, E,  

F and G, as published by the International Code Council.  Said Code is hereby adopted 
to the same extent as though such Code were copied at length herein, subject however 
to the omissions, additions, supplements, and amendments contained in this section. 

 
 (2) The Life Safety Code Handbook, specifically the 2006 Edition published by the National 

Fire Protection Association, a copy of which is on file in the office of the City Secretary 
of the City of College Station, Texas, is hereby adopted and designated as the life safety 
code of the City of College Station.  Said code is adopted to the same extent as though 
such code was copied at length herein, subject however to the omissions, additions, 
supplements, and amendments contained in this section. 

 
B. AMENDMENTS TO THE INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE 
 
 The International Fire Code, as referred to above is hereby amended as follows: 
 

(1)  Section 101 (General) is amended by  adding Section 101.6 to read as follows: 
 

Section 101.6 (Emergency Vehicle Egress): 
No part of any commercial structure will be located outside the limits of a one hundred 
fifty foot (150’) arc from a point where fire apparatus can operate.  Fire apparatus will 
operate on surfaces designed for such and may utilize public right-of-way, approved fire 
lanes and/or drive access ways to meet this one hundred and fifty foot limit but in no 
case shall the truck travel route be measured across grass, wooded or landscaped areas, 
over curbs, through fences, through ditches or across paved areas which are not 
designed and maintained as fire lanes". 

(2) Section 108 is amended by deleting the section in its entirety.  
 
(3) Section 109.3 (Violation Penalties) is amended by deleting the section in its entirety and 

replacing with the following: 
 

Section 109.3 (Violation Penalties) 
Persons who shall violate a provision of this code or shall fail to comply with any of the 
requirements thereof or who shall erect, install, alter, repair or do work in violation of the 
approved construction documents or directive of the Fire Official, or of a permit or 
certificate used under provisions of this code, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, 
punishable by a fine as described in Chapter 1 section 5 of the College Station Code of 
Ordinances.   

 
(4) Section 202 (General Definitions) is amended by adding “Tutorial Services” under the 

definition of “Occupancy Classification Assembly Group A-3”. 
 
(5) Section 308.3.1 (Open Flame Cooking Devices) is amended by deleting exception 2. 
 
(6) Section 308.3.1.1 (Liquid-Petroleum-Gas-Fueled cooking devices) is amended by 

deleting the section in its entirety and replacing with the following:  

238

Regular Item 2



ORDINANCE NO. ______________  Page 3 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\DCODY~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Chapter 6 Ordinance Amendments 2006 to L.DOC 

 
Section 308.3.1.1 (Liquid-Petroleum-Gas-Fueled cooking devices) 
LP-gas burners shall not be located on combustible balconies or within 10 feet (3048 
mm) of combustible construction.  Exception: One- and two- family dwellings. 

 
(7) Section 501.4 (Timing of Installation) is amended by adding the following text at the end 

of the section: "There shall be no combustible, flammable or ignitable materials placed 
on site, lot or subdivision where waterlines, fire hydrants and/or all weather access roads 
capable of supporting emergency vehicles with an imposed load of at least 75,000 
pounds as required by this code or other adopted code or ordinances are completed, 
accepted and inservice." 

 
(8) Section 503.2.1 (Dimensions) is amended by replacing “13 feet 6 inches” with "14 feet". 
 
(9) Section 503.2.5 (Dead Ends) is amended by replacing “150 feet” with "100 feet". 
 
(10) Section 503.3 (Marking) is amended by deleting the section in its entirety and replacing 

with the following:  
 

Section 503.3 (Marking) 
The owner, manager, or person in charge of any building or property to which fire lanes 
have been approved or required by engineering shall mark and maintain said fire lanes 
in the following manner: 

 
All curbs and curb ends shall be painted red with four inch (4") white lettering stating 
"FIRE LANE - NO PARKING - TOW AWAY ZONE".  Wording may not be spaced more 
than fifteen feet (15') apart. 

 
In areas where fire lanes are required but no continuous curb is available, one of the 
following methods shall be used, in conjunction with the curb markings, to indicate that 
the fire lane is continuous: 
 
Option #1: A sign twelve inches (12") wide and eighteen inches  (18") in height shall be 
mounted in a conspicuous location at each entrance to the property.   (See Diagram No. 
1 for specifications on colors and lettering.) 
 
Option #2: From the point the fire lane begins to the point the fire lane ends, including 
behind all parking spaces which adjoin a fire lane, shall be marked with one continuous 
eight inch (8") red stripe painted on the drive surface behind the parking spaces.  All 
curbing adjoining a fire lane must be painted red.  Red stripes and curbs will contain the 
wording "FIRE LANE - NO PARKING- TOW AWAY ZONE", painted in four inch (4") 
white letters.  ("Figure A" in Ordinance No 1630 illustrates striping on drive surface 
behind parking spaces.) 
 
In those cases where curb markings are not possible or where signs would in the Fire 
Official's opinion work more effectively, the Fire Marshal may require signs in lieu of 
curb markings. 
 
The use of the color red to mark or stripe any curb or parking area (other than fire lanes) 
is prohibited within the City of College Station."  
 

(11) Section 503 (Fire Apparatus Access Roads) is amended by adding Sections 503.3.1 
(Fire Lane Signs; Tow-Away Zone Signs), 503.3.2 (Destruction of Fire Lane and Tow-
Away Signs), 503.3.3 (Abandonment or Closing) and 503.3.4 (Authority Under 
Emergency Conditions) to read as follows: 

 
503.3.1 (Fire Lane Signs; Tow-Away Zone Signs) 
The owner, manager, or person in charge of any building to which fire lanes have been 
approved by the Engineering Division shall post and maintain appropriate signs in 
conspicuous places along such fire lanes stating "No Parking - Fire Lane".  Such signs 

239

Regular Item 2



ORDINANCE NO. ______________  Page 4 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\DCODY~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Chapter 6 Ordinance Amendments 2006 to L.DOC 

shall be twelve inches (12") wide and eighteen inches (18") high, with a companion sign 
twelve inches (12") wide and six inches (6") high stating "Tow-Away Zone".  
 
Any "No Parking - Fire Lane" or "Tow-Away Zone" sign shall be painted on a white 
background with symbols, letters and border in red.  Drawings and samples of such signs 
may be obtained from the Fire Department of the City of College Station.  Standards for 
mounting, including but not limited to, the height above the grade at which such signs 
are to be mounted, shall be as adopted by the Fire Official of College Station. 

 
Section 503.3.2 (Destruction of Fire Lane or Tow-Away Signs) 
It is hereby unlawful for any person without lawful authority to attempt or in fact alter, 
destroy, deface, injure, knock down, or remove any sign designating a fire lane or tow-
away zone erected under the terms of this code, or to deface a curb marking in any way.  

 
Section 503.3.3 (Abandonment or Closing) 

 
No owner, manager, or person in charge of any premises served by a required fire lane 
shall abandon or close such fire lane without written permission of the Fire Official of the 
City of College Station. 

 
Section 503.3.4 (Authority Under Emergency Conditions) 
The Fire Marshal is hereby authorized to establish fire lanes during any fire, and to 
exclude all persons other than those authorized to assist in extinguishing the fire or the 
owner or occupants of the burning property from within such lanes. 
 

(12) Section 503.4 (Obstruction of Fire Apparatus Access Roads) is amended by deleting the 
section in its entirety and replacing with the following: 

 
Section 503.4 (Obstruction of Fire Apparatus Access Roads) 
No person shall park, place, allow, permit, or cause to be parked, placed, any motor 
vehicle, trailer, boat, or similar obstruction within or upon an area designated as a fire 
lane and marked by an appropriate sign or curb marking. 

 
(13) Section 503 (Fire Apparatus Access Roads) is amended by adding Sections 503.4.1 

(Obstructing Fire Lanes) and 503.4.2 (Enforcement; Issuance of Citations; Impoundment 
of Obstructions) to read as follows:  

 
Section 503.4.1 (Obstructing Fire Lanes) 
Any motor vehicle, trailer, boat, or similar obstruction found parked within an area 
designated as a fire lane as required by this section is hereby declared a nuisance per se 
and any such motor vehicle, trailer, boat, or similar obstruction parked or unoccupied in 
such a manner as to obstruct in whole or in part any such fire lane shall be prima facie 
evidence that the registered owner unlawfully parked, placed, or permitted to be parked 
or placed such obstruction within a fire lane. 

 
The records of the State Highway Department or the County Highway License 
Department showing the name of the person to whom the Texas highway license or boat 
or trailer license is issued shall constitute prima facie evidence of ownership by the 
named persons. 
 
Section 503.4.2 (Enforcement; Issuance of Citations; Impoundment of Obstructions) 

 
The Fire Official or any member of the Fire Department designated by the Fire Official, 
the Chief of Police, or any member of the Police Department designated by the Chief of 
Police are hereby authorized to issue parking citations for any motor vehicle, trailer, 
boat, or similar obstruction found parked or unattended in or upon a designated fire lane 
and may have such obstruction removed by towing it away.  Such vehicle or obstruction 
may be redeemed by payment of the towage and storage charges at the owner's 
expense. 

 

240

Regular Item 2



ORDINANCE NO. ______________  Page 5 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\DCODY~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Chapter 6 Ordinance Amendments 2006 to L.DOC 

No parking citations shall be voided nor shall the violator be relieved of any penalty 
assessed by a judge of the Municipal Court for any provision by the redemption of the 
obstruction from the storage facility.” 

 
(14) Section 505.1 (Address Numbers) is amended by deleting the section in its entirety and 

replacing with the following:  
 

Section 505.1 (Address Numbers) 
 
An official building number placed pursuant to this ordinance must be at least four inches 
(4") high, and have at least a one-half inch (1/2") stroke in the main body of the number, 
and be composed of a durable material and of a color which provides a contrast to the 
background.  The number shall be mounted a minimum of thirty-six inches (36") and a 
maximum of thirty feet (30') in height measured from ground level.  Buildings located 
more than fifty feet (50') from the curb of a street shall have numbers at least five inches 
(5") in height.  For the purpose of this ordinance, durable materials for use in numbering 
shall include, but not be limited to wood, plastic, metal, weather-resistant paint, weather-
resistant vinyl, or weather-resistant numbers designed for outside use on a glass surface.  
For single family residences, the requirement of this section may be met by providing 
two inch (2") high numbers on both sides of a U.S. mailbox located near the curb in front 
of the house, or a freestanding structure with numbers at least four inches (4") in height. 

 
(15) Section 505 (Premise Identification) is amended by adding Sections 505.1.1 (Building 

Complex Identification), 505.1.2 (Rear Access Identification), 505.1.3 (Alley Premise 
Identification) and 505.1.4 (Building Complex Diagrams) to read as follows: 
 
505.1.1 (Building Complex Identification)  
A building complex composed of multiple structures shall have an official suite/unit 
number assigned to each building as well as a street address number.  If there is 
sufficient street frontage, each unit or building may be assigned a separate official street 
address number.  The official street address number of each structure as designated by 
the Building Official must be prominently posted on the building so that it is visible from 
the nearest public street.  Each number designated by the Building Official for each 
individual suite/unit must be conspicuously posted on the suite/unit.   

  
505.1.2 (Rear Access Identification) 
Commercial buildings with rear access shall also display the business name and 
designated street address and suite/unit number on the rear access door.   
 
505.1.3 (Alley Premise Identification) 
Residential structures that provide for rear vehicular access from a dedicated public 
alley shall conspicuously post the designated numbers that comply with the size 
requirements above so that it is visible to the alley. 
 
505.1.4 (Building Complex Diagrams) 
The owner of a building complex which contains an enclosed shopping mall shall submit 
to the Fire Official four (4) copies of diagrams acceptable to the Fire Official of the entire 
complex, indicating the location and number of each business.  When a change in a 
business name or location is made, the owner or manager of structure shall so advise 
the Fire Official in writing of the change. 

 
(16) Section 508.5.1 (Where Required) is amended by deleting the section in its entirety and 

replacing with the following:  
 

Section 508.5.1 (Where Required) 
Public fire hydrants of the City of College Station standard design shall be installed as 
part of the water distribution system for subdivisions and/or site developments.  The 
Engineering Division shall approve the appropriate hydrant locations accessible to fire 
fighting apparatus and within the maximum distances described in the following sections: 

 

241

Regular Item 2



ORDINANCE NO. ______________  Page 6 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\DCODY~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Chapter 6 Ordinance Amendments 2006 to L.DOC 

(17) Section 508.5.2 (Inspection, Testing and Maintenance) is amended by deleting the 
section in its entirety and replacing with the following:  

 
Section 508.5.2 (Inspection, Testing and Maintenance) 
Public fire hydrants shall be installed in single-family and duplex districts zoned R-1, R-
1A and R-2 at such locations that no part of any structure shall be more than five 
hundred feet (500') from a fire hydrant as measured along the right-of-way of a public 
street as the fire hose is laid off the fire truck. 

 
(18) Section 508.5.3 (Private Fire Service Mains and Water Tanks) is amended by  deleting 

the section in its entirety and replacing with the following:  
 

Section 508.5.3 (Private Fire Service Mains and Water Tanks) 
Private fire hydrants shall be installed in districts other than single-family and duplex 
districts zoned R-1, R-1A or R-2 at such locations that no part of any structure, 
aboveground tanks or fueling stations, shall be more than three hundred feet (300') from 
a fire hydrant as measured along the right-of-way of a public street or along an approved 
fire lane as the fire hose is laid off the fire truck.” 

 
(19) Section 903.2 (Where required) is amended by adding the following text at the end of the 

section: 
 
In addition to the requirements of this section, an automatic sprinkler system shall be 
provided throughout all new buildings and structures as follows: 
 

1. Where the total building area exceeds 12,000 square feet in area. 
2. Where the height exceeds two stories, regardless of area. 

 
(20) Section 903.2.2 (Group E) is amended by deleting the exception and replacing "20,000 

square feet" with "12,000 square feet". 
 

(21) Section 903.2.3 (Group F-1) is amended by deleting items #2 and #3. 
 
(22) Section 903.2.6 (Group M) #2 is amended by replacing "three stories above grade" with 

"two stories in height" and by deleting #3 in its entirety. 
 

(23) Section 903.2.7 (Group R) is amended by deleting the section in its entirety. 
 
(24) Section 903.2.8 (Group S-1) is amended by deleting items #2 and #3. 
 
(25) Section 903.2 (Where Required) is amended by deleting the section in its entirety and 

replacing with the following:  
 

Section 903.2 (Where Required) 
An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout all buildings where the total 
building area exceeds 12,000 square feet and/or all structures exceeding two stories in 
height. 

 
(26) Section 907.10.1.2 (Employee work areas) is amended by deleting the section in its 

entirety and replacing with the following: 
 

Section 907.10.1.2 (Employee work areas) 
Where a fire alarm and detection system is required, employee work areas shall be 
provided with devices that provide audible and visible alarm notification.” 

 
(27) Section 2204.1 (Supervision of Dispensing) is amended by deleting the section in its 

entirety and replacing with the following:  
 

242

Regular Item 2



ORDINANCE NO. ______________  Page 7 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\DCODY~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Chapter 6 Ordinance Amendments 2006 to L.DOC 

Section 2204.1 (Supervision of Dispensing) 
The dispensing of flammable or combustible liquids into the fuel tank of a vehicle or into 
an approved container shall be under the supervision of a qualified attendant except 
service stations not open to the public.  Such stations may be used by commercial, 
industrial governmental or manufacturing establishments for fueling vehicles in 
connection with their business.” 

 
(28) Section 2204.3 (Unattended Self-Service Motor Fuel Dispensing Facilities) is amended 

by deleting the section in its entirety. 
 

(29) Section 2204.3.1 (General) is amended by deleting the section in its entirety. 
 

(30) Section 2204.3.2 (Dispensers) is amended by deleting the section in its entirety. 
 

(31) Section 2204.3.3 (Emergency Controls) is amended by deleting the section in its 
entirety. 

 
(32) Section 2204.3.4 (Operating Instructions) is amended by deleting the section in its 

entirety. 
 

(33) Section 2204.3.5 (Emergency Procedures) is amended by deleting the section in its 
entirety. 

 
(34) Section 2204.3.6 (Communications) is amended by deleting the section in its entirety. 

 
 (35) Section 2204.3.7 (Quantity Limits) is amended by deleting the section in its entirety. 
 

(36) Section 3406.6.1.2 (Leaving Vehicle Unattended) is amended by deleting the section in 
its entirety and replacing with the following:  

 
Section 3406.6.1.2 (Leaving Vehicle Unattended) 
At no time while discharging flammable, combustible or ignitable liquids shall the driver 
or operator be out of sight and reach of the discharge valves.  If at any time while 
discharging flammable, combustible or ignitable liquids, the driver or operator must 
leave the vehicle for any reason, he or she shall shut down all valves until his or her 
return and shall be totally responsible for any and all spillage.  When the delivery hose is 
attached to the vehicle it is presumed to be discharging flammable, combustible or 
ignitable liquids. 

 
(37) Appendix D Section D103.4 (Dead Ends) and Table D103.4 are amended by replacing 

"150 feet" with "100 feet". 
 

C. AMENDMENTS TO NFPA LIFE SAFETY CODE: 
 

(1) Section 24.3.5.1 is amended by deleting the section in its entirety. 
 

(2) Section 43.6.4.1 is amended by deleting this section in its entirety and replacing with the 
following: 

 
Section 43.6.4.1 
In a building with rehabilitation work areas involving over 50% of the aggregate building 
area an automatic fire sprinkler system shall be installed to the code applicable to new 
construction for this type of occupancy. 
 

(3) Section 43.6.4.2 is amended by deleting the section in its entirety. 
 

(4) Section 43.6.4.4 is amended by replacing “up to and including the highest rehabilitation 
work area floor” with “highest floor”. 

 
 

243

Regular Item 2



12 April 2007 
Regular Agenda  

Comprehensive Plan Update 
 
 

To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning and Development Services                         
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an update 
on the Comprehensive Planning process.  
 
Recommendation(s): N/A 
 
Summary: Staff will present an overview of the results of the Comprehensive Plan 
community survey that was conducted through a questionnaire included January’s 
utility bill mailing. A total of 27,774 surveys were mailed out and 2,495 were 
returned by the 21 February cut-off date. The survey included topics relevant to the 
Comprehensive Plan and was specifically designed to gauge potential levels of 
support for various initiatives and strategies that might be further explored through 
the plan update process.   
 
Staff will also present the revised project schedule for Phase I of the Comprehensive 
Plan and update the Council on the visioning process.   
 
Budget & Financial Summary: N/A  
 
Attachments: 

1. Survey Results 
2. Phase I Project Schedule 

 

244

Regular Item 3



 

 
 

COMMUNITY SURVEY 

COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Prepared for: 
 
 Kendig Keast Collaborative 
 514 Brooks Street 
 Sugar Land, TX  77478 
 
 Prepared by: 
 
 CDS Market Research 
 1250 Wood Branch Park Dr. 
 Suite 100 
 Houston, TX  77079 
 
 February, 2007 

245

Regular Item 3



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
February 28, 2007 
 
 
Mr. Gary Mitchell 
Kendig Keast Collaboration 
514 Brooks Street 
Sugar Land, TX  77476 
 
SUBJECT:  COLLEGE STATION COMMUNITY SURVEY 
 
Dear Mr. Mitchell: 
 
Enclosed please find three (3) copies of our report 
summarizing the findings of the mail survey of College 
Station utility customers completed in accordance with the 
Professional Services Agreement between our respective 
firms. 
 
We appreciated the opportunity to be of service to Kendig 
Keast on this assignment and look forward to working with 
you again in the near future.  Please don’t hesitate to call 
me if you have any questions regarding the results of the 
survey. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
Ray C. Lawrence 
Principal Associate 
 
Enclosures (3) 
 
cc: R. Kent Dussair 
 Charlie Savino 
 

246

Regular Item 3



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY SURVEY 
COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS ............................................ 1
 
INTRODUCTION.................................................................. 1
 
METHODOLOGY................................................................. 1
 
PROFILE OF RESPONDENTS ............................................. 3
 
FINDINGS............................................................................. 5 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

247

Regular Item 3



 

 
COMMUNITY SURVEY 

COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
This report summarizes the results of a mail survey of 
College Station utility customers conducted during January 
and February, 2007 to provide support for a comprehensive 
plan for the City of College Station. 
 

METHODOLOGY 
 

• Questionnaire drafted by Kendig Keast and 
reviewed by CDS.  Minor changes in questions 
and response options suggested by CDS 
incorporated into final questionnaire. 

 
• One page (front and back) questionnaire 

consisting of six ranking and check-off questions 
relating to community issues and four 
demographic questions.  (Copy enclosed as 
Appendix A.) 

 
• Questionnaire mailed out with utility bills (four 

cycles) during the month of January, 2007 by 
College Station Utilities.  Total of 27,774 customer 
households and businesses. 

CDS Market Research, Houston                         Page 1 
 

248

Regular Item 3



College Station Community Survey 
 

• Approximately one month allowed for returns.  
Returns collected and mailed by priority mail to 
CDS for processing.  2,495 returns received by 
CDS by cut-off date of February 21 representing 
raw return of 9.0%. 

 
• Returned surveys edited by CDS.  Of total 2,495 

returns, 1,906 were useable.  589 returns 
excluded from sampling universe for one or more 
of the following reasons: 

 
− Failure to respond to one or more 

questions, rank three factors in Qs 1, 2, 3 
and 6, or prioritize all factors in Q4. 

 
− Writing in and ranking or checking non-

listed factors or issues. 
 

− Assigning the same rank to two or more 
factors or issues. 

 
− Checking rather than ranking factors/issues 

in Qs 1, 2, 3 and 6. 
 

− Checking both “student” and “non-student” 
in Q8. 

 
− Torn or damaged returns. 

 

CDS Market Research, Houston                         Page 2 
 

249

Regular Item 3



College Station Community Survey 
 

− Forms printed on only the front side (around 
10). 

 
• 900 completed and edited questionnaires 

randomly selected for tabulation.  High level of 
validity in results for respondent universe minimum 
of + 5% on any finding at 99% confidence level.  
Validity of findings for entire universe of utility 
customers unknown due to fact that respondents 
(those who returned forms) were not randomly 
selected.  Therefore, there is an unknown degree 
of nonresponse error.  However, survey findings 
very representative of opinions of those with 
sufficient interest to respond. 

 
• Sample selection followed by data entry, 

programming and printout of tabulations, analysis 
of findings, and preparation of final report.  
(Tabulation tables enclosed in Appendix B.) 

 

PROFILE OF RESPONDENTS 
 
 
 

• Two-thirds of the sample of 900 respondents were 
in the middle two age groups. 

 
 
 

AGE OF RESPONDENTS IN SAMPLE 

Age Group Number % of Total
18-24 148 16.4%
25-44 294 32.7%
45-64 307 34.1%
65+ 151               16.8%

Totals 900 100.0%

CDS Market Research, Houston                         Page 3 
 

250

Regular Item 3



College Station Community Survey 
 

 
 
 
 
• 80% of respondents were non-students. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• Nearly three-fourths of respondents own their own 

home. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• The large majority have no children living in their 
households. 

 
 
 

STUDENT VS. NONSTUDENT RESPONDENTS 

Student Status Number % of Total
      Student 170 20.2%

Non-student 662               79.8%
      Totals 900 100.0%

TENURE OF RESPONDENTS

Group Number % of Total
           Own 662 73.6%
           Rent 238               26.4% 

Totals 900 100.0%

RESPONDENTS WITH CHILDREN AT HOME

Children Number % of Total
            None 630 70.0%
           One or more 270                 30.0% 

Totals 900 100.0%

CDS Market Research, Houston                         Page 4 
 

251

Regular Item 3



College Station Community Survey 
 

 

FINDINGS 
 
Question 1 asked respondents to rank from 1 to 3 their top 
three priorities from a list of 12 community needs and 
desires. 
 

•  “Traffic circulation” was the dominant concern of 
all demographic groups followed in distant second 
and third places by “public safety services 
(police/fire)” and “utilities (water, sewer, 
electricity)”. 

 
• Other factors receiving significant numbers of top 

three rankings were (in order) “environmental 
protection”, “jobs and economic development”, 
“planning for compatible land uses”, “parks and 
recreation facilities”, “drainage and flooding” and 
“community image/appearance”. 

 
• Three factors received only minor mention among 

the top three perceived issues – “historic buildings 
and areas”, “redevelopment efforts” and “housing 
needs”. 

 
• “Traffic circulation” was ranked slightly lower on 

average (fewer No. 1 rankings, more No. 2 
rankings) by respondents aged 18-24 and 
students than by older or non-student respondents 
(see Appendix B). 

COMMUNITY NEEDS AND DESIRES
(See Appendix B for Ranking Detail) 

ISSUE/FACTOR % Ranking 1-3 
Traffic circulation 64%
Public safety services 42%
Utilities 34%
Environmental protection 28%
Jobs and economic development 27%
Parks and recreation facilities 21%
Drainage and flooding 20%
Community image/appearance 18%
Historic buildings and areas 8%
Redevelopment efforts 8%
Housing needs 6%

CDS Market Research, Houston                         Page 5 
 

252

Regular Item 3



College Station Community Survey 
 

 
• “Public safety services (police/fire)” received a 

higher percentage of respondents aged 65+ rating 
the factor No. 1 compared to other respondent 
groups (see Appendix B). 

 
Question 2 asked respondents to rank from 1 to 3 those 
factors that most negatively impact their quality of life. 
 

•  “Traffic congestion” was the dominant factor 
mentioned with “City taxes and utility rates” 
second.  “Loss of green space”, “crime/security 
concerns” and “impacts of rental housing” all 
received strong mention, with over 30% of the 
sample ranking each 1, 2, or 3. 

 
• A fifth of respondents ranked “loss of sense of 

community” and “lack of job opportunities” 1, 2, or 
3. 

 
• “Housing costs/availability”, “dealing with City 

regulations” and “limited activities for kids” 
received only minor mention among ranked 
factors. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

FACTORS THAT MOST NEGATIVELY IMPACT 
QUALITY OF LIFE 

(See Appendix B for Ranking Detail) 

FACTOR % Ranking  1-3 
Traffic congestion 81% 
City taxes and utility rates 44% 
Loss of "green" space 35% 
Crime/security concerns 34% 
Impacts of rental housing 31% 
Loss of "sense of community" 20% 
Lack of job opportunities 19% 
Housing costs/availability 13% 
Dealing with City regulations 10% 
Limited activities for kids 9% 

CDS Market Research, Houston                         Page 6 
 

253

Regular Item 3



College Station Community Survey 
 

• Somewhat surprisingly, in view of the Question 1 
results, those respondents 18-24 and students 
ranked “traffic congestion” the No. 1 factor more 
often than others (see Appendix B). 

 
• Respondents aged 65+ ranked “crime/security 

concerns” 1, 2, or 3 more often than did other 
respondents (see Appendix B). 

 
• Respondents in the upper three age groups, non-

students and/or homeowners are more concerned 
about the “impacts of rental housing” than are the 
younger and/or student respondents (see 
Appendix B). 

 
 
 

CDS Market Research, Houston                         Page 7 
 

254

Regular Item 3



College Station Community Survey 
 

 
Question 3 asked respondents to rank the top three 
enhancements that would make College Station a better 
place to live and work. 
 

• As could be expected from the findings related to 
the first two questions, “neighborhood traffic 
management” was the highest ranked 
enhancement. 

 
• There was widely dispersed support for all other 

enhancements listed, led (in order) by “more park 
land and greenways”, “safer routes for 
biking/walking”, “beautification of the community” 
and “expanded airline service”. 

 
• The item mentioned least often among 

enhancements ranked 1, 2, or 3 was “stronger 
code enforcement” (see Appendix B). 

 
• Respondents 65+ were the strongest supporters of 

“neighborhood traffic management”, “expanded 
airline service” and “stronger code enforcement” 
(see Appendix B). 

 
• The youngest age group (18-24) and students 

favored “more park land and greenways” and 
“more shopping and entertainment” the most (see 
Appendix B). 

 

ENHANCEMENTS THAT WOULD 
 MAKE COLLEGE STATION 

 A BETTER PLACE TO LIVE AND WORK 
(See Appendix B for Ranking Detail) 

FACTOR % Ranking  1-3 
Neighborhood traffic management 49% 
More park land and "greenways" 35% 
Safer routes for biking/walking 33% 
Beautification of the community 32% 
Expanded airline services 31% 
More shopping and entertainment 27% 
Expanded public transit 25% 
Preservation of rural area 24% 
Creation of a true "city center" 24% 
Stronger code enforcement 20% 

CDS Market Research, Houston                         Page 8 
 

255

Regular Item 3



College Station Community Survey 
 

• The two youngest age groups – 18-24 and 25-44 
favored “creation of a true ‘city center’ the most. 

 
Question 4 asked respondents what priority - high, medium 
or low – they would give to certain challenges that College 
Station is expected to face in coming years. 
 
 
 
 

• Those factors accorded “high priority” by the 
largest percentages of sample respondents were 
(in order, with the percent so indicating): 

 
• All of these factors also had substantial, often 

more, respondents rating them “medium priority”. 
 
 
 

• Factors that were for the most part rated as 
“medium priority” were “continued tax base 
expansion to fund public improvements” and 
“continued focus on special districts” (see 
Appendix B). 

 
• Only one factor was rated “low priority” by the 

plurality of sample respondents – “focus on 
housing/amenities to attract more retirees here” 
see Appendix B). 

FACTORS WITH HIGH PRIORITY 
(See Appendix B for Detail 

% Rating  
FACTOR High Priority 

Promote more development while protecting 
existing neighborhoods and businesses 48% 
Greater focus on integrity of established 
neighborhoods 48% 
Improve how City codes deal with large-scale 
developments 46% 
Upgrade the image and appearance of the 
community 42% 
Manage outward growth to limit urban 
"sprawl" 36% 
Focus on jobs/amenities to keep more A & M 
graduates here 36% 

CDS Market Research, Houston                         Page 9 
 

256

Regular Item 3



College Station Community Survey 
 

Question 5 asked respondents to express their feeling about 
whether the City should annex more territory in the future, 
with or without property owner consent (see Appendix B). 
 
 

• The majority of respondents – 60% - felt that the 
City should be cautious with annexation, adding 
new territory to the city limits as development 
proceeds. 

 
• Those favoring this view most strongly were 

respondents 18-24 years old and/or students. 
 

• Around a fifth of respondents favored a policy of 
the City annexing as much territory as it can to 
stay ahead of growth. 

 
• Another fifth favored the opposite policy of not 

annexing any new territory because the City has 
enough issues to deal with within the current city 
limits. 

 
Question 6 asked respondents which of 11 types of 
improvements, services or programs they would rank 1, 2, 
and 3 in terms of the best use of City taxes and fees. 
 

• The majority ranked “repair to existing streets” the 
most important issue, with strongest mention 
coming from 18-24 year olds. 

 

CDS Market Research, Houston                         Page 10 
 

257

Regular Item 3



College Station Community Survey 
 

CDS Market Research, Houston                         Page 11 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

• Somewhat less than half the respondents gave 
top 3 ranks to “police, fire and ambulance 
services”, with those 65+ making most prominent 
mention of such services. 

 
• “Long range and strategic planning” received the 

next highest frequency of top 3 rankings. 
 

• “Library” and “development review/regulation” 
received the lowest percentages of respondents 
ranking them 1, 2, or 3. 

 
 
 

 

IMPROVEMENTS, SERVICES AND PROGRAMS 
MOST DESERVING OF CITY TAXES AND FEES 

(See Appendix B for Detail) 

ITEM % Ranking 1-3
Street repairs 56%
Police, fire and ambulance services 47%
Long range and strategic planning 37%
Parks and recreation programs 30%
Drainage/storm sewers 24%
Code enforcement 22%
Off-road hike and bike trails 22%
New streets 17%
Water/sewer improvements 17%

14%Library 
13%Development review/regulation 

258

Regular Item 3



 

APPENDIX A 
 

QUESTIONNAIRE 

 
259

Regular Item 3



 

(More Questions on Back) 

WWEE  NNEEEEDD  YYOOUU  ..  ..  .. 
 
… to provide your opinions on the future of your community.   
This will  take  just  a  few minutes.    But,  your  input will  be 
invaluable as the City of College Station prepares to update its 
Comprehensive Plan  –  the  long‐range plan  for how we  can 
make  our  community  even  better  in  coming  years.    More 
information  about  the  plan  update  process  may  be  found 
online at:  www.cstx.gov/CompPlanUpdate 
 
 
1. A Comprehensive Plan addresses a wide variety of community needs and desires. Please select and 

rank from 1 to 3 your top three priorities on the following list:
_____   Environmental protection 
_____   Planning for compatible land uses 
_____   Traffic circulation 
_____   Jobs and economic development 
_____   Parks and recreation facilities 
_____   Housing needs 

_____   Historic buildings and areas 
_____   Drainage and flooding 
_____   Community image/appearance 
_____   Redevelopment efforts 
_____   Public safety services (police/fire) 
_____   Utilities (water, sewer, electricity) 

 
2. Community planning is aimed at improving the “quality of life” of residents.  Please select and rank 

from 1 to 3 the three items on the following list that most negatively impact your day‐to‐day life in 
College Station today: 
_____   Traffic congestion 
_____   Crime/security concerns 
_____   Loss of “green” space 
_____   Housing costs/availability 
_____   Impacts of rental housing 

_____   Limited activities for kids 
_____   Lack of job opportunities 
_____   Dealing with City regulations 
_____   City taxes and utility rates 
_____   Loss of “sense of community”  

 
3. On the other hand, what potential enhancements would make College Station an even better place to 

live and work?  Please select and rank from 1 to 3 the three items on the following list you feel are 
most important: 
_____   Neighborhood traffic management 
_____   Expanded airline service 
_____   More shopping and entertainment 
_____   Beautification of the community 
_____   More park land and “greenways” 

_____   Expanded public transit 
_____   Stronger code enforcement 
_____   Safer routes for biking/walking 
_____   Preservation of rural areas 
_____   Creation of a true “city center” 

 

260

Regular Item 3



 

THANK YOU 
Please include the completed survey with your utility bill payment, OR 

You may drop it off at City Hall, Planning & Development Services Department, 1101 Texas Avenue 

4. College Station will face many challenges in coming years as it continues to grow.  What priority do 
you place on each of the following potential strategies the City might pursue?  (please check boxes) 

  High  Medium  Low 
 Priority  Priority  Priority 

                                                        Manage outward growth to limit urban “sprawl” 
                                                        Promote more development within the City while protecting 

existing neighborhoods and businesses 
                                                        Focus on jobs/amenities to keep more A&M graduates here   
                                                        Focus on housing/amenities to attract more retirees here 
                                                        Continued tax base expansion to fund public improvements 
                                                        Greater focus on integrity of established neighborhoods 
                                                        Upgrade the image and appearance of the community 
                                                        Make recreation and “green space” a central focus 
                                                        Improve how City codes deal with large‐scale developments 
                                                        Continued focus on special districts (like Wolf Pen Creek, Northgate) 
 
5. Cities and counties in Texas have limited authority to regulate land development outside city limits.  

But, cities are able to annex additional territory to extend their building/development codes to new 
growth  areas.   What  is  your  feeling  about  the City  of College  Station potentially  annexing more 
territory in the future, with or without property owner consent?  (please check one) 

  The City should annex as much territory as it can under state law to “stay ahead” of the growth 
that is already happening and likely to continue. 
  The City should be cautious with annexation, adding new territory to the city limits as 
development proceeds but otherwise avoiding significant annexations.  
  The City should not annex any new territory because it has enough issues to deal with in the 
current city limits.  

 
6. If City taxes or fees you pay were to be devoted to improving a particular type of City service, please 

select and rank from 1 to 3 your top three priorities on the following list:
_____   Off‐road hike/bike trails 
_____   Library 
_____   Long‐range and strategic planning 
_____   New streets 
_____   Repair to existing streets 
_____   Drainage/storm sewers 
_____   Water/sewer improvements 
_____   Code enforcement (building, 

parking, property maintenance) 
_____   Police, fire, ambulance services 
_____   Parks and recreation programs 
_____   Development review/regulation  

261

Regular Item 3



 

THANK YOU 
Please include the completed survey with your utility bill payment, OR 

You may drop it off at City Hall, Planning & Development Services Department, 1101 Texas Avenue 

 
7. What is your age range?    18 ‐24    25 – 44    45 – 64    65 or over 
 
8. Are you a college student?        Student    Non‐student 
 
9. Do you own or rent your current residence?    Own    Rent 
 
10. Do you have children in your household?    None    1 or more 

 
 
 

262

Regular Item 3



 

APPENDIX B 
 

TABLES 

 
263

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 17 
 
 
Q.1  A Comprehensive Plan addresses a wide variety of community needs and desires.  
Please select and rank from 1 to 3 your top three priorities on the following list. 
 
a.  Environmental protection 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— 
Home 

————————————————————
— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— 
Own 

————————
— Rent 

————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100%

 
One 
 

125 
14% 

23  
16%  

49  
17%  

41 
13% 

12 
8% 

31 
18% 

91 
13% 

81 
12% 

44  
18%  

86 
14% 

39 
14%

 
Two 
 

49 
5% 

9  
6%  

16  
5%  

21 
7% 

3 
2% 

7 
4% 

41 
6% 

35 
5% 

14  
6%  

28 
4% 

21 
8%

 
Three 
 

79 
9% 

14  
9%  

20  
7%  

34 
11% 

11 
7% 

17 
10% 

60 
8% 

59 
9% 

20  
8%  

60 
10% 

19 
7% 

 
 
 
b.  Planning for compatible land uses 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— 
Home 

————————————————————
— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— 
Own 

————————
— Rent 

————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

 
One 
 

54 
6% 

1  
1%  

6  
2%  

27 
9% 

20 
13% 

3 
2% 

50 
7% 

53 
8% 

1  
0%  

45 
7% 

9 
3% 

Two 
 

87 
10% 

4  
3%  

22  
7%  

44 
14% 

17 
11% 

7 
4% 

79 
11% 

76 
11% 

11  
5%  

53 
8% 

34 
13% 

Three 
 

76 
8% 

3  
2%  

29  
10%  

28 
9% 

16 
11% 

3 
2% 

73 
10% 

63 
10% 

13  
5%  

44 
7% 

31 
12% 

 
 
 
c.  Traffic circulation 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— 
Home 

————————————————————
— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— 
Own 

————————
— Rent 

————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

 
One 
 

293 
33% 

39  
26%  

102  
35%  

107 
35% 

45 
30% 

47 
28% 

245 
34% 

227 
34% 

66  
28%  

200 
32% 

93 
35% 

Two 
 

155 
17% 

34  
23%  

45  
15%  

47 
15% 

29 
19% 

40 
24% 

111 
15% 

107 
16% 

48  
20%  

113 
18% 

42 
16% 

Three 
 

125 
14% 

19  
13%  

38  
13%  

45 
15% 

23 
15% 

24 
14% 

100 
14% 

97 
15% 

28  
12%  

89 
14% 

36 
13% 

 
 
 

 
264

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 18 

 

 
 
Q.1  A Comprehensive Plan addresses a wide variety of community needs and desires.  Please 
select and rank from 1 to 3 your top three priorities on the following list. 
 
d.  Jobs and economic development 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

 
One 
 

100 
11% 

19  
13%  

44  
15%  

28 
9% 

9 
6% 

21 
12% 

79 
11% 

61 
9% 

39  
16%  

65 
10% 

34 
13% 

Two 
 

84 
9% 

13  
9%  

34  
12%  

24 
8% 

13 
9% 

16 
9% 

68 
9% 

63 
10% 

21  
9%  

61 
10% 

23 
9% 

Three 
 

63 
7% 

15  
10%  

24  
8%  

15 
5% 

9 
6% 

13 
8% 

49 
7% 

41 
6% 

22  
9%  

45 
7% 

18 
7% 

 
 
 
e.  Parks and recreation facilities 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

 
One 
 

36 
4% 

5  
3%  

16  
5%  

13 
4% 

2 
1% 

5 
3% 

31 
4% 

28 
4% 

8  
3%  

19 
3% 

17 
6% 

Two 
 

76 
8% 

12  
8%  

41  
14%  

21 
7% 

2 
1% 

17 
10% 

59 
8% 

56 
8% 

20  
8%  

45 
7% 

31 
12% 

Three 
 

79 
9% 

18  
12%  

28  
10%  

23 
7% 

10 
7% 

24 
14% 

53 
7% 

55 
8% 

24  
10%  

48 
8% 

31 
12% 

 
 
 
f.  Housing needs 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

 
One 
 

16 
2% 

7  
5%  

2  
1%  

4 
1% 

3 
2% 

6 
4% 

10 
1% 

8 
1% 

8  
3%  

15 
2% 

1 
0% 

Two 
 

18 
2% 

4  
3%  

7  
2%  

3 
1% 

4 
3% 

5 
3% 

13 
2% 

6 
1% 

12  
5%  

14 
2% 

4 
1% 

Three 
 

21 
2% 

7  
5%  

8  
3%  

4 
1% 

2 
1% 

7 
4% 

13 
2% 

9 
1% 

12  
5%  

16 
3% 

5 
2% 

 
 
 

265

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 19 
 
Q.1  A Comprehensive Plan addresses a wide variety of community needs and desires.  Please 
select and rank from 1 to 3 your top three priorities on the following list. 
 
g.  Historic buildings and areas 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

14 
2% 

3  
2%  

5  
2%  

3 
1% 

3 
2% 

3 
2% 

11 
2% 

13 
2% 

1  
0%  

11 
2% 

3 
1% 

Two 
 

28 
3% 

3  
2%  

9  
3%  

13 
4% 

3 
2% 

3 
2% 

25 
3% 

21 
3% 

7  
3%  

22 
3% 

6 
2% 

Three 
 

31 
3% 

12  
8%  

10  
3%  

9 
3% 

0 
0% 

13 
8% 

18 
3% 

19 
3% 

12  
5%  

25 
4% 

6 
2% 

 
 
 
h.  Drainage and flooding 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

 
One 
 

31 
3% 

8  
5%  

3  
1%  

15 
5% 

5 
3% 

7 
4% 

23 
3% 

25 
4% 

6  
3%  

22 
3% 

9 
3% 

Two 
 

80 
9% 

18  
12%  

23  
8%  

22 
7% 

17 
11% 

21 
12% 

58 
8% 

58 
9% 

22  
9%  

61 
10% 

19 
7% 

Three 
 

73 
8% 

7  
5%  

17  
6%  

31 
10% 

18 
12% 

8 
5% 

64 
9% 

59 
9% 

14  
6%  

50 
8% 

23 
9% 

 
 
 
i.  Redevelopment efforts 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

13 
1% 

3  
2%  

3  
1%  

5 
2% 

2 
1% 

3 
2% 

10 
1% 

9 
1% 

4  
2%  

9 
1% 

4 
1% 

Two 
 

21 
2% 

3  
2%  

11  
4%  

5 
2% 

2 
1% 

5 
3% 

16 
2% 

16 
2% 

5  
2%  

15 
2% 

5 
2% 

Three 
 

46 
5% 

4  
3%  

20  
7%  

16 
5% 

6 
4% 

6 
4% 

39 
5% 

31 
5% 

15  
6%  

33 
5% 

13 
5% 

 

 
266

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 20 
 
j.  Community image/appearance 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

17 
2% 

3  
2%  

6  
2%  

6 
2% 

2 
1% 

2 
1% 

15 
2% 

16 
2% 

1  
0%  

13 
2% 

4 
1% 

Two 
 

52 
6% 

5  
3%  

24  
8%  

15 
5% 

8 
5% 

4 
2% 

47 
7% 

44 
7% 

8  
3%  

31 
5% 

21 
8% 

Three 
 

86 
10% 

16  
11%  

33  
11%  

27 
9% 

10 
7% 

19 
11% 

67 
9% 

61 
9% 

25  
11%  

64 
10% 

22 
8% 

 
 
 
k.  Public safety services (police/fire) 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

155 
17% 

28  
19%  

38  
13%  

49 
16% 

40 
26% 

29 
17% 

122 
17% 

113 
17% 

42  
18%  

110 
17% 

45 
17% 

Two 
 

121 
13% 

18  
12%  

34  
12%  

47 
15% 

22 
15% 

19 
11% 

102 
14% 

91 
14% 

30  
13%  

86 
14% 

35 
13% 

Three 
 

106 
12% 

13  
9%  

34  
12%  

37 
12% 

22 
15% 

15 
9% 

89 
12% 

85 
13% 

21  
9%  

78 
12% 

28 
10% 

 
 
 
l.  Utilities (water, sewer, electricity) 
 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

53 
6% 

10  
7%  

20  
7%  

12 
4% 

11 
7% 

14 
8% 

37 
5% 

34 
5% 

19  
8%  

42 
7% 

11 
4% 

Two 
 

132 
15% 

26  
18%  

28  
10%  

47 
15% 

31 
21% 

27 
16% 

101 
14% 

91 
14% 

41  
17%  

104 
17% 

28 
10% 

Three 
 

116 
13% 

19  
13%  

34  
12%  

40 
13% 

23 
15% 

19 
11% 

96 
13% 

84 
13% 

32  
13%  

79 
13% 

37 
14% 

 
 
 

 
267

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 21 
 
 
Q.2  Community planning is aimed at improving the "quality of life" of residents.  Please 
select and rank from 1 to 3 the three items on the following list that most negatively 
impact your day-to-day life in College Station today. 
 
 
a.  Traffic congestion 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

411 
46% 

85  
57%  

131  
45%  

125 
41% 

70 
46% 

90 
53% 

318 
44% 

292 
44% 

119  
50%  

295 
47% 

116 
43% 

Two 
 

174 
19% 

25  
17%  

60  
20%  

61 
20% 

28 
19% 

34 
20% 

140 
19% 

129 
19% 

45  
19%  

126 
20% 

48 
18% 

Three 143 11  38  66 28 15 124 122 21  94 48 
 16% 7%  13%  21% 19% 9% 17% 18% 9%  15% 18% 

 
 
 
b.  Crime/security concerns 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

60 
7% 

13  
9%  

16  
5%  

13 
4% 

18 
12% 

18 
11% 

40 
6% 

34 
5% 

26  
11%  

49 
8% 

11 
4% 

Two 
 

114 
13% 

23  
16%  

20  
7%  

45 
15% 

26 
17% 

23 
14% 

88 
12% 

87 
13% 

27  
11%  

82 
13% 

32 
12% 

Three 
 

125 
14% 

22  
15%  

29  
10%  

46 
15% 

28 
19% 

25 
15% 

100 
14% 

92 
14% 

33  
14%  

88 
14% 

37 
14% 

 
 
 
c.  Loss of "green" space 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

84 
9% 

11  
7%  

31  
11%  

37 
12% 

5 
3% 

13 
8% 

69 
10% 

64 
10% 

20  
8%  

55 
9% 

29 
11% 

Two 
 

124 
14% 

23  
16%  

38  
13%  

45 
15% 

18 
12% 

29 
17% 

92 
13% 

95 
14% 

29  
12%  

85 
13% 

38 
14% 

Three 
 

108 
12% 

21  
14%  

35  
12%  

40 
13% 

12 
8% 

26 
15% 

82 
11% 

81 
12% 

27  
11%  

78 
12% 

30 
11% 

 

 

268

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 22 

 

 
Q.2  Community planning is aimed at improving the "quality of life" of residents.  Please select 
and rank from 1 to 3 the three items on the following list that most negatively impact your day-to-
day life in College Station today. 
 
d.  Housing costs/availability 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

21 
2% 

7  
5%  

8  
3%  

1 
0% 

5 
3% 

7 
4% 

14 
2% 

6 
1% 

15  
6%  

18 
3% 

3 
1% 

Two 
 

48 
5% 

20  
14%  

20  
7%  

7 
2% 

1 
1% 

18 
11% 

29 
4% 

18 
3% 

30  
13%  

37 
6% 

11 
4% 

Three 
 

58 
6% 

21  
14%  

22  
7%  

12 
4% 

3 
2% 

20 
12% 

38 
5% 

23 
3% 

35  
15%  

44 
7% 

14 
5% 

 
 
 
e.  Impacts of rental housing 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

93 
10% 

4  
3%  

27  
9%  

47 
15% 

15 
10% 

6 
4% 

85 
12% 

83 
13% 

10  
4%  

59 
9% 

34 
13% 

Two 
 

95 
11% 

7  
5%  

31  
11%  

38 
12% 

19 
13% 

9 
5% 

85 
12% 

81 
12% 

14  
6%  

66 
10% 

29 
11% 

Three 
 

89 
10% 

8  
5%  

32  
11%  

26 
8% 

23 
15% 

10 
6% 

78 
11% 

71 
11% 

18  
8%  

67 
11% 

22 
8% 

 
 
 
f.  Limited activities for kids 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

17 
2% 

2  
1%  

10  
3%  

5 
2% 

0 
0% 

4 
2% 

13 
2% 

12 
2% 

5  
2%  

6 
1% 

11 
4% 

Two 
 

28 
3% 

1  
1%  

21  
7%  

6 
2% 

0 
0% 

1 
1% 

27 
4% 

23 
3% 

5  
2%  

4 
1% 

24 
9% 

Three 
 

40 
4% 

8  
5%  

22  
7%  

9 
3% 

1 
1% 

8 
5% 

31 
4% 

29 
4% 

11  
5%  

14 
2% 

26 
10% 

 
 
 
 

269

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 23 

 

Q.2  Community planning is aimed at improving the "quality of life" of residents.  Please select 
and rank from 1 to 3 the three items on the following list that most negatively impact your day-to-
day life in College Station today. 
 
g.  Lack of job opportunities 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

52 
6% 

9  
6%  

22  
7%  

18 
6% 

3 
2% 

10 
6% 

42 
6% 

30 
5% 

22  
9%  

37 
6% 

14 
5% 

Two 
 

62 
7% 

13  
9%  

27  
9%  

16 
5% 

6 
4% 

12 
7% 

50 
7% 

39 
6% 

23  
10%  

47 
7% 

15 
6% 

Three 
 

56 
6% 

14  
9%  

24  
8%  

11 
4% 

7 
5% 

14 
8% 

41 
6% 

35 
5% 

21  
9%  

40 
6% 

16 
6% 

 
 
 
h.  Dealing with City regulations 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

21 
2% 

2  
1%  

2  
1%  

14 
5% 

3 
2% 

1 
1% 

19 
3% 

19 
3% 

2  
1%  

15 
2% 

6 
2% 

Two 
 

27 
3% 

2  
1%  

10  
3%  

9 
3% 

6 
4% 

2 
1% 

25 
3% 

20 
3% 

7  
3%  

18 
3% 

9 
3% 

Three 
 

43 
5% 

4  
3%  

20  
7%  

12 
4% 

7 
5% 

8 
5% 

33 
5% 

35 
5% 

8  
3%  

28 
4% 

15 
6% 

 
 
 
i.  City taxes and utility rates 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

121 
13% 

13  
9%  

39  
13%  

40 
13% 

29 
19% 

17 
10% 

102 
14% 

106 
16% 

15  
6%  

83 
13% 

38 
14% 

Two 
 

156 
17% 

28  
19%  

37  
13%  

53 
17% 

38 
25% 

29 
17% 

125 
17% 

115 
17% 

41  
17%  

112 
18% 

44 
16% 

Three 
 

128 
14% 

26  
18%  

41  
14%  

39 
13% 

22 
15% 

27 
16% 

99 
14% 

87 
13% 

41  
17%  

98 
16% 

30 
11% 

 
 
 

270

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 24 

 

 
Q.2  Community planning is aimed at improving the "quality of life" of residents.  Please select 
and rank from 1 to 3 the three items on the following list that most negatively impact your day-to-
day life in College Station today. 
 
j.  Loss of "sense of community" 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

19 
2% 

2  
1%  

7  
2%  

7 
2% 

3 
2% 

4 
2% 

15 
2% 

15 
2% 

4  
2%  

13 
2% 

6 
2% 

Two 
 

69 
8% 

5  
3%  

28  
10%  

26 
8% 

10 
7% 

12 
7% 

56 
8% 

53 
8% 

16  
7%  

51 
8% 

18 
7% 

Three 
 

90 
10% 

10  
7%  

24  
8%  

39 
13% 

17 
11% 

12 
7% 

78 
11% 

71 
11% 

19  
8%  

64 
10% 

26 
10% 

 
 
 
 February 2007 
 
 College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey 

271

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 25 

 

 
 
Q.3  On the other hand, what potential enhancements would make College Station an 
even better place to live and work?  Please select and rank from 1 to 3 the three items on 
the following list you feel are most important. 
 
a.  Neighborhood traffic management 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

223 
25% 

33  
22%  

61  
21%  

74 
24% 

55 
36% 

39 
23% 

180 
25% 

175 
26% 

48  
20%  

159 
25% 

64 
24% 

Two 
 

122 
14% 

15  
10%  

25  
9%  

45 
15% 

37 
25% 

17 
10% 

105 
15% 

98 
15% 

24  
10%  

87 
14% 

35 
13% 

Three 
 

91 
10% 

12  
8%  

36  
12%  

36 
12% 

7 
5% 

14 
8% 

77 
11% 

73 
11% 

18  
8%  

58 
9% 

33 
12% 

 
 
 
b.  Expanded airline service 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

97 
11% 

8  
5%  

24  
8%  

40 
13% 

25 
17% 

10 
6% 

87 
12% 

79 
12% 

18  
8%  

74 
12% 

23 
9% 

Two 
 

104 
12% 

17  
11%  

33  
11%  

36 
12% 

18 
12% 

14 
8% 

88 
12% 

80 
12% 

24  
10%  

78 
12% 

26 
10% 

Three 
 

75 
8% 

7  
5%  

32  
11%  

23 
7% 

13 
9% 

11 
6% 

62 
9% 

53 
8% 

22  
9%  

51 
8% 

24 
9% 

 
 
 
c.  More shopping and entertainment 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

89 
10% 

38  
26%  

28  
10%  

18 
6% 

5 
3% 

34 
20% 

54 
8% 

43 
6% 

46  
19%  

67 
11% 

22 
8% 

Two 
 

79 
9% 

20  
14%  

33  
11%  

21 
7% 

5 
3% 

20 
12% 

59 
8% 

50 
8% 

29  
12%  

56 
9% 

23 
9% 

Three 
 

72 
8% 

13  
9%  

28  
10%  

22 
7% 

9 
6% 

16 
9% 

56 
8% 

50 
8% 

22  
9%  

45 
7% 

26 
10% 

 
 
 

272

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 26 

 

 
Q.3  On the other hand, what potential enhancements would make College Station an even 
better place to live and work?  Please select and rank from 1 to 3 the three items on the 
following list you feel are most important. 
 
d.  Beautification of the community 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

65 
7% 

9  
6%  

26  
9%  

16 
5% 

14 
9% 

12 
7% 

53 
7% 

46 
7% 

19  
8%  

46 
7% 

19 
7% 

Two 
 

88 
10% 

17  
11%  

30  
10%  

28 
9% 

13 
9% 

20 
12% 

68 
9% 

63 
10% 

25  
11%  

61 
10% 

26 
10% 

Three 
 

131 
15% 

27  
18%  

46  
16%  

38 
12% 

20 
13% 

28 
16% 

102 
14% 

87 
13% 

44  
18%  

100 
16% 

31 
12% 

 
 
 
e.  More park land and "greenways" 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

79 
9% 

18  
12%  

28  
10%  

28 
9% 

5 
3% 

20 
12% 

56 
8% 

54 
8% 

25  
11%  

56 
9% 

23 
9% 

Two 
 

119 
13% 

21  
14%  

40  
14%  

42 
14% 

16 
11% 

31 
18% 

87 
12% 

80 
12% 

39  
16%  

85 
13% 

34 
13% 

Three 
 

118 
13% 

18  
12%  

38  
13%  

49 
16% 

13 
9% 

24 
14% 

94 
13% 

91 
14% 

27  
11%  

80 
13% 

38 
14% 

 
 
 
f.  Expanded public transit 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
—————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

63 
7% 

9  
6%  

21  
7%  

24 
8% 

9 
6% 

11 
6% 

51 
7% 

38 
6% 

25  
11%  

52 
8% 

11 
4% 

Two 
 

90 
10% 

16  
11%  

29  
10%  

31 
10% 

14 
9% 

22 
13% 

66 
9% 

62 
9% 

28  
12%  

72 
11% 

18 
7% 

Three 
 

71 
8% 

9  
6%  

15  
5%  

26 
8% 

21 
14% 

11 
6% 

59 
8% 

58 
9% 

13  
5%  

49 
8% 

22 
8% 

 
 
 

273

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 27 

 

 
 
Q.3  On the other hand, what potential enhancements would make College Station an even 
better place to live and work?  Please select and rank from 1 to 3 the three items on the 
following list you feel are most important. 
 
g.  Stronger code enforcement 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— 
Own 

————————
— Rent 

————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

75 
8% 

2  
1%  

20  
7%  

31 
10% 

22 
15% 

3 
2% 

70 
10% 

67 
10% 

8  
3%  

42 
7% 

33 
12% 

Two 
 

66 
7% 

6  
4%  

15  
5%  

24 
8% 

21 
14% 

6 
4% 

59 
8% 

60 
9% 

6  
3%  

44 
7% 

22 
8% 

Three 
 

47 
5% 

4  
3%  

11  
4%  

17 
6% 

15 
10% 

3 
2% 

44 
6% 

42 
6% 

5  
2%  

33 
5% 

14 
5% 

 
 
 
h.  Safer routes for biking/walking 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

84 
9% 

14  
9%  

42  
14%  

26 
8% 

2 
1% 

23 
14% 

61 
8% 

60 
9% 

24  
10%  

51 
8% 

33 
12% 

Two 
 

109 
12% 

19  
13%  

38  
13%  

43 
14% 

9 
6% 

20 
12% 

87 
12% 

82 
12% 

27  
11%  

67 
11% 

42 
16% 

Three 
 

104 
12% 

18  
12%  

30  
10%  

35 
11% 

21 
14% 

23 
14% 

78 
11% 

74 
11% 

30  
13%  

78 
12% 

26 
10% 

 
 
 
i.  Preservation of rural areas 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

60 
7% 

9  
6%  

17  
6%  

29 
9% 

5 
3% 

8 
5% 

51 
7% 

50 
8% 

10  
4%  

40 
6% 

19 
7% 

Two 
 

62 
7% 

5  
3%  

23  
8%  

19 
6% 

15 
10% 

6 
4% 

54 
8% 

47 
7% 

15  
6%  

39 
6% 

23 
9% 

Three 
 

98 
11% 

19  
13%  

22  
7%  

43 
14% 

14 
9% 

18 
11% 

75 
10% 

72 
11% 

26  
11%  

70 
11% 

28 
10% 

 
 

274

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 28 

 

 
Q.3  On the other hand, what potential enhancements would make College Station an even 
better place to live and work?  Please select and rank from 1 to 3 the three items on the 
following list you feel are most important. 
 
j.  Creation of a true "city center" 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— 
Home 

————————————————————
— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— 
Own 

————————
— Rent 

————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

66 
7% 

9  
6%  

27  
9%  

21 
7% 

9 
6% 

11 
6% 

55 
8% 

50 
8% 

16  
7%  

44 
7% 

22 
8% 

Two 
 

61 
7% 

12  
8%  

28  
10%  

18 
6% 

3 
2% 

14 
8% 

45 
6% 

40 
6% 

21  
9%  

41 
7% 

20 
7% 

Three 
 

89 
10% 

21  
14%  

35  
12%  

17 
6% 

16 
11% 

22 
13% 

67 
9% 

58 
9% 

31  
13%  

63 
10% 

26 
10% 

 
 
 

275

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 29 

 

 
 
Q.4  College Station will face many challenges in coming years as it continues to grow.  
What priority do you place on each of the following potential strategies the City might 
pursue? 
 
a.  Manage outward growth to limit urban "sprawl" 
 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 895 
100% 

146  
100%  

294  
100%  

305 
100% 

150 
100% 

168 
100% 

715 
100% 

657 
100% 

238  
100%  

626 
100% 

268 
100% 

High priority 
 

323 
36% 

36  
25%  

104  
35%  

117 
38% 

66 
44% 

46 
27% 

269 
38% 

257 
39% 

66  
28%  

223 
36% 

99 
37% 

Medium priority 
 

359 
40% 

66  
45%  

114  
39%  

120 
39% 

59 
39% 

70 
42% 

286 
40% 

256 
39% 

103  
43%  

255 
41% 

104 
39% 

Low priority 
 

213 
24% 

44  
30%  

76  
26%  

68 
22% 

25 
17% 

52 
31% 

160 
22% 

144 
22% 

69  
29%  

148 
24% 

65 
24% 

 
 
 
b.  Promote more development within the City while protecting existing neighborhoods 
and businesses 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 898 
100% 

148  
100%  

293  
100%  

307 
100% 

150 
100% 

170 
100% 

717 
100% 

660 
100% 

238  
100%  

629 
100% 

268 
100% 

High priority 
 

429 
48% 

57  
39%  

145  
49%  

151 
49% 

76 
51% 

67 
39% 

356 
50% 

320 
48% 

109  
46%  

298 
47% 

130 
49% 

Medium priority 
 

352 
39% 

76  
51%  

112  
38%  

116 
38% 

48 
32% 

82 
48% 

267 
37% 

247 
37% 

105  
44%  

245 
39% 

107 
40% 

Low priority 
 

117 
13% 

15  
10%  

36  
12%  

40 
13% 

26 
17% 

21 
12% 

94 
13% 

93 
14% 

24  
10%  

86 
14% 

31 
12% 

 
 
 
c.  Focus on job/amenities to keep more A&M graduates here 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 898 
100% 

147  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

150 
100% 

169 
100% 

718 
100% 

660 
100% 

238  
100%  

628 
100% 

269 
100% 

High priority 
 

234 
26% 

53  
36%  

78  
27%  

69 
22% 

34 
23% 

62 
37% 

171 
24% 

154 
23% 

80  
34%  

175 
28% 

58 
22% 

Medium priority 
 

298 
33% 

52  
35%  

106  
36%  

94 
31% 

46 
31% 

56 
33% 

237 
33% 

211 
32% 

87  
37%  

211 
34% 

87 
32% 

Low priority 
 

366 
41% 

42  
29%  

110  
37%  

144 
47% 

70 
47% 

51 
30% 

310 
43% 

295 
45% 

71  
30%  

242 
39% 

124 
46% 

 

276

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 30 

 

 
 
Q.4  College Station will face many challenges in coming years as it continues to grow.  What 
priority do you place on each of the following potential strategies the City might pursue? 
 
d.  Focus on housing/amenities to attract more retirees here 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 897 
100% 

148  
100%  

293  
100%  

306 
100% 

150 
100% 

169 
100% 

717 
100% 

659 
100% 

238  
100%  

629 
100% 

267 
100% 

High priority 
 

156 
17% 

17  
11%  

30  
10%  

67 
22% 

42 
28% 

19 
11% 

136 
19% 

121 
18% 

35  
15%  

118 
19% 

38 
14% 

Medium priority 
 

328 
37% 

51  
34%  

102  
35%  

110 
36% 

65 
43% 

54 
32% 

269 
38% 

245 
37% 

83  
35%  

235 
37% 

93 
35% 

Low priority 
 

413 
46% 

80  
54%  

161  
55%  

129 
42% 

43 
29% 

96 
57% 

312 
44% 

293 
44% 

120  
50%  

276 
44% 

136 
51% 

 
 
 
e.  Continued tax base expansion to fund public improvements 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 890 
100% 

146  
100%  

291  
100%  

306 
100% 

147 
100% 

168 
100% 

710 
100% 

652 
100% 

238  
100%  

622 
100% 

267 
100% 

High priority 
 

138 
16% 

16  
11%  

43  
15%  

54 
18% 

25 
17% 

19 
11% 

119 
17% 

109 
17% 

29  
12%  

94 
15% 

44 
16% 

Medium priority 
 

472 
53% 

85  
58%  

164  
56%  

156 
51% 

67 
46% 

99 
59% 

368 
52% 

335 
51% 

137  
58%  

329 
53% 

142 
53% 

Low priority 
 

280 
31% 

45  
31%  

84  
29%  

96 
31% 

55 
37% 

50 
30% 

223 
31% 

208 
32% 

72  
30%  

199 
32% 

81 
30% 

 
 
 
f.  Greater focus on integrity of established neighborhoods 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

High priority 
 

433 
48% 

51  
34%  

130  
44%  

165 
54% 

87 
58% 

58 
34% 

370 
52% 

348 
53% 

85  
36%  

294 
47% 

138 
51% 

Medium priority 
 

343 
38% 

66  
45%  

123  
42%  

107 
35% 

47 
31% 

81 
48% 

256 
36% 

235 
35% 

108  
45%  

247 
39% 

96 
36% 

Low priority 
 

124 
14% 

31  
21%  

41  
14%  

35 
11% 

17 
11% 

31 
18% 

92 
13% 

79 
12% 

45  
19%  

89 
14% 

35 
13% 

 
 
 

277

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 31 

 

 
 
Q.4  College Station will face many challenges in coming years as it continues to grow.  What 
priority do you place on each of the following potential strategies the City might pursue? 
 
g.  Upgrade the image and appearance of the community 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 895 
100% 

146  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

148 
100% 

168 
100% 

716 
100% 

658 
100% 

237  
100%  

625 
100% 

269 
100% 

High priority 
 

380 
42% 

62  
42%  

130  
44%  

122 
40% 

66 
45% 

72 
43% 

304 
42% 

275 
42% 

105  
44%  

271 
43% 

108 
40% 

Medium priority 
 

395 
44% 

67  
46%  

122  
41%  

140 
46% 

66 
45% 

72 
43% 

318 
44% 

299 
45% 

96  
41%  

273 
44% 

122 
45% 

Low priority 
 

120 
13% 

17  
12%  

42  
14%  

45 
15% 

16 
11% 

24 
14% 

94 
13% 

84 
13% 

36  
15%  

81 
13% 

39 
14% 

 
 
 
h.  Make recreation and "green space" a central focus 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 898 
100% 

148  
100%  

293  
100%  

307 
100% 

150 
100% 

170 
100% 

716 
100% 

660 
100% 

238  
100%  

628 
100% 

269 
100% 

High priority 
 

358 
40% 

72  
49%  

134  
46%  

128 
42% 

24 
16% 

87 
51% 

264 
37% 

253 
38% 

105  
44%  

234 
37% 

124 
46% 

Medium priority 
 

375 
42% 

58  
39%  

125  
43%  

115 
37% 

77 
51% 

62 
36% 

311 
43% 

275 
42% 

100  
42%  

275 
44% 

99 
37% 

Low priority 
 

165 
18% 

18  
12%  

34  
12%  

64 
21% 

49 
33% 

21 
12% 

141 
20% 

132 
20% 

33  
14%  

119 
19% 

46 
17% 

 
 
 
i.  Improve how City codes deal with large-scale developments 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 891 
100% 

146  
100%  

292  
100%  

304 
100% 

149 
100% 

168 
100% 

711 
100% 

654 
100% 

237  
100%  

625 
100% 

265 
100% 

High priority 
 

410 
46% 

33  
23%  

109  
37%  

176 
58% 

92 
62% 

44 
26% 

359 
50% 

342 
52% 

68  
29%  

291 
47% 

119 
45% 

Medium priority 
 

372 
42% 

81  
55%  

136  
47%  

103 
34% 

52 
35% 

87 
52% 

281 
40% 

258 
39% 

114  
48%  

258 
41% 

113 
43% 

Low priority 
 

109 
12% 

32  
22%  

47  
16%  

25 
8% 

5 
3% 

37 
22% 

71 
10% 

54 
8% 

55  
23%  

76 
12% 

33 
12% 

 

278

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 32 

 

 
 
Q.4  College Station will face many challenges in coming years as it continues to grow.  What 
priority do you place on each of the following potential strategies the City might pursue? 
 
j.  Continued focus on special districts ( like Wolf Pen Creek, Northgate) 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
————————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— 

Studen
t 

————————— 

Non-
Studen

t 
————————— Own 

————————— Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 896 
100% 

147  
100%  

294  
100%  

305 
100% 

150 
100% 

169 
100% 

715 
100% 

659 
100% 

237  
100%  

628  
100%  

267 
100% 

High priority 
 

231 
26% 

73  
50%  

81  
28%  

53 
17% 

24 
16% 

77 
46% 

150 
21% 

126 
19% 

105  
44%  

180  
29%  

51 
19% 

Medium priority 
 

394 
44% 

52  
35%  

130  
44%  

150 
49% 

62 
41% 

65 
38% 

325 
45% 

307 
47% 

87  
37%  

271  
43%  

122 
46% 

Low priority 
 

271 
30% 

22  
15%  

83  
28%  

102 
33% 

64 
43% 

27 
16% 

240 
34% 

226 
34% 

45  
19%  

177  
28%  

94 
35% 

 
 
 
 
Q.5  Cities and counties in Texas have limited authority to regulate land development 
outside city limits.  But, cities are able to annex additional territory to extend their 
building/development codes to new growth areas.  What is your feeling about the City of 
College Station potentially annexing more territory in the future, with or without property 
owner consent? 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
————————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
—————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 892 
100% 

147  
100%  

291  
100%  

304 
100% 

150 
100% 

167 
100% 

713 
100% 

655 
100% 

237  
100%  

626 
100% 

265 
100% 

The City should 
annex as much 
territory as it can 
under law to "stay 
ahead" of the 
growth that is 
already 
happening... 

185 
21% 

21  
14%  

65  
22%  

61 
20% 

38 
25% 

26 
16% 

158 
22% 

147 
22% 

38  
16%  

129 
21% 

56 
21% 

The City should 
be cautious with 
annexation, 
adding new 
territory to the city 
limits as 
development 
proceeds... 

539 
60% 

107  
73%  

169  
58%  

179 
59% 

84 
56% 

117 
70% 

415 
58% 

382 
58% 

157  
66%  

390 
62% 

148 
56% 

The City should 
not annex any 
new territory 
because it has 
enough issues to 
deal with in the 
current city limits 
 

168 
19% 

19  
13%  

57  
20%  

64 
21% 

28 
19% 

24 
14% 

140 
20% 

126 
19% 

42  
18%  

107 
17% 

61 
23% 

279

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 33 

 

 
 
Q.6  If City taxes or fees you pay were to be devoted to improving a particular type of City 
service, please select and rank from 1 to 3 your top three priorities on the following list. 
 
a.  Off-road hike/bike trails 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

74 
8% 

9  
6%  

40  
14%  

24 
8% 

1 
1% 

17 
10% 

57 
8% 

51 
8% 

23  
10%  

42 
7% 

32 
12% 

Two 
 

58 
6% 

10  
7%  

27  
9%  

17 
6% 

4 
3% 

14 
8% 

42 
6% 

41 
6% 

17  
7%  

39 
6% 

19 
7% 

Three 
 

71 
8% 

14  
9%  

31  
11%  

22 
7% 

4 
3% 

17 
10% 

53 
7% 

48 
7% 

23  
10%  

52 
8% 

19 
7% 

 
 
 
b.  Library 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

29 
3% 

4  
3%  

12  
4%  

10 
3% 

3 
2% 

4 
2% 

25 
3% 

22 
3% 

7  
3%  

19 
3% 

10 
4% 

Two 
 

41 
5% 

5  
3%  

18  
6%  

11 
4% 

7 
5% 

9 
5% 

32 
4% 

32 
5% 

9  
4%  

25 
4% 

16 
6% 

Three 
 

51 
6% 

5  
3%  

19  
6%  

19 
6% 

8 
5% 

8 
5% 

42 
6% 

37 
6% 

14  
6%  

31 
5% 

20 
7% 

 
 
 
c.  Long-range and strategic planning 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

130 
14% 

20  
14%  

40  
14%  

46 
15% 

24 
16% 

21 
12% 

107 
15% 

104 
16% 

26  
11%  

96 
15% 

33 
12% 

Two 
 

100 
11% 

14  
9%  

34  
12%  

35 
11% 

17 
11% 

22 
13% 

76 
11% 

74 
11% 

26  
11%  

71 
11% 

29 
11% 

Three 
 

105 
12% 

13  
9%  

41  
14%  

34 
11% 

17 
11% 

20 
12% 

85 
12% 

80 
12% 

25  
11%  

68 
11% 

37 
14% 

 
 
 

280

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 34 

 

 
Q.6  If City taxes or fees you pay were to be devoted to improving a particular type of City 
service, please select and rank from 1 to 3 your top three priorities on the following list. 
 
d.  New streets 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

65 
7% 

13  
9%  

24  
8%  

15 
5% 

13 
9% 

14 
8% 

51 
7% 

42 
6% 

23  
10%  

49 
8% 

16 
6% 

Two 
 

55 
6% 

8  
5%  

21  
7%  

20 
7% 

6 
4% 

7 
4% 

48 
7% 

42 
6% 

13  
5%  

38 
6% 

17 
6% 

Three 
 

36 
4% 

6  
4%  

10  
3%  

17 
6% 

3 
2% 

6 
4% 

28 
4% 

29 
4% 

7  
3%  

23 
4% 

13 
5% 

 
 
 
e.  Repair to existing streets 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

211 
23% 

42  
28%  

53  
18%  

71 
23% 

45 
30% 

48 
28% 

161 
22% 

151 
23% 

60  
25%  

159 
25% 

52 
19% 

Two 
 

201 
22% 

45  
30%  

58  
20%  

66 
21% 

32 
21% 

44 
26% 

155 
22% 

141 
21% 

60  
25%  

149 
24% 

52 
19% 

Three 
 

99 
11% 

15  
10%  

32  
11%  

36 
12% 

16 
11% 

18 
11% 

81 
11% 

73 
11% 

26  
11%  

73 
12% 

25 
9% 

 
 
 
f.  Drainage/storm sewers 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

43 
5% 

10  
7%  

14  
5%  

12 
4% 

7 
5% 

12 
7% 

31 
4% 

31 
5% 

12  
5%  

31 
5% 

12 
4% 

Two 
 

88 
10% 

18  
12%  

20  
7%  

35 
11% 

15 
10% 

20 
12% 

67 
9% 

65 
10% 

23  
10%  

65 
10% 

23 
9% 

Three 
 

80 
9% 

13  
9%  

22  
7%  

32 
10% 

13 
9% 

12 
7% 

67 
9% 

58 
9% 

22  
9%  

55 
9% 

25 
9% 

 
 
 

281

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 35 

 

 
Q.6  If City taxes or fees you pay were to be devoted to improving a particular type of City 
service, please select and rank from 1 to 3 your top three priorities on the following list. 
 
g.  Water/sewer improvements 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— 
Home 

————————————————————
— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— 
Own 

————————
— Rent 

————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

31 
3% 

5  
3%  

9  
3%  

13 
4% 

4 
3% 

6 
4% 

24 
3% 

23 
3% 

8  
3%  

22 
3% 

9 
3% 

Two 
 

58 
6% 

7  
5%  

18  
6%  

23 
7% 

10 
7% 

7 
4% 

48 
7% 

42 
6% 

16  
7%  

45 
7% 

13 
5% 

Three 
 

69 
8% 

15  
10%  

19  
6%  

21 
7% 

14 
9% 

14 
8% 

54 
8% 

47 
7% 

22  
9%  

52 
8% 

17 
6% 

 
 
 
h.  Code enforcement (building, parking, property maintenance) 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
————————————————————— 

Household 
————————————————————

— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
—————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— 
Kids 

————————
— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

49 
5% 

2  
1%  

14  
5%  

19 
6% 

14 
9% 

2 
1% 

47 
7% 

40 
6% 

9  
4%  

38 
6% 

11 
4% 

Two 
 

73 
8% 

8  
5%  

22  
7%  

19 
6% 

24 
16% 

6 
4% 

66 
9% 

66 
10% 

7  
3%  

48 
8% 

25 
9% 

Three 
 

77 
9% 

7  
5%  

25  
9%  

23 
7% 

22 
15% 

10 
6% 

67 
9% 

61 
9% 

16  
7%  

53 
8% 

24 
9% 

 
 
 
i.  Police, fire, ambulance services 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

186 
21% 

28  
19%  

57  
19%  

69 
22% 

32 
21% 

28 
16% 

154 
21% 

141 
21% 

45  
19%  

124 
20% 

62 
23% 

Two 
 

115 
13% 

8  
5%  

30  
10%  

48 
16% 

29 
19% 

11 
6% 

103 
14% 

90 
14% 

25  
11%  

79 
13% 

36 
13% 

Three 
 

115 
13% 

20  
14%  

26  
9%  

42 
14% 

27 
18% 

21 
12% 

93 
13% 

92 
14% 

23  
10%  

84 
13% 

31 
12% 

 
 
 

282

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 36 

 

 
 
Q.6  If City taxes or fees you pay were to be devoted to improving a particular type of City 
service, please select and rank from 1 to 3 your top three priorities on the following list. 
 
j.  Parks and recreation programs 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

63 
7% 

16  
11%  

27  
9%  

19 
6% 

1 
1% 

18 
11% 

43 
6% 

38 
6% 

25  
11%  

35 
6% 

28 
10% 

Two 
 

82 
9% 

21  
14%  

37  
13%  

21 
7% 

3 
2% 

26 
15% 

56 
8% 

47 
7% 

35  
15%  

53 
8% 

29 
11% 

Three 
 

124 
14% 

35  
24%  

47  
16%  

29 
9% 

13 
9% 

34 
20% 

87 
12% 

76 
11% 

48  
20%  

90 
14% 

34 
13% 

 
 
 
k.  Development review/regulation 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— 
Home 

————————————————————
— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— 
Own 

————————
— Rent 

————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

One 
 

19 
2% 

0  
0%  

3  
1%  

9 
3% 

7 
5% 

0 
0% 

18 
3% 

19 
3% 

0  
0%  

15 
2% 

4 
1% 

Two 
 

31 
3% 

4  
3%  

9  
3%  

12 
4% 

6 
4% 

3 
2% 

28 
4% 

23 
3% 

8  
3%  

21 
3% 

9 
3% 

Three 
 

71 
8% 

4  
3%  

21  
7%  

34 
11% 

12 
8% 

9 
5% 

60 
8% 

60 
9% 

11  
5%  

48 
8% 

23 
9% 

 
 
 
Q.7  What is your age range? 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

18-24 
 

148 
16% 

148  
100%  

0  
0%  

0 
0% 

0 
0% 

129 
76% 

19 
3% 

27 
4% 

121  
51%  

146 
23% 

2 
1% 

25-44 
 

294 
33% 

0  
0%  

294  
100%  

0 
0% 

0 
0% 

37 
22% 

253 
35% 

197 
30% 

97  
41%  

138 
22% 

155 
58% 

45-64 
 

307 
34% 

0  
0%  

0  
0%  

307 
100% 

0 
0% 

4 
2% 

300 
42% 

296 
45% 

11  
5%  

203 
32% 

104 
39% 

65 or over 
 

151 
17% 

0  
0%  

0  
0%  

0 
0% 

151 
100% 

0 
0% 

146 
20% 

142 
21% 

9  
4%  

143 
23% 

8 
3% 

 

283

Regular Item 3



College Station Comprehensive Plan Community Survey Page 37 

 

 
 
Q.8  Are you a college student? 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 888 
100% 

148  
100%  

290  
100%  

304 
100% 

146 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

653 
100% 

235  
100%  

620 
100% 

267 
100% 

Student 
 

170 
19% 

129  
87%  

37  
13%  

4 
1% 

0 
0% 

170 
100% 

0 
0% 

36 
6% 

134  
57%  

161 
26% 

9 
3% 

Non-student 
 

718 
81% 

19  
13%  

253  
87%  

300 
99% 

146 
100% 

0 
0% 

718 
100% 

617 
94% 

101  
43%  

459 
74% 

258 
97% 

 
 
 
Q.9  Do you own or rent your current residence? 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— 
Home 

————————————————————
— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— 
Own 

————————
— Rent 

————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 900 
100% 

148  
100%  

294  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

718 
100% 

662 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

Own 
 

662 
74% 

27  
18%  

197  
67%  

296 
96% 

142 
94% 

36 
21% 

617 
86% 

662 
100% 

0  
0%  

417 
66% 

244 
91% 

Rent 
 

238 
26% 

121  
82%  

97  
33%  

11 
4% 

9 
6% 

134 
79% 

101 
14% 

0 
0% 

238  
100%  

213 
34% 

25 
9% 

 
 
 
Q.10  Do you have children in your household? 
 

Age 
————————————————————————————————————————————— Status 

————————————————————— Home 
———————————————————— Household 

————————————————————— 

 Total 
————————— 18-24 

————————— 25-44 
————————— 45-64 

————————— 65+ 
————————— Student 

————————— 

Non-
Student 

————————— Own 
————————

Rent 
————————— 

No 
Kids 

————————— Kids 
————————— 

Base 899 
100% 

148  
100%  

293  
100%  

307 
100% 

151 
100% 

170 
100% 

717 
100% 

661 
100% 

238  
100%  

630 
100% 

269 
100% 

None 
 

630 
70% 

146  
99%  

138  
47%  

203 
66% 

143 
95% 

161 
95% 

459 
64% 

417 
63% 

213  
89%  

630 
100% 

0 
0% 

One or more 
 

269 
30% 

2  
1%  

155  
53%  

104 
34% 

8 
5% 

9 
5% 

258 
36% 

244 
37% 

25  
11%  

0 
0% 

269 
100% 

 
 

 

284

Regular Item 3



Project Schedule 
College Station Comprehensive Plan 

 

 
 Kendig Keast Collaborative  Prepared 09/25/06 

Status  Date/Time  Meeting  Activity  Project Deliverable 
Phase 1 Contract finalized on 08/15/06 

 
Thursday, 
09/21/06 
2:30 p.m. 

Kick‐Off Meeting 
(Department 
directors, key staff) 

Introductions, scope and 
schedule overview, project 
logistics 

Citizens Congress checklist 

 
Friday,  
10/06/06 

None  Existing land use character 
analysis 

Existing Land Use Character 
Map 

 

Thursday, 
10/26/06, 
9:00 a.m.‐ 
4:00 p.m. 

Focus Groups ‐ 
Day 1 

Assess community 
perceptions and concerns, 
solicit opinions and ideas 

None 

 
Thursday, 
10/26/06, 
6:00 p.m. 

CPAC 1 
Complete  SWOT analysis, 
issues identification  None 

 

Friday, 
10/27/06, 
9:00 a.m.‐ 
4:00 p.m. 

Focus Groups ‐ 
Day 2 

Assess community 
perceptions and concerns, 
solicit opinions and ideas 

None 

 
Monday, 
11/06/06 

None  Submit interim deliverable 
for review and distribution 

Focus Groups Summary 

 
Monday, 
11/06/06, 
6:00 p.m. 

CPAC 2 
Review results of Focus 
Groups, discuss Citizens 
Congress plans 

None 

 
Friday, 
11/10/06 

None  Submit deliverable for 
review and distribution 

Draft Community Survey 

 
Thursday, 
11/16/06, 
6:00 p.m. 

P&Z Briefing 1 
Update on Focus Groups, 
Citizens Congress plans and 
draft Community Survey 

None 

 
Monday, 
12/04/06, 
6:00 p.m. 

Citizens Congress 
Identify vision statements 
and community objectives  None 

 
Thursday, 
12/07/06, 
6:00 p.m. 

P&Z Briefing 2 
Update on Citizens Congress 
results and Community 
Survey plans 

None 

 
Friday, 
12/15/06 

None  Submit deliverable for final 
acceptance 

Final Community Survey 
(to be conducted in January) 

  January 2007  None  Conduct Community Survey  None 

 
Thursday, 
02/22/07, 
12:00 p.m. 

Meet with Parks 
& Recreation 
Board 

Update on Phase 1 progress 
to date and receive input  None 

 
Thursday, 
02/22/07, 
3:00 p.m. 

City Council Mid‐
Point Briefing 

Update on Phase 1 progress 
to date and upcoming 
activities 

None 

285

Regular Item 3



Project Schedule 
College Station Comprehensive Plan 

 

 
 Kendig Keast Collaborative.  Prepared 09/25/06  

 
Status  Date/Time  Meeting  Activity  Project Deliverable 

 
Wednesday, 
03/07/07 

None  Submit deliverable for 
review and distribution 

Draft Community Survey 
Data Analysis and Report 

 
Friday, 
03/30/07 

None  Submit deliverable for 
review and distribution 

Draft Vision Report 

 
Tuesday, 
04/04/07, 
6:00 p.m. 

CPAC 3 
Update on Community 
Survey results. Visioning.  None 

 
Thursday, 
04/05/07, 
6:00 p.m. 

P&Z Briefing 3 
Update on Community 
Survey results.  Visioning.  None 

 
Thursday, 
05/24/07,  
7:00 p.m. 

City Council 
Public Hearing 

Accept public comments, 
consider formal acceptance 
of Vision 

None 

  Friday, 
06/01/07 

None  Submit deliverable for 
review and distribution 

Draft Goals & Policies Report 

 
Thursday, 
06/12/07, 
6:00 p.m. 

CPAC 4 
Review Draft Goals & 
Policies Report  None 

 
Thursday, 
06/21/07, 
7:00 p.m. 

P&Z Briefing 4 
Review Draft Goals & 
Policies Report  None 

 
Tuesday, 
07/10/07, 
6:00 p.m. 

Joint Workshop of 
P&Z and CPAC 

Final review of Goals and 
Policies Report, recommend 
for City Council 
consideration 

None 

 
Thursday, 
07/26/07, 
7:00 p.m. 

City Council 
Public Hearing 

Accept public comment, 
consider formal acceptance 
of Goals and Policies Report 

None 

  Tuesday, 
07/31/07 

None  Submit final deliverable  Goals and Policies Report 

 
Regular City Council meetings are the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month at 7:00 p.m. 

Regular Planning & Zoning Commission meetings are the 1st and 3rd Thursday of each month at 7:00 p.m. 

Regular Zoning Board of Adjustments meetings are the 1st Tuesday of each month at 6:00 p.m. 

Regular Parks & Recreation Board meetings are the 2nd Tuesday of each month at 7:00 p.m. 

NOTE:  The CPAC may schedule interim meetings with City staff, but not the consultant, as needed 

286

Regular Item 3


	Agenda
	Consent Item 2a - Municipal Cemetery/Aggie Field of Honor Phase I Design Contract Award

	Cover Sheet
	1 Resolution approving a design contract
	2 Resolution Declaring Intention to Reimburse
	3 Phase I Site Plan
	4 Phase I Design Elements
	5 Project Timeline

	Consent Item 2b - Energy Transfer Corporation Gas & Oil Gathering Franchise Agreement
	Coversheet
	Franchise Ordinance

	Consent Item 2c - Gateway Grant Contract for Chadwick HOA
	Coversheet
	Chadwick HOA Gateway Grant Contract 
	Photo of Gateway

	Consent Item 2d - Delinquent Account Collections
	Coversheet
	Contract

	Consent Item 2e - Electric Transmission Fault and Coordination Study
	Coversheet
	Contract

	Consent Item 2f - Wolf Pen Creek Drainage Restoration
	Coversheet
	Resolution
	Location Map

	Consent Item 2g - Real Estate Contract for the Purchase of a Public Utility Easement
Water Service Extension Project

	Coversheet
	City Map
	Project Map
	Real Estate Contract

	Consent Item 2h - Outsource Bill Print
	Coversheet
	Contract 07-084

	Consent Item 2i - Resolution Election Officials 
	Coversheet Election Officials
	Resolution Election officials 

	Consent Item 2j - Interlocal Agreement Special Election 
	Coversheet ILA Election 
	ILA Election 

	Consent Item 2k - Approval of Council Meeting Minutes
	March 22, 2007 Workshop
	March 22, 2007 Regular Meeting
	February 1, 2007 Special Council Meeting
	February 27, 2007 Council Retreat

	Regular Item 1 - 2006 International Building Code / 2005 National Electrical Code Adoption
	Coversheet 
	Summary of Significant Changes
	Ordinance

	Regular Item 2 - Ordinance Adopting 2006 Fire and Life Safety Codes 
	Coversheet
	Summary of Changes
	Chapter 6 Ordinance Amendments 2006 to Legal - Final

	Regular Item 3 - Comprehensive Plan Update
	Coversheet
	Survey Results
	Phase I Project Schedule


